
 

    
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

      
 

                 
 

 
 

  
  

 
   

 

VALLEY CENTER 
FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REGULAR MEETING 
VCMWD Board Room    

Zoom Meeting ID: 859 712 4912
Pass Code: 185394 

with Live Stream to 
VCFPD Facebook Page for COVID-19 Prevention 

Thursday – September 15, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. 



 
  

          
   
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

   
 

 
 

    
  

 
 

  
 

   
 

  
 

   
      

  
 

   
               

     
           

    
  

           
  

 

  
 

 
  

   
   

   
   

   
          

   
   

    
  

  
   

Valley Center Fire Protection District Board of Directors 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
September 15, 2022 / 6:00 p.m. 
This Meeting will be cast on Zoom 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8597124912?pwd=Rm9KR0dSZWYyMml0ZGtvcGJsU29VZz09 

Meeting ID: 859 712 4912 
Passcode: 185394 

One tap mobile 
+16699009128,,8597124912#,,,,,,0#,,185394# US (San Jose) 

Dial by your location 
+1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 
Access Number: 859 712 4912 

Pass Code: 185394 
For COVID-19 Prevention 

with Live Stream to VCFPD Facebook Page 
Valley Center Municipal Water District Board Room 
29300 Valley Center Rd Valley Center, CA 92082 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

4. PROPOSAL TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2022-46 
Consideration to Approve Resolution NO. 2022-46 to Implement Teleconferencing    
Requirements During a Proclaimed State of Emergency Under Government Code Section 54953. 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Any member of the Public may speak on any matter that is not on the Agenda. However, under State 
law, no decisions or actions can be taken and any such matters will be referred to the next meeting. 
Members of the public may address the Board during public comment by “Raising their hand” in Zoom, 
then type their comments or questions in the Chat Box and may indicate if they wish to address a 
particular agenda item, or if they wish to make a general comment on a matter within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the District. The President will call on the member of the public at the appropriate time 
and allow the member of the public to provide live comment.  The District limits each speaker to 5 
minutes per topic and 20 minutes per subject. 

6. PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
None 

7. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All items listed on the Consent Calendar listed as Consent Items are considered routine and will be 
enacted in one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items prior to the Board action on 
the motion, unless members of the Board, Staff or public request specific items be removed from the 
Consent Calendar from the Board Agenda for discussion. 

A. Approve Board Meeting Minutes on the Regular Meeting August 18, 2022 and Special Meeting 
September 8, 2022 

Standing Item – Review and Approve 
B. Proposal to adopt Resolution NO 2022-47 (Cole Grade) and Resolution NO 2022-48 (Park Circle 

Retail) on Intention to Annex Territory to CFD 2008-1 
Review and Approve 

8. STAFF REPORTS 
A. Fire Chief’s Report 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8597124912?pwd=Rm9KR0dSZWYyMml0ZGtvcGJsU29VZz09


 

 
                                        

   
  
   
    

 
   

 
 
   

  
   

    
  

    
      

   
 

  
     

 
        

            
 

   
 

    
 

    
 

  
 
 

 
 
 

  
  

B. Operations Division Report 
C. Fire Station Project Monthly Update 
D. Community Risk Reduction Division Report 
E. Valley Center Firefighters Association Report 

9. OLD BUSINESS 
None 

10. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Public Hearing on Petition for Annexation of Territory to CFD 2008-01 and related matters, 

proposal to adopt Resolution NO. 2022-49 (Oak Glen) 
B. Discussion regarding endorsement of former Board member Mike Pacheco for the Palomar Health 

Board of Directors 
C. First Reading of Proposed 2023 California Fire Code with Amendment. 
D. Proposal to adopt Resolution NO. 2022-50 approving The Center For Public Safety Excellence 

2022 Community Driven Strategic Plan, in the form and content attached hereto. 

11.TREASURER’S REPORT 
Review of Fiscal Recap for August 2022 

12. CLOSED SESSION 
None 

13. ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTIONS 

14. BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMENTS 

15. ADJOURNMENT 

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as 
required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability who requires a 
modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting should direct such request to the Board Secretary at 
(760) 751-7600, at least 48 hours before the meeting, if possible 

NEXT REGULAR MEETING 
October 20, 2022 



 

                                                                                    
                                                                                                    
                                                                                               
 

 
 

 

  
    

  
 

 
   

 
 

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

 
    

  
 

VALLEY CENTER 
FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

28234 Lilac Road, Valley Center, CA  92082 
(760) 751-7600  Fax (760) 749-3892 

Website:  vcfpd.org 

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT RESOLUTION 2022-46 

RESOLUTION TO IMPLEMENT TELECONFERENCING REQUIREMENTS 
DURING A PROCLAIMED STATE OF EMERGENCY UNDER GOVERNMENT CODE 

SECTION 54953. 

WHEREAS, the Ralph M. Brown Act requires that all meetings of a legislative body of a local 
agency be open and public and that any person may attend and participate in such meetings; 

WHEREAS, the Brown Act allows for legislative bodies to hold meetings by teleconference, 
but imposes specific requirements for doing so; 

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, in order to address the need for public meetings during the 
present public health emergency, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order No. N-29-20, 
suspending the Act’s teleconferencing requirements; and 

WHEREAS, on June 11, 2021, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order No. N-8-21, 
continuing the suspension of the Brown Act’s teleconferencing requirements through September 
30, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, these Executive Orders allowed legislative bodies to meet virtually as long as 
certain notice and accessibility requirements were met; and 

WHEREAS, the State Legislature amended the Brown Act through Assembly Bill No. 361 (AB 
361) on September 16, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, AB 361 amended the Brown Act so that a local agency may use teleconferencing 
without complying with the regular teleconferencing requirements of the Act, where the 
legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and makes certain 
findings; and 

WHEREAS, Government Code section 54953 requires that the legislative body make additional 
findings every 30 days in order to continue such teleconferencing. 

NOW THEREFORE, the legislative body of the Valley Center Fire Protection District hereby 
finds, determines, declares, orders, and resolves as follows: 

Valley Center Fire Station 1 Valley Center Fire Station 2 
28234 Lilac Road 28205 N. Lake Wohlford Road 

Valley Center, CA 92082 Valley Center, CA 92082 

https://vcfpd.org


 

                                                                                    
                                                                                                    
                                                                                               
 

   
 

       
 

  
 

 
      

 
   

 
  

 
   

 
 

 
 

    
  

      
 

  
  

 
  

 
 

     

 
 

  
 

     
     

 
  
 

 
 

 
  

   
 

 
 

    

1. That the foregoing recitals are true and correct and incorporates them by this reference. 

2. The Board of Directors of the Valley Center Fire Protection District (District) finds, by a 
majority vote, the following: 

a. That there exists a proclaimed state of emergency; 
AND either: 

b. The Board of Directors of the Valley Center Fire Protection District is meeting for 
the purpose of determining one of the following, or more than 30 days have 
passed since the Board met and determined one of the following and the Board 
now re-determines one of the following: 

i. State or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to 
promote social distancing; OR 

ii. As a result of the emergency, meeting in person would present imminent 
risks to the health or safety of attendees. 

OR 

c. This Board of Directors has made the determination set forth in subdivision (b), 
above within the last 30 days and now makes the following determination: 

i. The Board of Directors of the Valley Center Fire Protection District has 
reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency; AND 

ii. Any of the following circumstances exist: 
1. The state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of 

the members to meet safely in person. 
2. State or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures 

to promote social distancing. 

3. The District Fire Chief or his designee is authorized to take all steps and perform all 
actions necessary to execute and implement this Resolution in compliance with 
Government Code section 54953. 

4. That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by The Board of Directors of the Valley Center Fire Protection 
District on this 15th day of September, 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Signature: ____________________________________________________________ 
Phil Bell, President, Valley Center Fire Protection District 

Signature 
Attest: ______________________________________________________________ 

Regina Roberts, Secretary, Valley Center Fire Protection District 
Valley Center Fire Station 1 Valley Center Fire Station 2 

28234 Lilac Road 28205 N. Lake Wohlford Road 
Valley Center, CA 92082 Valley Center, CA 92082 



    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

CONSENT CALENDAR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PACKET 

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 











 

  
 

    
 

 
  

    
    

   
 
 

 
  

    
 

 
 

  
   

 
 

   
   

 
 

      
 

 
    
   

   
  

 
   

  
 

   
   

  
 

 
 

   
   

  
  

    
 

   
    

  
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-47 
A RESOLUTION OF INTENTION 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
TO ANNEX TERRITORY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2008·1 

AND TO AUTHORIZE THE LEVY OF SPECIAL TAXES THEREIN 

proposed land to be annexed to the CFD, and 

Government Code section 53319, and 

Recorder, County of San Diego, State of California to which map reference is hereby made for 
further particulars. The territory now proposed to be annexed to the CFD is as shown on 
Annexation Map No.2 to the CFD on file with the Clerk of the Board, the boundaries of which 
territory are hereby preliminarily approved and which map is incorporated in full herein by 
reference. The Clerk of the Board is hereby directed to record, or cause to be recorded, said map 
showing the territory to be annexed to the CFD in the office of the County Recorder of the County 
of San Diego within fifteen days of the date of adoption of this Resolution. 

WHEREAS, under the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended (the "Act"), 
Chapter 2.5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, commencing at section 53311 of the California 
Government Code, the Board of Directors (the "Board") of the Valley Center Fire Protection District 
(the "District") has conducted proceedings to establish Community Facilities District No. 2008-1 
(the "CFD"), and 

WHEREAS, the Board is the legislative body for the CFD and is empowered with the authority to 
annex territory to the CFD and now desires to undertake proceedings to annex territory to the 
CFD, and 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting institution proceedings to annex territory to Community Facilities 
District No.2008-1 District has been received from landowners owning not less than 10% of the 

WHEREAS, the petition dated August 17, 2022 has been found to meet the requirements of 

WHEREAS, this Board, having received indications of interest from the owner of the areas of land 
proposed to be annexed to the CFD, now desires to proceed with the annexation to the CFD in 
order to finance the balance of the costs of certain public services and facilities necessary or 
incident to development in the CSD. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Valley Center Fire 
Protection District as follows: 

1. This Board hereby finds and determines that public convenience and necessity require that 
territory be added to the CFD be formed and that the Board is authorized to conduct proceedings 
for the annexation of territory to the CFD pursuant to the Act. 

2. The name of the existing CFD is "Community Facilities District No. 2008-1." 

3. The territory included in the existing CFD is as shown on the map thereof filed in Book 42 of 
Maps of Assessment and Community Facilities Districts at Page 27 in the office of the County 

1 of 3 



 

  
 

      
    

     

  
 

     
    

  
   

 
  

   
 

   
 

   
  

    
 

 
  

   
  

       
   

   
 

    
 

   
     

    
    

 
  
  

   
    

  
   

    
   

   
 

   
    

 
     

4. The types of services financed by the CFD and pursuant to the Act consist of those services 
(the "Services") described in Exhibit A to Resolution 2008-09, adopted by the Board on May 29, 
2008 (the "Resolution of Formation"). It is presently intended that the Services will be shared, 
without preference or priority, by the existing territory in the CFD and the territory proposed to be 
annexed to the CFD. 

5. Except to the extent that the funds are otherwise available to the CFD to pay for the Services, a 
special tax sufficient to pay the costs thereof is intended to be levied annually within the CFD and 

summarizing the provisions hereof hereby specifically approved. 

9. Except as may otherwise be provided by law or by the rate and method of apportionment of the 
special tax for the CFD, all lands owned by any public entity, including the United States, the State 
of California and/or the District, or any departments or political subdivisions thereof, shall be 
omitted from the levy of the Special Tax to be made to cover the costs and expenses of the 

collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad valorem property taxes. The 
proposed rate and method of apportionment of the special tax among the parcels of real property 
within the CFD, as now in existence and following the annexation proposed herein, in sufficient 
detail to allow each landowner within the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD to estimate 
the maximum amount such owner will have to pay are described in detail in Exhibit A attached to 
the Resolution of Formation, which by this reference is incorporated herein. 

6. The Board shall hold a public hearing (the "Hearing") on the annexation of territory to the CFD 
and the proposed Rate and Method of Apportionment at 6 p.m., or as soon thereafter as 
practicable, on October 20, 2022, at the Valley Center Municipal Water District, at 29300 Valley 
Center Road, Valley Center, California. At the hearing, the Board will consider and finally 
determine whether the public interest, convenience and necessity require the annexation of 
territory to the CFD. Should the Board determine to annex territory to the CFD, a special election 
will be held to authorize the levy of the special tax in accordance with the procedures contained in 
Government Code section 53326. If held, the proposed voting procedure at the election is 
expected to be a landowner vote with each landowner of record as of the close of the Hearing 
having one vote for each acre of land or portion thereof owned within the territory to be annexed to 
the CFD. Ballots for the special election may be distributed by mail or by personal service. At the 
time and place set forth above for the Hearing, any interested person, including all persons owning 
lands or registered to vote within the proposed CFD, may appear and be heard. 

7. The District may accept advances of funds or work-in-kind from any source, including, but not 
limited to, private persons or private entities, for any authorized purpose, including, but not limited 
to, paying any cost incurred by the District in the annexation of territory to the CFD. The District 
may enter into an agreement with the person or entity advancing the funds or work-in-kind, to 
repay all or a portion of the funds advanced, or to reimburse the person or entity for the value, or 
cost, whichever is less, of the work-in-kind, as determined by this Board, with or without interest. 

8. The District Secretary is hereby directed to cause notice of the public hearing to be given by 
publication one time in a newspaper published in the area of the CFD. The publication shall be 
completed at least seven days before the date of the public hearing in Section 6. The Secretary 
shall also cause notice of the hearing to be given to each property owner within the CFD by first 
class mail, postage prepaid, to each such owner's addresses as it appears on the most recent tax 
records of the District or as otherwise known to the Secretary to be correct. Such mailed notice 
shall be completed not less than fifteen days before the date of the public hearing. Each of the 
notices shall be substantially in the form specified in section 53322 of the Act, with the form 

2 of 3 



 

  
 

  
   

 
   

     
  

 

    
    

  
 

    
     

 
  
 

  
  

 
 

  
 
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 

____________________________ 

Services and the CFD. In the event that a portion of the property within the CFD shall become for 
any reason exempt, wholly or in part, from the levy of the special tax, this Board will, on behalf of 
the CFD, increase the levy to the extent necessary upon the remaining property within the CFD 
that is not exempt in order to yield the required revenues to pay for the Services and other annual 
expenses of the CFD, if any, subject to the provisions of the rate and method of apportionment of 
the special tax. 

10. The officers, employees and agents of the District are hereby authorized and directed to do 

the 15th day of September, 2022 by the following vote: 

Ayes: 
Noes: 
Absent: 
Abstain: 

ATTEST: 

any and all things and to execute and deliver any and all documents which they may deem 
necessary or advisable in order to carry out, give effect to and comply with the terms and intent of 
this resolution. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Valley Center Fire Protection District on 

President, Board of Directors 

____________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Directors 

3 of 3 





 

  
 

    
 

 
  

    
    

   
 
 

 
  

    
 

 
 

  
   

 
 

   
   

 
 

       
 

 
    
   

   
  

 
   

  
 

   
   

  
 

 
 

   
   

  
  

    
 

   
    

  
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-48 
A RESOLUTION OF INTENTION 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
TO ANNEX TERRITORY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2008·1 

AND TO AUTHORIZE THE LEVY OF SPECIAL TAXES THEREIN 

proposed land to be annexed to the CFD, and 

Government Code section 53319, and 

Recorder, County of San Diego, State of California to which map reference is hereby made for 
further particulars. The territory now proposed to be annexed to the CFD is as shown on 
Annexation Map No.2 to the CFD on file with the Clerk of the Board, the boundaries of which 
territory are hereby preliminarily approved and which map is incorporated in full herein by 
reference. The Clerk of the Board is hereby directed to record, or cause to be recorded, said map 
showing the territory to be annexed to the CFD in the office of the County Recorder of the County 
of San Diego within fifteen days of the date of adoption of this Resolution. 

WHEREAS, under the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended (the "Act"), 
Chapter 2.5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, commencing at section 53311 of the California 
Government Code, the Board of Directors (the "Board") of the Valley Center Fire Protection District 
(the "District") has conducted proceedings to establish Community Facilities District No. 2008-1 
(the "CFD"), and 

WHEREAS, the Board is the legislative body for the CFD and is empowered with the authority to 
annex territory to the CFD and now desires to undertake proceedings to annex territory to the 
CFD, and 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting institution proceedings to annex territory to Community Facilities 
District No.2008-1 District has been received from landowners owning not less than 10% of the 

WHEREAS, the petition dated August 23, 2022 has been found to meet the requirements of 

WHEREAS, this Board, having received indications of interest from the owner of the areas of land 
proposed to be annexed to the CFD, now desires to proceed with the annexation to the CFD in 
order to finance the balance of the costs of certain public services and facilities necessary or 
incident to development in the CSD. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Valley Center Fire 
Protection District as follows: 

1. This Board hereby finds and determines that public convenience and necessity require that 
territory be added to the CFD be formed and that the Board is authorized to conduct proceedings 
for the annexation of territory to the CFD pursuant to the Act. 

2. The name of the existing CFD is "Community Facilities District No. 2008-1." 

3. The territory included in the existing CFD is as shown on the map thereof filed in Book 42 of 
Maps of Assessment and Community Facilities Districts at Page 27 in the office of the County 

1 of 3 



 

  
 

      
    

     

  
 

     
    

  
   

 
  

   
 

   
 

   
  

    
 

 
  

   
  

       
   

   
 

    
 

   
     

    
    

 
  
  

   
    

  
   

    
   

   
 

   
    

 
     

4. The types of services financed by the CFD and pursuant to the Act consist of those services 
(the "Services") described in Exhibit A to Resolution 2008-09, adopted by the Board on May 29, 
2008 (the "Resolution of Formation"). It is presently intended that the Services will be shared, 
without preference or priority, by the existing territory in the CFD and the territory proposed to be 
annexed to the CFD. 

5. Except to the extent that the funds are otherwise available to the CFD to pay for the Services, a 
special tax sufficient to pay the costs thereof is intended to be levied annually within the CFD and 

summarizing the provisions hereof hereby specifically approved. 

9. Except as may otherwise be provided by law or by the rate and method of apportionment of the 
special tax for the CFD, all lands owned by any public entity, including the United States, the State 
of California and/or the District, or any departments or political subdivisions thereof, shall be 
omitted from the levy of the Special Tax to be made to cover the costs and expenses of the 

collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad valorem property taxes. The 
proposed rate and method of apportionment of the special tax among the parcels of real property 
within the CFD, as now in existence and following the annexation proposed herein, in sufficient 
detail to allow each landowner within the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD to estimate 
the maximum amount such owner will have to pay are described in detail in Exhibit A attached to 
the Resolution of Formation, which by this reference is incorporated herein. 

6. The Board shall hold a public hearing (the "Hearing") on the annexation of territory to the CFD 
and the proposed Rate and Method of Apportionment at 6 p.m., or as soon thereafter as 
practicable, on October 20, 2022, at the Valley Center Municipal Water District, at 29300 Valley 
Center Road, Valley Center, California. At the hearing, the Board will consider and finally 
determine whether the public interest, convenience and necessity require the annexation of 
territory to the CFD. Should the Board determine to annex territory to the CFD, a special election 
will be held to authorize the levy of the special tax in accordance with the procedures contained in 
Government Code section 53326. If held, the proposed voting procedure at the election is 
expected to be a landowner vote with each landowner of record as of the close of the Hearing 
having one vote for each acre of land or portion thereof owned within the territory to be annexed to 
the CFD. Ballots for the special election may be distributed by mail or by personal service. At the 
time and place set forth above for the Hearing, any interested person, including all persons owning 
lands or registered to vote within the proposed CFD, may appear and be heard. 

7. The District may accept advances of funds or work-in-kind from any source, including, but not 
limited to, private persons or private entities, for any authorized purpose, including, but not limited 
to, paying any cost incurred by the District in the annexation of territory to the CFD. The District 
may enter into an agreement with the person or entity advancing the funds or work-in-kind, to 
repay all or a portion of the funds advanced, or to reimburse the person or entity for the value, or 
cost, whichever is less, of the work-in-kind, as determined by this Board, with or without interest. 

8. The District Secretary is hereby directed to cause notice of the public hearing to be given by 
publication one time in a newspaper published in the area of the CFD. The publication shall be 
completed at least seven days before the date of the public hearing in Section 6. The Secretary 
shall also cause notice of the hearing to be given to each property owner within the CFD by first 
class mail, postage prepaid, to each such owner's addresses as it appears on the most recent tax 
records of the District or as otherwise known to the Secretary to be correct. Such mailed notice 
shall be completed not less than fifteen days before the date of the public hearing. Each of the 
notices shall be substantially in the form specified in section 53322 of the Act, with the form 

2 of 3 



 

  
 

  
   

 
   

     
  

 

    
    

  
 

    
     

 
  
 

  
  

 
 

  
 
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 

____________________________ 

Services and the CFD. In the event that a portion of the property within the CFD shall become for 
any reason exempt, wholly or in part, from the levy of the special tax, this Board will, on behalf of 
the CFD, increase the levy to the extent necessary upon the remaining property within the CFD 
that is not exempt in order to yield the required revenues to pay for the Services and other annual 
expenses of the CFD, if any, subject to the provisions of the rate and method of apportionment of 
the special tax. 

10. The officers, employees and agents of the District are hereby authorized and directed to do 

the 15th day of September, 2022 by the following vote: 

Ayes: 
Noes: 
Absent: 
Abstain: 

ATTEST: 

any and all things and to execute and deliver any and all documents which they may deem 
necessary or advisable in order to carry out, give effect to and comply with the terms and intent of 
this resolution. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Valley Center Fire Protection District on 

President, Board of Directors 

____________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Directors 

3 of 3 



    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

STAFF REPORTS 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PACKET 

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 



                                                                                    
                                                                                                    
                                                                                               
 

  
 

 

  
    

  
 

 
 

 
     

 
 

     
    

  
   
   
    
           
     
    
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VALLEY CENTER 
FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

28234 Lilac Road, Valley Center, CA  92082 
(760) 751-7600  Fax (760) 749-3892 

Website:  vcfpd.org 
September 15, 2022 

Fire Chief’s Report 
Valley Center Fire Protection District Board 

1. The Valley Center Fire Department had a busy month with Emergency Incidents, Station 
Tours/Charity Dinner / Ice Cream Social, Community Events, Training, Apparatus and Facilities 
Projects. North County GMC $5000.00 Donation to the Fire Foundation 

2. ALS Program: Community CPR Program revitalized with new Instructors 
3. Operational Area Update: Vegetation Fires in the Region 
4. Local and Regional Training: Pump Pod, Driver Operator and EVOC Training 
5. Cal Fire Valley Center Battalion: Station 71 is now staffed with 2 type 3s, 3/0 each 
6. Law Enforcement / Fire /Tribal Interagency Operations: Ag Pass and Evacuation Committee 
7. Fire Station 3 Development: Erickson-Hall in Design Phase 
8. ISO Update: Class 2-2X Designation 

Valley Center Fire Station 1 Valley Center Fire Station 2 
28234 Lilac Road 28205 N. Lake Wohlford Road 

Valley Center, CA 92082 Valley Center, CA 92082 

https://vcfpd.org


                                                                                    
                                                                                                    
                                                                                               
 

   
 

  

  

 
 
 

 

 
 

  

 
 
 
 

  

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 

  
 

  

 
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

  

   
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
  

 
 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

             
             

             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             

             
  

             
 

             
 
             

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

    

              

     
 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
             

 

  
   
    
   
  

 
 

 
    

                               
    
           
         

  
  

                     
            

VCFPD OPERATIONAL REPORT: August, 2022 

Monthly Incident Data: 
VCFPD 

Station 1 
E161 

VCFPD 
Station 2 

E162 

VCFPD 
Station 2 
OES WT 

VCFPD 
Station 2 

RS162 

VCFPD 
Admin 

Command 

VCFPD 
Admin 

Prevention 
Auto Aid 
Received 

Auto Aid 
Given 

Total 
Incidents Turnout 

Time 
Travel 
Time 

Response 
Time 

Total 
Incidents 

Total 
Incidents 

Total 
Incidents 

Total 
Incidents 

Total 
Incidents 

Total 
Incidents 

Total 
Incidents 

Total 
Incidents 

Total 
VCFPD 

Incidents 
90th 

Percentile 
90th 

Percentile 
90th 

Percentile 

JAN 99 45 3 71 7 1 44 35 174 0:02:14 0:09:42 0:11:18 
FEB 94 50 2 83 6 2 31 32 177 0:02:02 0:14:10 0:15:07 

MAR 112 80 2 89 14 2 42 36 202 0:02:14 0:11:52 0:13:31 
APR 114 51 1 59 19 4 51 29 183 0:01:57 0:12:01 0:13:37 
MAY 120 62 1 71 8 2 36 37 204 0:02:26 0:11:40 0:14:05 
JUN 136 58 0 96 13 3 66 27 222 0:02:04 0:10:21 0:12:04 
JUL 108 46 0 73 12 2 37 24 173 0:02:09 0:11:58 0:12:38 
AUG 106 51 0 74 5 4 50 31 181 0:1:58 0:12:41 0:13:10 
SEP 
OCT 
NOV 
DEC 
Last Month 
Incidents 108 46 0 73 12 2 37 24 173 0:02:09 0:11:58 0:12:38 
2021 Year 
End Total 1209 535 41 801 86 25 604 358 2138 0:02:19 0:14:08 0:15:56 
2022 
Year to Date 889 443 9 616 84 20 357 251 1516 0:2:19 0:13:17 0:14:30 
YTD % 
Change 6% -14% -10% 
Concurrent 
Incidents 

Total 
Incidents 

Two 
Concurrent 
Incidents 

Three 
Concurrent 
Incidents 

Four 
Concurrent 
Incidents 

Five 
Concurrent 
Incidents 

Two 
Concurrent 
Incidents 

Three 
Concurrent 
Incidents 

Four 
Concurrent 
Incidents 

Five 
Concurrent 
Incidents 

August 2022 181 49 9 1 0 27.07% 4.97% .55% 0.00% 

Mercy USA Mercy 
Medic 11 

Mercy 
Medic 52 

Mercy Medic 
70 

Mercy 
Medic 71 

Mercy
Medic 75 

Total Unit 
Responses 

Total Unit 
Transports 

90th 
Percentile 
Turnout 

90th 
Percentile 

Travel 

90th 
Percentile 
Response 

Ambulance 
Responses 11 0 13 62 7 93 81 0:3:56 0:22:51 0:25:10 

Firefighters in the program: 28 
• Firefighter Driver Operators: 1 
• Firefighter Paramedics: 11 
• Firefighter EMTs: 17 
• Fire Explorers: 10 

Apparatus and Equipment: 

Station 1: 
• E-161 – In Service E-169 – In Reserve 
• C-1601 - In Service  
• C-1602 - In Service C-1603 – In Service 
• P-1650 - In Service CP-1616 - In Service 

Station 2: 
• E-162 – In Service E-168 – In Shop Status 
• RS-162 – In Service OES WT62 - In Service 

Valley Center Fire Station 1 Valley Center Fire Station 2 
28234 Lilac Road 28205 N. Lake Wohlford Road 

Valley Center, CA 92082 Valley Center, CA 92082 



                                                                                    
                                                                                                    
                                                                                               
 

 
   

 
     
       
         
      
       
    
     

 
   

 
    

 
  

 
    
   
    

 
 

 
    
   
    
    
  

 
   

 
          

  

 
 

       

Special Training and Future Community Events: 

• Valley Center Fire Safe Council: Chipping Days Pending 
• September 10, 2022 at 6pm: Valley Center High School Football Game, 9-11 Remembrance 
• September 11, 2022 at 5pm Fire Station 1: Patriot Day Celebration and Reading of the Names 
• Planning Group Evacuation Sub-Committee Meeting: September 22, 2022 on Zoom 6:30pm 
• October 1, 2022, 0900 to 1500: Safety Fair and EXPO at Bates Nut Farm 
• December 3, 2022, 5:00pm to 8:00pm Fire Department Christmas Party at Fire Station 1 
• December 9, 2022, 5:00pm to 8:00pm Christmas in the Valley at Bates Nut Farm 

Legislative / Political Updates: 

Tax Apportionment Education Meetings: Supervisor Joel Anderson on September 14th 

Grants/Awards FY-20-21: 

• Safer Grant Application 2022: in process 
• Health and Safety Grant 2022: in process 
• AFG Grant Application 2023: in process 

Significant Incidents/Station Activities: 

• Rescue Traffic Collision: Cole Grade Road and Chris Dee 
• Vegetation Fire: Paradise Mountain Road at Muchenu Way 
• Rescue Traffic Collison: 29277 Valley Center Road 
• Working Structure Fire: 14108 Margarita Lane 
• Kitchen Fire: 14289 Coeur De Alene 

Trauma Intervention Program (TIP): 

• 2 TIP responses for the month of August 2022 to Valley Center. TIP is responding directly to the scene 
or hospital as requested by our Fire Captains. 

Josef G. Napier 
Fire Chief, Valley Center Fire Protection District 

Valley Center Fire Station 1 Valley Center Fire Station 2 
28234 Lilac Road 28205 N. Lake Wohlford Road 

Valley Center, CA 92082 Valley Center, CA 92082 



MEMORANDUM 

DA TE: September 8, 2022 

TO: Joe Napier, Fire Chief, Valley Center Fire Protection District 

FROM: Robin Biglione, Biglione Construction Management 

SUBJECT: Update on Erickson-Hall Design-Build Agreement Progress 

Temporary Fire Station No. 3 

A summary of the changes to the Temporary Fire Station No. 3 conceptual plan follows. More 
details are provided in the attached drawing. 

The entire northerly portion of the site is dedicated to on-site wastewater treatment, with no mass 
grading. The temporary fire station is relocated to the area of the future administration building 
pad. 

The revised plan will minimize the length of the access road and the length of electrical and 
water utility extension to the site. The location for the utilities is the main project driveway for 
the permanent fire station, which will reduce costs for the future project. More extensive grading 
will be required to create the pad for the temporary fire station in the new location, but this 
grading will save work in the future, by providing the rough grading for the future station, 
maintenance building, administration building and training area. 

Design Progress on Remodel Work 

The design team has been working with FPD staff and has incorporated a few rounds of review 
comments into revised conceptual drawings. A description ofwhat is included in the remodel 
plan for each Station follows and conceptual drawings for each remodel are attached. 

Station 1 Remodel Work 

The plans include replacement of the front roll up doors to increase the height of the opening, 
allowing taller vehicles to enter the apparatus bay. 

The remodel work includes replacement of the HV AC systems for both the office side and the 
living side, a new compressor with an enclosure is included for the apparatus bay, and the 
following work is included for the living side of the building. 



Reconfiguration of the crew "dorms" to include three spaces that will have partitions 
and curtains to provide privacy. The lockers in the crew dorm area will be 
reconfigured to allow some additional dorm space, while retaining as many of the 
lockers as possible. New LVT flooring is included in the dorm area. 
A complete remodel of the crew bathroom including L VT flooring, a new shower, 
and a new vanity. 
Reconfiguration of the kitchen to move the water heater closer to the bathroom and 
line up the refrigerators, which are being relocated from the apparatus bay, along the 
wall toward the kitchen from the relocated water heater. 
The kitchen will include new appliances and additional cabinets above the relocated 
refrigerators. A new pantry area is included at the dayroom end of the kitchen. New 
countertops and L VT flooring are included in the kitchen. 
The dayroom is reconfigured at the back of the living area with room for three chairs 
and a TV viewing area. L VT flooring in the dayroom area is also included. 

Station 2 Remodel Work 

The plans include replacement of the front roll and rear roll up doors to increase the height of the 
openings, allowing taller vehicles to enter and exit the apparatus bay. 

New concrete is included for the area in the rear of the station from the automated gate to the 
apparatus bay. An additional concrete area outside of the covered patio is being studied for a 
pickleball court. The size and exact location of this additional concrete is still being refined. 

The remodel work includes replacement of the HV AC system and the following work is included 
for the living area of the building. 

The dorm area is reworked to include partitions and curtains to increase privacy. 
New LVT flooring is also included in the dorm area. 
A new 36-inch high counter and sink area in the men's restroom is included. 
The kitchen includes new countertops and appliances and new L VT flooring, which 
will extend into the dayroom. 
The refrigerators will be relocated from the laundry room into an expanded kitchen 
area, in the location of the existing double doors. Cabinets will be located above the 
refrigerators and a coffee station with a cabinet below will be located on the dayroom 
side of the refrigerators. 

- New upper and lower cabinets and a new countertop area are included on the side of 
the kitchen opposite the refrigerators 

Next Steps 

1. Refine the Station No. 2 plan to define the extent of the new concrete. 
2. Complete on-site percolation testing in new leach line area. 
3. Once 1 and 2 above are completed, provide an estimate of probable cost, based on the 

refined scope, for discussion. 

2 



~ (N)AUTOMATIC 

(N) WALL ROLL-UP DOOR l TYP2 ' 

(N)LIGHT 
1 

-~-------------- -------------------------- -- -------------,
IFIXTURES, TYP ~ f I* Pi'i -----------U I 

(N) FURNITURES FOR 
3 CREW PERSONNEL 

(N) CURTAIN & 
TRACK,TYP ---

(N) FLOORING (LVT) 

I 
I 
I 
I 

W_ 
~ I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

(N) FLOORING (L VT) 

i,, 
.;.I ' I 

I (E) SECTIONAL ' 
I PATIOW/ ' DOORW/(N) I ' I 1'> 
I TRELLIS I MOTOR, TYP2 .;.
I I 
I I 
I COVER 
I Ic _______c_ _____ _ _a 

V I - I~ I i 
I 

----i-......---1---+----

I _ I •~ ,,-r-
1 : 

:
I 
I
I 
I 
I 
I 

1 i 

.. .... / 

1 
lf=:1 • 

I 

(E) CASEWORK, 
REPAIR 

APPARATUS BAY 

I 

01 l 
I 

(N) COMPRESSOR 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I.I - .'1:::::7 I b6J.+ (N)4"CONC SLAB 
I 
I 
I I !W ,I

'-, r--------· 
I I 

4'-6" ,l 3•.s· 

FLOOR PLAN - REMODEL 0 5· 10' 20' 40' VALLEY CENTER FIRE STATION 1EB 



r----------------------------------------------------7I I 
I 
I 

' ' ' ' COVERED PATIO 

i 
' 

~-------------------------------~ 
'------ I 

I-

TRACK, TYP---------.-1--, 

KITCHEN 
I 
1, 
I 
I 
I 
J RECREATION 

/ ROOM 
• ■ 

RECEPTION 

________________________ JI 

(N)FULL HT 
CASEWORK 

(N) AUTOMATIC 
ROLL-UP DOOR AT 
EXTERIOR 

I 

(N) FLOORING (LVT) 

APPARATUS BAY 

(N) AUTOMATIC 
ROLL-UP DOOR AT 
EXTERIOR 

L_______________________________ J 

(N) CURTAIN & 

(N) FLOORING (LVT) 

(N) FURNITURES FOR 5 
CREW PERSONNEL ---r' 

I NEBFLOOR PLAN - REMODEL 0 5' 10' 20' 40' VALLEY CENTER FIRE STATION 2 



---- ----

::::::---_ 

::::::---_ 

(E) CONC. WALK 

L(E) LANDSCAPE-
{E) CONC. PAVING 

EXISTING FIRE 
STATION NO. 2 

~I 
(E)A.C • • (E)CONC. 
PAVING IPAVING 

C 
a: 
0 ... ..., 
:c 

~I !. (E) LANDSCAPE -
~I" ..., 

w 

< 
::::; 

z iI 
25 
f 

L 

:::;--__ 

7 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

!' I(E)PARKING 
AREA 

$ 

<(r#1/
/(E)CONC. I!! 

PAVING1 

I 
I 

I 

I 

_/ 
I 

PROPERTY LINE 

EXISTING SITE PLAN 0 20' 40' BO' 160' VALLEY CENTER FIRE STATION 2EB 



-------- ' 
' ' 

.... (1 ...... 

' ' 
' ' - - - - - - - - LEACH FIELD'' 

~141.l"_, 

0,¥ 

FIRE 
TRAINING 
AREA 

' ' ' ' 

' 

', 

' ' 

', 

' ' ' 

..... 

' 

\ 

\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 

' ~ 

~ 
lb70 

... 

,,, .. 

~ 

~ 

-
~ 
~ 
"--

"'' 

AGGREGATE BASE 

A.C. PAVING 

CONCRETE PAVING, 4,000 PSI, 8' THICK 
WITH #4 REBAR@ 11!' O.c. EACH WAY 
SAW CUT JOINT 

CHAIN LINK FENCE,6'-0' HIGH MIN. 

FIRE HYDRANT 

@ PIPE BOLl.ARDS,TVP 

@ ROLLING GATE 

® GATE OPERATOR ON 4' HIGH CONCRETE HOUSEKEEPING PAD 

® WHEEL STOP, TVP 

@ 4' WIDE PARKING STRIPING, PAINTED WHITE 

® ROLLING GATE TRACK 

® 4' WIDE STRIPING, PAIHTB) BLUE, TVP 

@ STAIRS, TVP 

® 20' X40'·2' TENT STRUCTURE, DEFERRED APPROVAL 

® 12' X60' MOBILE HOME, DEFERRED APPROVAL 

® RAMP WI TOP ANO INTERMEOIATE LANDING, 8.33'1i MAX SLOPE 

@ A.C. CURB, TVP 

@ PROPANE TANK 

@ EMERGENCY GENERATOR 

SITE PLAN 0 20' 40' ao· 160' VALLEY CENTER TEMPORARY STATION 3EB 



Community Risk Reduction Division 
Fire Marshal's Report 
August 2022 
Significant Events since last report: 

• Lots of work on Consolidated Fire Code (First reading is in this packet) 
• Shea (Summer) and Beazer (Porches) developments finished final phases in Park Circle 
• Margarita Lane structure fire 
• Recycling Center fire 





Business of Prevention in August: 

Item Name Items 
Sold 

Custom Amount 1 

3.1.1 Commercial Plans (Building or sprinkler plans and resubmittals) 2 

3.1.4 Special Fire Protection Installations 1 

3.3.11 Commercial Fire False Alarm 1 

3.3.8 Commercial Solar Plan Review 1 

4.14 Service Availability Letter 2 

4.16 Other Services Not Listed (Per Hour) 5 

112.4 Stop work failure to comply 1 

2.1.1 New Residential or Remodel Plan Review (Any type, includes inspections) 22 

2.1.3 Residential Fire Sprinklers NFPA 13-D or N FPA 13-R (includes 2 inspections) 22 

2.3.2 Accessory Dwelling Unit Plan Review (Includes 2 Inspections) 1 

2.3.4 Barns and Outbuildings (500 sq ft and over and under 4,000 sq ft) 1 

2.3.6 Minor Grading Plan 1 



Total Lots in Project 632 

Lots Sold to Developers 632 

Lots Unsold 0 

Lots In Progress 225 

Lots Remaining 78 

Lots Finalized 329 

Mitigation Total $1,042,199.10 

Mitigation Remaining $159,845.10 

Mitigation Complete $882,354.00 

Plan Check Total $376,040.00 

Plan Check Remaining $46,410.00 

Plan Check Complete $329,630.00 

Park Circle/Orchard Run Lots 

632 

_j 

Park Circle/Orchard Run Lots in Development 

..... •. ,._ .. J.. 
Lots In Progress

:.'• ,__.'. ·, ···r: : 

Lots Remaining 

Mitigation Remaining 

Plan Oieck Remaining I 

Plan Check complete 

Plan Reviews and Inspections 
Plan Lots Finalized 

Month Olk ltydlQ 

December 2020 11 3 

January 2021 3 4 

February 2021 16 0 0 
March 2021 45 5 0 

April 2021 0 9 J 
May2021 60 2 • Par!< Circle/Otchard Hun Mit1gat1on Totals 
June 2021 19 14 • 
July 2021 21 30 Q 

August 2021 63 18 25 

September 2021 21 23 lZ 

October 2021 36 32 4 

November 2021 0 39 Z6 

December 2021 68 29 n 
January 2022 14 29 • 

February 2022 21 27 M 
March 2022 49 24 s. Mitigation Complete 

April 2022. 36 2.0 Z1 

May 2022 13 34 19 I 
June 2022 7 18 JS Park Circle/Orchard Run Plan Check Fees 

July 2022 2.4 27 2 
August 2022 21 19 42 

September 2022 0 0 0 
October 2022 0 0 0 

November 2022 0 0 0 

December 2022 0 0 0 
January 2023 

Totals 548 406 all 



Park Circle Development - Summer {Shea Homes) 
Mirar De Valle/ VC Road 

Shea Lots 

Date: 09/07/2022 

Total Lots: 88 

Plan Check Complete: 0 

Lots Remaining 0 

Finaled 88 

Mitigation Total: $120,778.62 

Mitigation Remaining: $0.00 

Mitigation Complete: $120,778.62 

Plan Check Total: $52,360.00 

Plan Check Remaining: $0.00 

Plan Check Complete: $52,360.00 

Inspections Remaining 

Hydros Remaining: 0 

Finals Remaining: 0 

Total: 0 

Plan Reviews and Inspections 

Month 
Plan 
Chk Hydro Final 

December 2020 0 0 0 
January 2021 0 4 0 

February 2021 16 0 0 

March 2021 31 0 0 

April 2021 0 0 3 

May2021 0 2 0 
June 2021 0 14 0 

July 2021 0 11 0 

August2021 33 13 8 

September 2021 s 9 0 

October 2021 0 9 0 

November 2021 0 12 8 

December 2021 0 7 25 

January 2022 0 1 0 
February 2022 0 0 6 

March2022 0 6 JS 

April 2022 0 0 12 
May 2022 0 0 5 

June 2022 0 0 6 

July 2022 0 0 0 
Totals as 88 a 

Shea Mitigation Totals 

--=----rr-...., 
■ ' :... 

f; 

~ 

1\ 
>-

)'II I 

.•11 r, -~ ,_ ,. 
0-

,;-·
.;,-· 

Shea Plan Check Fees 



Date: 09/07/2022 

Total Lots: 64 

Lots in progress: 0 

Lots Remaining 

Lots Finalized: 

Mitigation Total: $124,202.36 

Mitigation Remaining: $0.00 

Mitigation Complete: $124,202.36 

Plan Check Total: $38,080.00 

Plan Check Remaining: $0.00 

Plan Check Complete: $38,080.00 

Park Circle Development - Porches (Beazer) 
Mirar De Valle/ VC Road 

Beazer - Porches Lots 

~I 

I 

Inspections Remaining 

Hydros Remaining: 

Finals Remaining: 

Total: ~ 
0 

I 
Plan Reviews and Inspections 

Plan 
Month Chk Hydro Flnal 

December 2020 11 3 0 

January 2021 0 0 3 

February 2021 0 0 0 

March 2021 14 5 0 

April 2021 0 6 0 

May2021 23 0 5 

June 2021 0 0 6 

July 2021 0 5 0 

August 2021 0 4 0 

September 2021 0 5 5, 

October 2021 0 6 4 

November 2021 0 0 s 
December 2021 6 8 0 

January 2022 0 4 6 

February 2022 7 5 6 

March 2022 0 6 6 

April 2022 0 0 5 

May2022 0 6 1 

June 2022 0 1 4 

July 2022 0 0 0 

Totals 61 64 64 

Beazer - Porches Mitigation Totals 

<~~ 
_. I I II..' 1 - ~ 

"· J- ■- ~I' I
· ~ •rr .~----, . .:'-:....,;:,.., =· r11,::,.,.· 
ILi. - .i._ -■ ... ■ 
11""~- -~-- • -·- ••• "- I 

·JJ_, rlJ. 
'.}....~ 

Beazer - Porches Plan Check Fees 



Park Circle Development - Trailside (Beazer) 
Mirar De Valle/ VC Road 

Date: 09/07/2022 

Total Lots: 79 

Lots in progress: 44 

lots Remaining 20 

Lots Finalized: 15 

M itigation Total: $127,892.32 

Mitigation Remaining: $32,377.92 

Mitigation Complete: $95,514.40 

Plan Check Total: $47,005.00 

Pla n Check Remaining: $11,900.00 

Plan Check Complete: $35,105.00 

Beazer - Trailside Lots 

lots Finalized : 

Lots in progress: 

55.7%
Lots Remaining 

25.33/e 

Inspections Remaining 

Hydros Remaining: 46 

Finals Remaining: 64 

Total : 110 

Plan Reviews and Inspections 

Month 
Plan 
Chk Hydro Flnal 

December 2020 0 0 0 

January 2021 0 0 0 

February 2021 0 0 0 

March 2021 0 0 0 

April 2021 0 0 0 

May2021 0 0 0 

June 2021 0 0 0 

July 2021 0 0 0 

August2021 0 0 0 

September 2021 0 0 0 

October 2021 5 0 0 

November 2021 0 5 0 

December 2021 10 0 0 

January 2022 14 0 0 

February 2022 0 10 0 

March 2022 10 0 5 

April 2022 20 8 0 . 
May2022 0 0 10 

June 2022 0 6 0 

July 2022 0 0 0 

Totals 59 33 15 

Beazer Trailside Mitigation Totals 

Mitigation Remaining: 

Mitigation Complete: 

Beazer Trailside Plan Check Fees 

Pian Check 

25 3% 

Plan Check 

25 



Orchard Run Development - Sundance (KB Homes) 
Mirar De Valle 

KB Lots 

Date: 09/07/2022 

Total Lots: 128 

Lots in progress: 43 

Lots Remaining 1 

Lots Finalized: 84 

Mitigation Total: $218,544.00 

Mitigation Remaining: $1,597.32 

Mitigation Complete: $216,946.68 

Plan Check Total: $76,160.00 

Plan Check Remaining: $595.00 

Plan Check Complete: $75,565.00 

Lots in progress: 

336% 

Lots Finalized : 
Lots Remaining 

KB Mitigation Totals 

Inspections Remaining 

Hydros Remaining: 23 

Finals Remaining: 44 

Total: 67 

Plan Reviews and Inspections 

Month 
Plan 
Chk Hydro Final 

December 2020 0 0 0 

January 2021 3 0 0 

February 2021 0 0 0 

March 2021 0 0 0 

April 2021 0 3 0 

May 2021 32 0 3 

June 2021 19 0 0 

July 2021 15 14 0 

August 2021 0 1 14 

September 2021 0 4 7 

October 2021 15 13 0 

November 2021 0 0 10 

December 2021 17 0 7 

January 2022 0 12 0 

February 2022 0 4 9 

March 2022 26 0 10 

April 2022 0 7 0 

May2022 0 16 0 

June 2022 0 6 10 

July 2022 0 15 2 

Totals 127 105 84 

Mitigation Remaining::r·---_-..... 
~ -~ 

I 
t --- I 

'"'.w,::;.(<.'.~- , r-Mitigation Complete : 

"l ~-~~~:~~~ 

KB Plan Check Fees 

Pian Check 

Plan Check 

!'!9.2% 



·
Plan Reviews and Inspections 

Month 
Plan 
Chk Hydro Final 

December 2020 0 0 0 

January 2021 0 0 

February 2021 0 0 

March 2021 0 0 

April 2021 0 0 0 

May 2021 2 0 0 

June 2021 0 0 0 

July 2021 0 0 0 

August 2021 30 0 0 

September 2021 0 2 0 

October 2021 0 0 0 

November 2021 0 15 0 

December 2021 22 10 0 

January 2022 0 s 2 

February 2022 14 0 10 

March 2022 0 0 20 

April 2022 0 0 0 

May2022 0 5 0 

June 2022 7 4 0 

July 2022 24 12 0 

Totals 120 55 45 

Park Circle Development - Kyra (Meritage) 
Lilac Rd/ Betsworth 

Meritage (Kyra) Lots 

Date: 09/07/2022 

Total Lots: 120 

Lots in progress: 75 

Lots Remaining 0 

Lots Finalized: 45 

Mitigation Total: $203,004.06 

Mitigation Remaining: $0.00 

Mitigation Complete: $203,004.06 

Plan Check Total: $71,400.00 

Plan Check Remaining: $0.00 

Plan Check Complete: $71,400.00 

I Lots Finalized: 

Lots in progress: 

Inspections Remaining 

Hydros Remaining: 65 

Finals Remaining: 75 

Total: 140 

Meritage (Kyra) Mitigation Totals 
--~--- -- t,: 

.. • ;, 

.:""'· -I - .-.._. 
. .J ~.-~-,. 
-· --.• -. • .. 1'·-sr: · ~ :, ~ I

I • r,.'!f '• __ .J - fl. -~,,---
.. _=....---.•;..• ■ -·--

:1Meritage (Kyra) Plan Check Fees 



Orchard Run Development - Seasons (Richmond-American Homes) 
Mirar De Valle 

Richmond American Lots 

Date: 09/07/2022 

Total Lots: 101 

Lots in progress: 31 

Lots Remaining 37 

Lots Finalized: 33 

Mitigation Total: $190,986.46 

Mitigation Remaining: $69,078.58 

Mitigation Complete: $121,907.88 

Plan Check Total: $60,095.00 

Plan Check Remaining: $22,015.00 

Plan Check Complete: $38,080.00 

Lots in progress:Lots Finalized : 

7% 

Lots Remaining 

Richmond American Mitigation Totals 

Inspections Remaining 

Hydros Remaining: 64 

Finals Remaining: 68 

Total: 132 

Plan Reviews and Inspections 

Month 
Plan 
Chk Hydro Final 

December 2020 0 0 0 

January 2021 0 0 0 

February 2021 0 0 0 

March2021 0 0 0 

April 2021 0 0 0 

May2021 3 0 0 

June 2021 0 0 0 

July 2021 6 0 0 

August 2021 0 0 3 

September 2021 16 3 0 

October 2021 0 0 0 

November 2021 0 3 3 

December 2021 13 0 0 

January 2022 0 3 0 

February 2022 0 4 3 

March 2022 13 8 3 

April 2022 0 5 4 

May2022 13 7 3 

June 2022 0 1 5 

July 2022 0 0 0 

Totals 64 37 33 

Mitigation Remaining: 

36.2% 

Mitigation Complete: 

638% 

Richmond American Plan Check Fees 

Plan Check 

Plan Oieck 



Orchard Run Development - Wildflower Multifamily (Infill Development) 
Mirar De Valle 

Date: 09/07/2022 

Total Lots: 52 

Lots in progress: 32 

Lots Remaining 20 

Lots Finalized: 0 

Mitigation Total: $56,791.28 

Mitigation Remaining: $56,791.28 

Mitigation Complete: $0.00 

Plan Check Total: $30,940.00 

Plan Check Remaining: $11,900.00 

Plan Check Complete: $19,040.00 

Inspections Remaining 

Hvdros Remaining: 48 

Finals Remaining: 52 

Total: 100 

Plan Reviews and Inspections 

Month 
Plan 
Chk Hydro Final 

December 2020 0 0 0 

January 2021 0 0 0 

February 2021 0 0 0 

March 2021 0 0 0 

April 2021 0 0 0 

Mav 2021 0 0 0 

June 2021 0 0 0 

July 2021 0 0 0 

August 2021 0 0 0 

September 2021 0 0 0 

October 2021 16 4 0 

November 2021 0 4 0 

December 2021 0 4 0 

January 2022 0 4 0 

February 2022 0 4 0 

March 2022 0 4 0 

April 2022 16 0 0 

May2022 0 0 0 

June 2022 0 0 0 

July 2022 0 0 0 

Totals 32 24 0 

Infill Lots 

Lots Remaining 

Lots in progress: 

Infill Mitigation Totals 

Infill Plan Check Fees 

Plan Check 

38.5% 

Plan Check 

61 5~,, 



    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

NEW BUSINESS 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PACKET 

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 





 

      
  

 
 

   

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

  
  

 
 

  
   

   
 

    
   

 
    

  
 

  
 

  
 

    
     

     
 
 
 

 
  

 
 
 
 

                        
 

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
Administrative Office & Fire Prevention Bureau 

28234 Lilac Road 
Valley Center, CA 92082 

Tel: 760-751-7600 Fax: 760-749-3892 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-49 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the annexation of described territory to the Community Facilities District 
2008-01 (the"CFD") was submitted to a vote by the landowner of the real property 
located within the jurisdictional boundaries of the CFD on August 22, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, three (3) votes (1 vote per acre) was cast by a proper mail ballot in favor 
of the levy of special taxes within the described territory of the CFD; and 

WHEREAS, a sufficient-number of votes were cast in favor of levying special taxes 
within the CFD; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that: 
The results of the election as sufficient to levy special taxes within the CFD are 
hereby certified. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Valley 
Center Fire Protection District, at a scheduled Regular Board Meeting thereof, this 
15th day of September, 2022 by a unanimous vote. 

______________________ 
Secretary 
Board of Directors 

Fire Station #72 Fire Station #73 
28234 Lilac Road 28205 N. Lake Wohlford Road 

Valley Center, CA 92082 Valley Center, CA 92082 



VALLEY CENTER 
FIRE PROTECTION 

DISTRICT 

2023 FIRE ORDINANCE 
Effective January 1, 2023 



Contents 
Section 1 REPEAL............................................................................................................ 11 

Section 2 ADOPTION ...................................................................................................... 11 

Section 3 REVISED .......................................................................................................... 12 

SEC. 101.5 VALIDITY .................................................................................................... 12 

Sec. 101.5 Validity ........................................................................................................ 12 

SEC. 102.13 REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES, RE$0~TIONS OR 
MOTIONS......................................................................................................................... 12 

Sec. 102.13 ....................................................................... , ........~···"· ............................... 12 

SEC. 104.9. MODIFICATIONS.................................~·.'.. .....'\.................. , .. , ........................ 12 

Sec. 104.9 Modifications ...................................~.,.................................. , ........................ 12 

SEC. 104.13 COST RECOVERY .................~~····· ..........~.......................... ·····~·~......... 13 

Sec. 104.13 Cost recovery .................................... , .......... y ....~.................. .:✓................. 13 

Sec. 104.13.1 Reimbursement reijuired ...................,.................................................. 13 

SEC. 105.3.9 EXPENSE RECOVER1\......--.-........................~ ............................................ 13 

Sec. 105.3.9 Expense recovery .....................~ .... ~......................,. .................................... 13 

SEC. 105.5.52.1 CHRISTMAS TREE Lois..... ....... ~ ........,,.{ ......................................... 13 

Sec. 105.5.52.1 Christmas tree lots .......... ~................-t................................................. 13 

SEC. 105.5.52.2 G.REENWAS BRECYCL G, MULCHING, COMPOSTING 
/,- . 

OPERA TIO NS AND .TORAGB.................................................................................... 14 

Sec. 105.5 . .5.2.2-.............. ~····· ..........~'Q!_······ ... ,,.................................................................. 14 

SEC. 105,:?'NEW-M;ATERIA:~S~ PROCESSES OR OCCUPANCIES WHICH 
REQlJJRE PERMITS ...,.... ;...........~···••...f.•• .. ···· ................................................................... 14 

S~c. 10f1 New materia,ls, .proce,ses or occupancies which require permits ................ 14 

SEC. 111 A'PJ>MLS........ ····~·.. ·· ....................................................................................... 14 

Sec. 111. 1 Regidn.al Fire,Appeals Board established .................................................... 14 

Sec. 111.2 Limitatj.o,qs· on authority.............................................................................. 14 

Sec. 111.3 Qualifications ............................................................................................... 15 

Sec. 111.4 Appeals procedures ..................................................................................... . 15 

Sec. 111.4.1 Appeals of determinations regarding building permits ......................... 15 

Sec. 111.4.2 Appeals of determinations regarding discretionary permits .................. 15 

Sec. 111. 4. 3 Appeals ofdeterminations for matters other than building permits or 
discretionary permits . ................................................................................................ . 15 

Page I of96 

https://Regidn.al


Sec. 111.5 Regional Fire Appeals Board ...................................................................... 16 

SEC. 112.4 VIOLATIONS, PENALTIES AND RESPONSIBILITY FOR 
COMPLIANCE................................................................................................................. 16 

Sec. 112.4 Violations, penalties and responsibilityfor compliance.............................. 16 

AMENDMENT TO SECTION 112.4 ........................................................................... 17 

Sec. 112.4 Violations, penalties and responsibility for compliance .......................... 17 

AMENDMENT TO SECTION 113.4 ....................................... ✓• ••••,.••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 17 -~ 
Sec. 113.4 Failure to comply .............................................<••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 17 

' 
SEC. 202 DEFINITIONS. ················································•··r······,·...:. ............................... 17 

SEC. 304.1.4 OUTDOOR CARNIVALS AND FAIR.8~.... ,\············..,. ... ~ ......................... 21 

SEC. 305.6 ROCKETS, MODEL AIRCRAFT ANP SIMtLAR DEVI~S•.................. 22 

SEC. 307.4.3 PORTABLE OUTDOOR FI~ACES...... ·······················~····,l.......... 22 

Sec. 307.4.3 Portable outdoor fireplaces. ·············~···..··•·r···:~..................I.; ................ 22 

SEC. 307.5 ATTENDANCE OF OP:PN BURNING A RECREATIONAL FIRES .. 22 

Sec. 307.5 Attendance.····················~··~· ..·-.,...······················-.:···.,.,•···~······························· 22 
SEC. 325. MID-RISE BUILDINGS ...... ..,...,.:•····~····~---................. , •.................................... 23 

Sec 325.1 General. ...................................,, ....;-'7........,""-........,,~ ......................................... 23 

Sec. 325.1.1 Automa~sp~er systems d standpipes ............................................ 23 

Sec. 325.1.2 Sm~'Ut!tectio ···•·················••t-"'••·~· .. ······················································ 23 

Sec. 325.1.3 Fire al~ s,ystem..ft••··-··········~·:y,····························································· 24 
Sec. 325.l·J.1. :Emeigency '(_Oi~e alann ~~fug system................................................ 24 

Sec. 1115.1.5 Fire cqtllllland ,nter................................................................................ 24 
' ~ 

Sdc. 425.L6 Annunci ·oo ident yation...................................................................... 25 

Sec. 325.J .7 Elevators............................ -....................................................................... 25 

Sec. 325.1.8-,fir~ departm~nt communication system ................................................... 25 

'Sec. 325.1.9 M~of'egress........................................................................................ 25 
' 

Sec. 325.1.9.1 EJtent of enclosure............................................................................. 25 

Sec. 325.1.9.2 Pressurized enclosures and stairways ................................................. 26 

Sec. 325.1.9.3 Vestibules ........................................................................................... 26 

Sec. 325.1.9.4 Pressure differences ............................................................................ 26 

Sec. 325.1.9.5 Locking of stairway doors .................................................................. 26 

SEC. 326 STORAGE OF FIREWOOD. (T14 1299.03 B2) Zone 2 ................................. 27 

Page2 of96 



Sec. 326.1 General. ........................................................................................................ 27 

SEC. 501.3.2 FIRE APPARATUS ACCESS MODIFICATIONS ................................... 27 

Sec. 501.3.2 Fire apparatus access modifications............................ ............................. 27 

SEC. 503 FIRE APPARATUS ACCESS ROADS ........................................................... 27 

Sec. 503.1 General. ........................................................................................................ 27 

503.1.1 Buildings and facilities .......... ......................... ................. .. ............................ 27 

~ 
Sec. 503.1.2 Additional access ..............................................,..,.

, 
..... ; ........................... . 28 

Sec. 503.1.2.1 Secondary Access When Required .......... , .......................................... 28 

Sec. 503.1.3 High-piled storage ............................... /4•···········~···••.•·· .. ························ 28 

503.2 Specifications................................ ............... ..-.';.t...,;., .. ~...........•. • ~ ••• 1:• ••••••••••••••••••••••• 29 
~~ 

Sec. 503.2.1 Dimensions ...............................,,. ................................... " .... --. ................. 29 

AMENDMENT TO SECTION 503.2.1 ........ ;.,; ... ~................ _.\. .......................... , .............. 30 

Sec. 503.2.1 Road phasing requirement for single~ dw~Uings on exfsting legal 
parcels...........................................................................~···"··········· .................................. 30 

,. 

Sec. 503.2.2 Authority to increase min!t;num~ ...•~.._................,...................................... 30 

TABLE 503.2.1-PHASING REQV{R:EMENT ............ ~··· ·' ···· :;.: ······························· 30 

Sec. 503.2.3 Surface. ······························T·'• ....,.1,........ ""!' ••••••,.. ........................................... 30 

Sec. 503.2.4 Roadw.ay.racllµs ~.................... , ................ ,-................................................. 31 

Sec. 503.2.5 De~ _en.ds............._, ................. .. ~..;. ····:····························· ............................ 31 

Sec. 503.2.5.1 Dead~ roads tum-arounc!/(equired ................................................. 31 

Sec. 503~:Z-_J.2 D.ead-enq roads ··········•~y••· .. ······· ..···········································.......... 31 
Sec. J03.2.6 Brid~ and ele~(ed su~faces................................................................... 32 

iS~ 503.2.6.1 Brid~s with one traffic lane .............................................................. 32 

Sec. 503.,i.1 Grade ............. ;••······················· ................................................................... 32 

Sec 503 .2~1.__. I' ·Cross-Slope.......... ............. .................................. ................... .............. 32 

Sec. 503.2.8 AngJes.ofApproach and Departure .......................................................... 32 

...Sec. 503.2.9 Road;way Turnouts ................. ...................................... ............................. 32 

Sec. 503.3 Marking ..................................... ................................................................... 33 

Sec. 503.3.1 Fire Lane Designation ........ ................................................................... 33 

Sec. 503.4 Obstruction of fire apparatus access roads.................................................. 33 

Sec. 503.4.1 Traffic calming devices . ..... ...................................... ... ..... .................... . 33 

Sec. 503.5 Required gates or barricades ........................................................................ 33 

Page 3 of96 

https://De~_en.ds


Sec. 503.5.1 Secured gates and barricades ................................................................. 33 

Sec. 503.5.2 School fences and gates ......................................................................... 33 

Sec. 503.6 Security gates ................................................... ~ ........................................... 34 

SEC. 505 PREMISES IDENTIFICATION ...................................................................... 35 

Sec. 505 .1 Address identification .................................................................................. 35 

Sec. 505.2 Street or road signs ...................................................................................... 35 

Sec 505.2.1 Traffic Access Limitations ................................-'•p-···¾················ ..········ 35 

Sec. 505.3 Easement address signs .................................... ..4.1 ........................................ 35 

Sec. 505.4 Directory map ..........................................................~···""······························ 36 

Sec. 505.5 Response map updates ..........................1.y~-~~············~···.),···················· .. ·· 36 

SEC. 506.1.3 EMERGENCY KEY ACCESS .....1.,,. ...................................~···""················· 36 

Sec. 506.1.3 Emergency key access..............."li·················•"··························1.............. 36 

SEC. 507.2 TYPE OF WATER SUPPLY. ················~···"r············································· 37 
Sec. 507.2 Type of water supply .....,_~., .........................."' .•.•........................................... 37 

Sec. 507.2.1 Private fire service m~...-..~·····················"···~-··4'······························· 37 

Sec. 507.2.2 Water tanks. ················•-.;~•··········"·····t;._·········· ..'JT················ ...................... 37 

TABLE 507.2.2 .........._u••···,········ .. ······· , ···"'f······ .... ··~···~·············································· 37 

SEC. 507.3 FIRE FLQW' ......."'...;., .................-t·•.•··············· ..············ .. ··························....... 38 

Sec. 507.3 Fire~.:,,. ............. .,,..................... ~···,··~···················· .. ··································· 38 
SEC. 507.5.7 FIRE HY~N,f~N:S EIRE V~LVE LOCATION................................ 39 

Sec. 507~:~~1 FJte ·hydrant -aµd"fire valve location .......................................................... 39 

Set.,'507.5.7.1 Si~irig, ofwatef·SOJJICes and fire department connections ................ 39 

SE~: 501..5:..8 WATERL¥,EXTrIONS................................................................... 39 

Sec. 507. 8'Waterline :Bx't¢nsions................................................................................ 39 

SEC. 605.3.1 SPftRK ARR;ESTERS ................................................................................. 39 

Sec. 605.3.1 Sp~~sters.......................................................................................... 39 

SEC. 605.8.1 RESIO'ENTIAL INCINERATORS ............................................................ 40 

Sec. 605.8.1 Residential Incinerators ............................................................................ 40 

SEC. 903.2 AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER SYSTEMS-WHERE REQUIRED ................. 40 

903 .2 Where required .................................................................................................... 40 

903.2 (a) Additions ..................................................................................................... 40 

903 .2 (b) Remodels or reconstructions ...................................................................... 41 

Page4 of96 



·

903.2 (c) Group U Occupancies ................................................................................. 41 

SEC. 903.4 AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER SYSTEM MONITORING AND ALARMS.. 41 

Sec. 903 .4 Automatic Sprinkler system supervision and alarms .................................. 41 

SEC. 1205.5 GROUND-MOUNTED PHOTOVOLTAIC ARRAYS.............................. 42 

Sec. 1205.5 Ground-mounted photovoltaic arrays........................................................ 42 

Sec. 1205.5.1 Fire apparatus access roads ................................................................. 42 

Sec. 1205.5.2 Perimeter fire apparatus access roadway........•..,,....~,·························· 42 

Sec. 1205.5.3 Fuel modification......................................,.....\.................................... 42 

Sec. 1205.5.4 Water supply......................................4.••.........~···"······························ 42 

4--· -~ ' 

SEC. 2808 STORAGE AND PROCESSING OE OOD CHIPS, HOGQED 
MATERIAL, FINES, COMPOST, SOLID ByJ)4ASS FE~DSTOCK AND ~iV 
PRODUCT ASSOCIATED WITHYARD WAS~, AGRQ-~DUSTRIAIJAND 

RECYCLING FACILITIES.·······································~···•·.•·············································· 43 

Sec. 2808.3 Size of piles....................... ,., ..........,.,.~··············••t"
") 

·....................................... 43 

Sec. 1205.6 Identification .......................................•,.,. ••••• .:\••••••••••••• _ ••••'-······················· 42 

Sec. 2808.1 General ........................~··•--···················· .......~ .............................................. 43 

Sec. 2808.2 Storage sites ................... .;,....,.! .... i-. .....................~·····-~·t................................ 43 

. 

Sec. 2808.4 Pile separation~...........................-..~··············•~•::··························· ................... 43 

Sec. 2808.5 Combu'stihle v~etation controf................................................................. 43 

Sec. 2808.6 Stattc pij.e·protecti~n ....................r._:?•.•.•.•.•.•••.•••.••••••.•...••...•.•.••..••..........•.. 43 

Sec. 2808.7 Firefighting wa(er-sunplies--arul~orage ..................................................... 44 

Sec. 2808.'7.1 p_u61ic wa~ supply ............................................................................. 44 

Sec. 2808.7.2 Private water ~unhly"!........................................................................... 44
11/ , ~vr , 

Sec. 28()8'.8 Fire Extin~shers ·.J····· .............................................................................. 44 

Sec. 2808:9 Material-handling equipment.. ................................................................... 44 

Sec. 2808.10 Oi>~ratiorutl-and emergency plans ............................................................ 44 

Sec. 2808.10.1 'RelJl'lit required .................................................................................. 45 

Sec. 2808.10.2 ·mancial assurance for cost recovery................................................ 45 

Sec. 2808.10.3 Notification of fire department .......................................................... 45 

Sec. 2808.10.4 Equipment operator emergency callback. ......................................... 45 

Sec. 2808.10.5 Incoming waste diversion plan .......................................................... 45 

Sec. 2808.10.6 Unprocessable or non-greenwaste material.. ..................................... 45 

Sec. 2808.10.7 Fire access roadway........................................................................... 46 

Page 5 of96 



Sec. 2808.10.8 General safety rules for site equipment maintenance ........................ 46 

Sec. 2808.10.9 Site security ....................................................................................... 46 

Sec. 2808.10.10 Smoking and open burning prohibited ............................................ 46 

SEC. 3319. FUEL MODIFICATION ZONE REQUIREMENTS ................................... 46 

Sec. 3 319 .1 Fuel modification zone during construction .............................................. 46 

SEC. 4902. DEFINITIONS.............................................................................................. 46 

Sec. 4902.1 General ..................................................................1,,r,,••·~········· .. ··············· 46 

SEC. 4903 PLANS ...................................................................~···"" .. ································· 47 

Sec. 4903.1.1 When required .....................................................~···~-····························· 47 

SEC. 4905 WILDFIRE PROTECTION BUILDING-~N~RUCTI(JN, ....................... 48 
..:::, 

Sec. 4905.2 Construction methods for exterior,wildfire exposure .............-.,................. 48 

SEC. 4906 VEGETATION MANAGEMEN'j--···"'···"'············~··························~············· 48 
Sec. 4906.3 Landscape plans. When required by th/FAJfJ..~....................... .............. 48 

Sec. 4906.3 .1 Contents ..............~., .... ······················~··••-•···································· ...... 48 
4906.3.2 Landscaping Installation.~-·-~····~,. ..................... ._. ...~...-f'................................ 48 

Sec. 4906.4 Vegetation ........................ , . .:.............._.....-.:•._........... ~···· .. ·· .. ····························· 49 

Sec. 4906.4.1 Shrubs.............................1,••-'r,·•··········"'{···•!,•·····......................................... 49 

Sec. 4906.4.2 Tree,$"........"'........................I""································································· 49 
Sec. 4906.4.2'1 ~oh.-fire-res~tant vegetati~n .., ......................................................... 49 

SEC. 4907 DEFENSIBLJ;:"SP~~·&~.,.._ ... ~······>fa······························································· 50 
ANNEXE 4:lEFiNSIBLE~)\CE OR1)D.JANCES FOR FIRE DISTRICTS" ............. 50 

Sec.49'07.4 Building aii4 S~tm:e ~;tbacks from property lines ................................ 50 

~ec.A907.4.1 General fire set1,eks ........................................................................... 50 

Sec. 490)~4.2 Fire setliad,ks adjacent protected areas ................................................. 50 

AMENDMENT TO SEQ'.JION 4907.4.3 ...................................................................... 50 

Sec. 4907.4.3 Buijdirtk"and Structure setback from slope ............................................. 50 

Sec. 4907.5 Fuel :Q.todification....................................................................................... 51 

Sec. 4907.6 Fuel modification of combustible vegetation from sides of roadways...... 52 

Sec. 4907. 7 Community fuel modification .................................................................... 52 

Sec. 4907.7.1 Land ownership ................................................................................... 52 

Sec. 4907.8 Maintenance of defensible space ............................................................... 52 

Sec. 4907.8.1 Trees .................................................................................................... 52 

Page 6of96 

https://2808.10.10


-

••••• 

TABLE 4907.8.1 ........................................................................................................ 53 

AMENDMENT TO SECTION 4907.8.2 ...................................................................... 53 

Sec. 4907.8.2 Orchards, groves or vineyards ............................................................. 53 

Sec. 4907.9 Home Ignition Zones: ................................................................................ 54 

4907.9.1 Zone 0 "Immediate Zone" 0-5' ................................................................... 54 

4907.9.2 Zone 1 "Intermediate Zone" from Zone Oto 50' ........................................ 54 

4907.9.3 Zone 2 "Extended Zone" from Zone 1 to 100' ...... ·~··-···~ ·......................... 54 

SEC. 5607.16. EXPLOSIVES AND FIREWORKS-APPLIGARILITY......................... 56 

Sec. 5607.16.1 Applicability ....................................~······ ......~ ................................... 56 

--~Sec. 5607.16.2 Definitions ................................. .-. .,..,•. .,....~............. ~···.;;°'....................... 56 

Sec. 5607.16.2.1 Application ........................, ....................................~ ...;.................. 56 

Sec. 5607.16.3 Permit requirements .......v. ....~····· ..........- :...........................~.,............. 56 

AMENDMENT TO SECTION 5607.16.3.l ...........'"'.~.✓-~···· .. .................................... 57 

Sec. 5607.16.3.1 Blasting permit;required................~....~........................................... 57 

Sec. 5607.16.3.2 Permit condition ··-·~· .. ·•·........................" ...•... 4 ................................ 57 

Sec. 5607.16.3.3 Insurance and indetµnificatioft re.quired J)"...................................... 57 

Sec. 5607.16.3.4 Blasting hours.......... ._~,... /4 ,,•••••••••••••~······················ .. ••••• .................... 57 

Sec. 5607.16.3.5 l\dditirnial'operational · quiremerlts .............................................. 57 

Sec. 5607.16.J:.6,S~re of illegal items ...~·····•····································· .................... 59 

Sec. 5607.16.3.7 Violation$ (of false or mi1teading information .............................. 59 

Sec. 560''.7.l.tij·:s E.ees .....,,. ......................-..................................................................... 59 

SEC. 5608.1 FIREW0~S DISPLAYf}........................................................................... 59 

S~c. '5.(;08.. 1 General .....,....._......... 
<.. 
:,.,,.............. ................................................................... 59 

Sec. 56Q,8~1.l Scope ...... ,............................................................................................ 60 

SEC. 5705.2.4'1:,RANSFEJl,RING CLASS I, II OR III LIQUIDS................................... 60 

Sec. 5705.2.4 Traµsfej'.ring Class I, II or III liquids...................................................... 60 

SEC. 5706.2.5.2 TANKS FOR GRAVITY DISCHARGE.............................................. 60 

Sec. 5706.2.5.2.1 Limitations on tanks for gravity discharge ....................................... 60 

SEC. 5706.2.8.2 PROHIBITION ON USE OF TANK VEHICLE.................................. 61 

Sec. 5706.2.8.2 Tank vehicle as a substitute for permanent tank prohibited ................ 61 

SEC. 6107.5 SAFETY PRECAUTIONS AND DEVICES-SECURING LPG TANKS.. 61 

Sec. 6107. 5 Securing LPG tanks ................................................................................... 61 

Page 7 of96 



,

SEC. 8001 REFERENCED STANDARDS...................................................................... 61 

Sec. 8001 Referenced standard NFPA 13D ................................................................. 61 

NFPA 13D 5.1.1.2 Spare sprinkler heads .................................................................. 61 

NFPA 13D 7.2.5 (RSF) Inspector Test. ..................................................................... 61 

NFPA 13D 7.3.4 Pressure gauge................................................................................ 61 

NFPA 13D 7.6 Alarms ............................................................................................... 62 

NFPA 13D 8.3.2 ................................................................... J.~.....~.......................... 62 

NFPA 13D 8.3.4 ......................................................................-................................... 62 
r 

NFPA 13D 8.3.5.1.1 .................................................""..........~···~· ............................. 62 

NFPA 13D 10.2.4.1 3-Head Calculation............ ✓.t~~~............. " ... i.,....................... 62 

NFPA 13D 10.2.5 Pressure Cushion ................r ..................................~...................... 62 

NFPA 13D 11.2.1.1 Hydrostatic Tests ... i.-... .,._..................'. .........................,. ............. 63 

NFPA 13D 12.3.6 Inactive Systems....................,._. ..•v.+............................................... 63 

SEC. APP.B103.3 AREAS WITHOlfT WATER SUPPI..Y'SYSTEMS......................... 63 

B103.3 Areas without water supply ~ms.......................,....,.,...+..···.......................... 63 

SEC. APP.Hl00 REPORTING FORMS' .:. ......... ._._ ....................-J, ...................................... 63 

Hl00.l Reporting forms ......................... ~►• :;,;4 ,- ........... "1;•••7 ............................................ 63 

Section 4 GEOGRAP$C L~ITS ............... "\".,................................................................. 63 

(a) Sec. 5704.~;~1'.,, .......... .-..~.....................r'""···~· .. ······ .. ·····......................................... 64 

(b) Sec. 5706.2.4.4 ......"....,... ..-.,."'4......;..... ,..........~ .............................................................. 64 

(c) Sec. -~S06~......;............,.... ,,..................,.................................................................... 65 

(d) ec. 6104.2 .......,.....············~···"'··...,7........................................................................... 65 

Secfion I\IGHTS ..........,. ............. .,,.,................................................................................. 66 

Section 6 ~.ADINGS ..........,............................................................................................ 66 

Section 7 ADOP._tION .......1 .............................................................................................. 66 

INDEX BY CODE~~1'ION .......................................................................................... 67 

FINDINGS........../,:......................................................................................................... 84 

Additional Findings for Chapter 49 .... ....................................................................... 84 

Findings for the Fire Code .......................................................................................... 86 

ANNEX A RESIDENTIAL FIRE APPARATUS TURN AROUND .............................. 90 

ANNEX B COMMERCIAL FIRE APPARATUS TURN AROUND ............................. 91 

ANNEX C SLOPE CROSS SECTION ............................................................................ 92 

Page 8 of96 



ANNEX D FUEL MODIFICATION ZONES .................................................................. 93 

ANNEXE DEFENSIBLE SPACE ORDINANCES ........................................................ 94 

ANNEXE DEFENSIBLE SPACE ORDINANCES MAP .............................................. 95 

ANNEX F PRIVATE WATER STORAGE TANK ......................................................... 96 

Page 9 of96 



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
WHICH ADOPTS THE 2022 CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE AND THE 2021 

INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE WITH CERTAIN AMENDMENTS, ADDITIONS, 
AND DELETIONS 

WHEREAS, Health & Safety Code section 17958 mandates thf(t ~Valley Center Fire 
Protection District shall adopt Ordinances or regulations impdirng the same requirements 
as are contained in the regulations adopted by the State p~~t to Health & Safety Code 
section 17922; and 

WHEREAS, the State of California is mandated~ HealTh. & Safety ~~ .section 17922 
to impose the same requirements as are contailleclin the 2\)22 California ~iib. Cpde based 
on the 2021 International Fire Code pubfis~ hy the Iuternational Cone Council, 
hereinafter referred to collectively as the Fire Code;~ 

WHEREAS, the State of California is Ifiandated by Heal~ & Safety Code section 17922 
to impose the same requirements as are ~1ned in the 202~ Ca,ffornia Fire Code based 
on the 2021 International Fire Code, ~eth ;wita the V~y Center Fire Protection 
District amendments, shall be the Valley Center,F'ire}!r~on District Fire Code for the 
purpose of prescribing ~rations in the u¥ncorporat territory of the County of San 
Diego and the bounrutdes of~ \ralley Cent~ Fire Prot~ction District; and 

WHEREAS, code ameajlnents aoopted by the State of California shall take precedence 
over the 2021-lntemationa'tf~ CodeJ~tmr~the 2021 International Fire Code language 
shall be usj,d-for-th.Qse'Gode s~ticns not adopted by the State; and 

uruEti::n::-' -1' 
vv ~.n,eAS, local amend;mtnts ad~d by the Valley Center Fire Protection District shall 
take prece4ence over boili'#ie 202l'International Fire Code and 2022 California Fire Code 
provisions; alld' 

WHEREAS, Hea1¢ & 'Safety Code section 17958.5 permits the Valley Center Fire 
Protection District to J;nake such changes or modifications to the Codes as are reasonably 
necessary because oflocal conditions; and 

WHEREAS, Health & Safety Code section 17958.7 requires that the Valley Center Fire 
Protection District before making any changes or modifications pursuant to section 
17958.5 make express findings that such changes or modifications are needed due to local 
climatic, geological, or topographical conditions; and 

Page 10 of96 



.

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Valley Center Fire Protection District does 
herewith find that the District has certain climatic, geological, and topographical features 
that can have a deleterious effect on emergency services such as fire protection and 
emergency medical services; and 

WHEREAS, the Board ofDirectors of the Valley Center Fire Protection District finds that 
the modifications and changes to the 2021 International Fire Code and 2022 California Fire 
Code are reasonably necessary because of the following local climatic, geological, and 
topographical conditions as identified in Attachment A; and 

WHEREAS, certain amendments to the 2022 Califomltr ,fire Code and the 2021 
International Fire Code serve to mitigate to the extent po~ible saltl deleterious effects; and 

WHEREAS, sections 50022.1 through 50022.10 11tclusi~e, of the Go~mment Code and 
section 13869 ofthe Health & Safety Code, prori~ authm'\ty for the adopliprl. ~eference 
of codes, or portion of such codes. " 

NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Qirectors of the Vaij.ey Center Fire Protection District 
does ordain as follows: 

Section 1 REPEAL 

That Ordinance No. 20 :SJ-J6, to the extent t the latter fa or was effective, of the Valley 
Center Fire Protection,District and all other\ordinance<--or parts of ordinances in conflict 
herewith are hereb,y-~ealed. 

Section 2 ADOPT10N 

That the .Board ofDir~tdrs offuq Valley Center Fire Protection District adopts as the Fire 
Code f~f the Valley Cen~r Fire Pmt~tion District the following: the 2022 California Fire 
Code, inclµdirW the appe~ to @hapter 4 and appendices B, C, D, H, I & 0, the 2021 
International-fire Code (IFC), and the National Fire Protection Association Standards 13, 
13-R & 13-D, as._referencedJn Chapter 80 of CFC, together with the District's amendments 
in this ordinance. this <I¢ire Code is adopted for the protection of the public health and 
safety. It includes definitions, provisions for the safeguarding of life and property from 
fire and explosion iiazards arising from the storage, handling and use of hazardous 
substances, materials and devices, and from conditions hazardous to life or property in the 
occupancy of buildings, requirements for permits and inspection for installing or altering 
systems, regulations for the erection, construction, enlargement, alteration, repair, moving, 
removal, conversion, demolition, equipment use and maintenance of buildings and 
structures, including the installation, alteration or repair ofnew and existing fire protection 
systems and their inspection and provides penalties for violation of this code. Each and all 
of the regulations, provisions, penalties, conditions and terms of the Valley Center Fire 

Page 11 of96 

https://50022.10


Protection District Fire Code on file in the office of the Valley Center Fire Protection 
District are hereby referred to, adopted, and made a part hereof, as if fully set out in this 
ordinance. 

Section 3 REVISED 

That the following sections and chapters of the 2022 California Fire Code are hereby 
revised: 

SEC. 101.5 VALIDITY. 

Section 101.5 of the California Fire Code is revjs¥(to rea~ 

Sec. 101.5 Validity. The Valley Center Fire Prote~tlbn District &;dPd of Directors 
declares that should any section, paragraph, sefttence or -,.ord ofthis ch~ hftdeclared 
invalid for any reason it is the intent of thifBoqrd. that it ')_Vould have pa'Jl,ed all other 
portions ofthis chapter independently ofany portionJhat,may'1Je declared fnvalid. 

f'" 

SEC. 102.13 REPEAL OF CONFl.jCUNG ORDINAl'f ES, RESOLUTIONS OR 
1"{0TJONS. 

Section 102.13 is added to the Callforrua;Fire~olie ~';,ead: 

Sec. 102.13 Repeal /t,f conflicting ordina ,ces, resofutions' or motions. All former 
ordinances, resol~s' or motio~s or parts tl\efe~f, conflicting or inconsistent with the 
provisions of this chapffif are r~ealed. 

SEC. 104.9. MOqIFICATIQNS. 

. ~ 
-$eGtion 104.9 of'tpe\Califomjtl Fire Code is revised to read: 

Sec. 104.91\{~difications. Whenever there are practical difficulties involved in carrying 
out the provisi~·Qf this c.bpe, the fire code official shall have the authority to grant 
modifications for i~divid'(ial cases, provided the fire code official shall first find that 
special individual reaspn makes the strict letter of this code impracticable and the 
modification is in cdfupliance with the intent and purpose of this code and that such 
modification does not lessen health, life and fire safety requirements. The applicant's 
request for a modification shall state the specific sections(s) for which a modification is 
requested, material facts supporting the contention ofthe applicant, the details ofthe 
modification or mitigating measure proposed and, ifapplicable, a map showing the 
proposed location and citing ofthe modification or mitigation measure. The details of 
action granting modifications shall be recorded and entered in the files of the department 
of fire prevention. 

Page 12 of96 



SEC.104.13 COST RECOVERY. 

Section 104.13 is added to the California Fire Code to read: 

Sec. 104.13 Cost recovery. The purpose of this section is to establish authority to obtain 
reimbursement from responsible individuals for the expenses of any emergency response 
and/or enforcement action by the fire department to protect the_pull!ic from criminal or 
negligible activities, and from fire or hazardous substances. 

Sec. 104.13.1 Reimbursement required. In ac~ dance wi._th' the Health and Safety 
Code section 13000 et seq., an individual who acts Aygligtmtly or 11l violation of the law 
and thereby requires the jurisdiction to provide an:emerg~ncy response ,to"'a danger posed 
by a fire or hazardous substance shall be liab for reimhµrsement to the.a~y for the 
costs incurred. In accordance with Governmfnt C.,ode sectio~ 53150 througp- 53158, any 
individual who is under the influence ofan alcoholic~evtjlfge ~ any drug ofthe combined 
influence of an alcoholic beverage or any drug, and whQs'e.negligent operation of a motor 
vehicle, boat or vessel or civil aircr~'1: caused by that influence proximately causes any 
incident and thereby requires the agencY, to prbvide an emerg~cy-r,@sponse shall reimburse 
the agency for the cost incurred. 

SEC. 105.3.9 EXPENS~J:ECOVERY. 

Section 1Ql1._9'is added to the Califo~ Fire Code to read: 

Sec. 105.3.9 E~pen_se recoyery. iilejp-e• coc,tiofficial may impose a fee for recovery of 
expenses,,itleurred tp enforce1{1e·fire prevention provisions of this code. 

,; 
SE~~ 1 os~.52.1 CHRIS:J'MAS T -E LOTS. 

Secti~ 1Q5.5.52.1 is added to the California Fire Code to read: 

Sec. 105.5.52.1 Cltii.snijas tree lots. An operational permit is required to operate a 
Christmas tree lot, with- or without flame proofing services. 

Page 13 of96 

https://SEC.104.13


SEC. 105.5.52.2 GREENWASTE RECYCLING, MULCHING, COMPOSTING 
OPERATIONS AND STORAGE. 

Section 105.5.52.2 is added to the California Fire Code to read: 

Sec. 105.5.52.2 Greenwaste recycling, mulching, composting operations and storage. An 
operational permit is required for green waste recycling, mulching,,_ composting operations 
and storage. 

SEC. 105.7 NEW MATERIALS, PROCESSES OR o~u,ANCIES WHICH 
REQUIRE PERMITS. 

Section 105.7 is added to the California F' a·Cod~to read: 

Sec. 105.7 New materials, processes or oc~paqcies whic!!,require per~ . The fire 
code official may determine, after allowing affected ~ns ~ opportunify to be heard, 
that a material, process or occupanGY., not listed in ~s' code shall require a permit, in 
addition to those now enumerated in\~ code. In that ~._ the fire code official shall 
prepare a list of any additional materia\1proc~s or occupanw't¾tft shall require a permit 
~n~ ~os~ the list . in a conspicuous pl•.e ~ e 0.ffices ~I. the fire authority having 
Junsd1ct10n. Any mterested person mayo · a1n4copy,pf thf'hst. 

SEC.111 APPEAL .. 

Section 111 oft~ Califm1lia.Fire Code i~✓ revised to read: 
,I/ 

Sec. 111.l'. · egiona\J_ Fire App~als Board established. In order to hear and decide appeals 
of orders, decisions ~ determiQatio~ made by the fire code official relative to the 
applltatJ:dn and interp1'!tation of this code, including the granting or denial of 
modificatfqrrs~-:there shall~ and is~ereby created a Regional Fire Appeals Board (Appeals 
Board). The 4],peals Boarti. ~hall adopt rules ofprocedurefor conducting its business, and 
shall render al1-4_~sions dtfd findings in writing to the appellant with a duplicate copy to 
the fire code offic1'1/ A ✓f/OPY shall also be sent to the Building Official or other decision 
makerfor the projecl. whichever is appropriate. 

Sec. 111.2 Limitations on authority. An application for appeal shall be based on a claim 
that the intent of this code or the rules legally adopted hereunder have been incorrectly 
interpreted, the provisions of this code do not fully apply, or an equivalent method of 
protection or safety is proposed. The Appeals Board shall not have authority to waive 
requirements of this code. 

Page 14 of96 



Sec. 111.3 Qualifications. The Appeals Board shall consist ofmembers who are qualified 
by experience and training to pass on matters pertaining to hazards of fire, explosions, 
hazardous conditions or fire protection systems and are not employees of the jurisdiction. 

Sec. 111.4 Appeals procedures. This section establishes appeal procedures ofan order, 
decision or determination (collectively, "determination'') made by the fire code official, 
including the granting or denial ofappeals. 

Sec. 111.4.1 Appeals of determinations regarding q,ujlding permits. The County, 
fire agency or project applicant may appeal a determination mtJq,'e,by the fire code official 
related to a project for which a building permit is re9uirflf.! by filhi,i"'a_n appeal in writing 
with the Appeals Board within 30 days ofthe fire cf1t.le ~~£al 's fina(determination. The 
Appeals Board shall make factual findings and )ssue a written reco~en_dation to the 
County Building Official on whether the f~ rod~ offi~: l's determinat4on thould be 
upheld, overruled or modified. The Building O ial l'na n~ waive the r<giuirements of 
this code, except as authorized by the code and is suJ?jixt to the same requirements and 
restrictions in the code that applied to ·thefire code officiql A copy ofthe recommendation 
shall be provided to the applicant. Thf County Building 0jfhzi(11 shall act on the Appeals 
Board's recommendation and issue a 'r.f!r~p lie<;ision to t~ p/rties within 15 days of 
receipt ofthe Appeals Board's recommen1/,ation. 'f!,e Buildi~g/Official 's decision shall be 
final. 

Sec. 111.4.2 Appeals o{ determinations regarding discretionary permits. The 
County, the fire ag'eney_ or. the pr<(ject applican(m~ seek review ofthe fire code official's 
determination by the Appfdls Dagra by.filing a1,request for review with the Appeals Board 
within 30 ...dafS of the fire ~ode official'~ 4etermination. When reviewing a fire code 
official's determinatj_on purs qnt to this subsection, the Appeals Board shall act in an 
advistlry capacity. The c.,4ppeals !Jpardf'Shall review the fire code official's determination 
andvm~e a recommendpt'ion to ;pphold, overrule or modify the fire code official's 
determina'li(;>n;. The Appea& Boardshall render its recommendation to the County decision 
maker or dec1sjon.-making l,o_dyfor consideration with the application for the discretionary 
permit. 

Sec. 111.4.3 Appeals ofdeterminations for matters other than building permits or 
discretionary permits. 

(a) Areas outside a fire protection district. Any affected party may appeal a 
determination made by the fire code official regarding a matter for which a 
building permit or discretionary permit is not required by filing an appeal in 
writing with the Appeals Board within 30 days of the fire code official 's final 
determination. The Appeals Board shall review the fire code official's 

Page 15 of96 



determination and make a recommendation to uphold, overrule or modify the fire 
code official's determination. The Appeals Board's determination shall be final. 

(b) Areas inside a fire protection district. Any affected party may appeal a 
determination made by the fire code official regarding a matter for which a 
building permit or discretionary permit is not required by filing an appeal in 
writing with the fire protection district's Board ofDirectors within 3 0 days ofthe 
fire code official's final determination. The Board ofDirectors shall review the 
fire code official's determination and make a rectfpi~dation to uphold, 
overrule or modify the fire code official's determination. The Board ofDirector's 
determination shall be final. 

Sec. 111.5 Regional Fire Appeals Board. 

(a) The Appeals Board members shall ct/mist oftht!tfollowing: 

• Two representatives from the San Dieg() ~nty}ire District! Association. 
• Two chiefofficers fromcCAL FIRE. 
• One fire marshal from t¥ ftnincorporated a~<tofthe County. 

(b) The Appeals Board shall not "qtclude .~ representaJtve from the agency whose 
fire code official made the dete ' ind}Jfon thq_t ls, Being appealed. An alternate 
for the regulaf:- ~mber(s) ofthe ~peals Boqpd shall be designated to serve in 
this situati6n. 

(c) Three memb~ shall &Jn6,titute a q'IJJ"Um for the transaction of business, and 
thf'ee· "lif.li,r.mative'l'otes shallb..f: _neqessary to render a recommendation. 

fd) If the Appeal1 Board ~cbml!Jends a modification to this code for an individual 
~se, a copy of,,tlle recom7J'fendation and findings along with a map showing the 
woposed modiflfaiion Jiid mitigating measures shall be forwarded to the Unit 
Chif;fefCAL FIR}f, San Diego/Imperial Unit. 

SEC. 112.4 '\1QI,ATIONS, PENALTIES AND RESPONSIBILITY FOR 
COMPLIANCE. 

Section 112.4 of the California Fire Code is revised to read: 

Sec. 112.4 Violations, penalties and responsibility for compliance. It shall be unlawful 
for any person, as defined in section 12.115 ofthe County Code ofRegulatory Ordinances, 
to use any property or erect, construct, enlarge, alter, repair, move, remove, improve, 
convert, demolish, equip, use, occupy or maintain any building or structure, or vacant land 
or cause the same to be done, contrary to or in violation ofany of the provisions of this 

Page 16 of96 



chapter. A property o.wner shall be considered to have allowed any use or improvement 
ofproperty occupied by or under the dominion and control of the owner and shall be 
responsible for the discontinuance and removal ofany violation ofthe County Fire Code. 
This responsibility shall include property leased to another person. A property owner shall 
also be responsible for the discontinuance and removal ofany violation ofthe County Fire 
Code that existed on the property prior to the current owner's purchase ofthe property. 

AMENDMENT TO SECTION 112.4 

Sec. 112.4 Violations, penalties and responsibility for co pliance. Any person who 
shall violate any ofthe provisions ofthis code or standards 'hereby,adopted or fail to comply 
therewith, or who shall violate or fail to comply with .any ~der maqe'there under, or who 
shall build in violation of any detailed statement ot·spe~fication or J.l)ans submitted and 
approved there under, or any certificate ?r pe?11it issue~ !fere under, anq ftom1twhich no 
appeal has been taken, or who shall fad to,;'eol!).ply w1tli such an order as affirmed or 
modified by the attorney for the Valley Center Fit~ Rro~t1()0 District or:by a court of 
competent jurisdiction within the time fixed herein, .ihall severally for each and every 
violation and non-compliance resp~vely, be guilty of an infraction or misdemeanor, 
punishable by a fine not exceeding $, l,Q00.00 or by im~Sbllll1:ent in County Jail not 
exceeding six ( 6) months, or both. The ~posi4on·of one penatty,ofany violation shall not 
excuse the violation or permit it to contitiue; ~d ~l such.,persons shall be required to 
correct or remedy such violations or defi ' ts,. within a :reasonable time; and when not 
otherwise specified, e~h day tfiat prohibiteif conditionS' are maintained shall constitute a 
separate offense. 

The application of the al;?ove p nalty shall not b~held to prevent the enforced removal of 
prohibited conditions. · 

AMEN MENT TO·~E{;.TION. 113-4, 

Sec. 113.4.,14;,ailure to com~Iy. Any person who shall continue any work after having been 
served with a stop work ordtn", except such work as that the person is directed to perform 
to remove a vio¼itton or u~fe condition, shall be liable to a fine of not less than $250.00 
or more than $1,00{).O0. 

( / 

SEC. 202 DEFINITIONS. 

Section 202 of the California Fire Code is revised by adding or modifying the 
following definitions: 

ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT. Defined as an attached or a detached residential 
dwelling unit which provides complete independent living facilities for one or more 

Page I 7 of96 

https://1,00{).O0
https://l,Q00.00


persons. It shall include pennanent provisions for living, sleeping, eating, cooking, and 
sanitation on the same parcel as the single-family dwelling is situated. An accessory 
dwelling unit also includes the following: 

(A) An efficiency unit, as defined in Section 17958.1 ofthe Health and Safety Code. 

(B) A manufactured home, as defined in Section 18007 of the Health and Safety 
Code. 

AERATED STATIC PILE. A composting process that uses an~'distribution system to 
blow or draw air through the pile. Little or no pile agitation orfurningis performed. 

BLASTER. A person who has been approved by the She4/J' to ccmJ~ct blasting operations 
and who has been placed on the list ofapproved blast.efrs. lJJJe listing, shall be valid for one 
year unless revoked by the Sheriff. 

".BLASTING AGENT. A material or mixture~ort(i3iing ofQ'fuel and oxidizer intended for 
blasting. The finished product as mixed and pac~ed,/jW' u"§'e or shipmelrt shall not be 
detonated by means ofa No. 8 test blasting cap when TJl(_tCO.nfined.

C: 

BLASTING OPERATION. The us fas~.explosive devi'e€ <,1" explosive material to 
destroy, modify, obliterate or remove any\obsfRlctien of any kjJK{.

#' 

BLASTING PERMIT. A permit issue~ ~y the Issujng Officer pursuant to section 
105.6.15. The permif:sliall a ~ to a speci-i,c site ancf shall be valid for a period not to 
exceed one year. ,-

BLAST SITE. The geographittally~~tl ~a, as shown on a project map or plot plan, 
where a bJt}s/(!!I! .i,s .aitthorized_by a blasting-permit issued under this section to conduct a 
blastin,g fiperation. 

,-
CHIPP~GAND GRIND:iNG. ~ activity that mechanically reduces the size of organic 
matter. 

COMPOSTING -OP,EJTION. An operation that is conducted for the purpose of 
producing compost. ·llJ.e operation shall be by one or more ofthe following processes used 
to produce a compostproduct: static pile, windrow pile or aerated static pile. 

DEAD-END ROAD. A road that has only one point ofvehicular ingress/egress, including 
cul-de-sacs and looped roads. 

DISTANCE MEASUREMENT. All specified or referenced distances are measured 
along the ground, unless otherwise stated. 

Page 18 of96 

https://105.6.15


DWELLING UNIT. Any building or portion thereof which contains living facilities, 
including provisions for sleeping, eating, cooking and/or sanitation for not more than one 
family. 

ENCLOSED. Closed in or fenced off. 

EXPLOSIVES PERMIT. A permit to possess or use explosives, issued by the Issuing 
Officer, pursuant to California Health and Safety Code sections 12j)OO et seq. and Chapter 
56 of this code. An explosives permit shall be valid for a period,t\ot~exceed one year, as 
provided in the permit conditions. 

FIRE APPARATUS ACCESS ROAD. A road that prt)vides fir~ apparatus access from 
a fire station to a facility, building or portion thereo£ 1'._his'\s a gen~l'term that includes, 
but is not limited to a fire lane, public street, priva(e· stree1, driveway, ~king lot lane and 
access roadway. 

FIRE AUTHORITY HAVING JURISDICTIO~ tf'AH)}. The designated entity 
providing enforcement of fire regulations as they rel{lt~, to planning, construction and 
development. The F AHJ may also pre.wide. fire suppressi~ and other emergency services. 

FIRE CHIEF. The fire chiefis one oft~follow/rtgr 
(a) The person appointed by the B ard.dfSunrVis(t/~ to serve as fire chief in the 
unincorporated artqs htJt within a fl~ ·protectioni_fifstrict. 
(b) The chiefdfficer of{lfire protectiO(l district. 
(c) The Fi1<!-lfarden or her or his delegpt_ed, representative when enforcing section 
96.1.5608.1 ofth~ 'G:hapter. 

FIRE CO()E <JF-RJCIAL. 'Tl!,e' Fire Warden or her or his delegated representative, the 
fire chiefor a duly audipriz,ed repres~ntp.tive, or otherperson as may be designated by law, 
appbint(llent or delegati~n and cliurged with the administration and enforcement of this 
Chapter. 

FIRE DEPAR1:MENT. Af}.y regularly organized fire department, fire protection district, 
fire company, or leially formed volunteer fire department registered with the County of 
San Diego regularly ~barged with the responsibility of providing fire protection to a 
jurisdiction. 

FIRE HAZARD. Any condition or conduct which:(a) increases or may increase the threat 
of fire to a greater degree than customarily recognized as normal by persons in the public 
service regularly engaged in preventing, suppressing or extinguishing fire or (b) may 
obstruct, delay, hinder or interfere with the operations of the fire department or the egress 
of occupants in the event of fire. 

Page 19 of96 



FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT. Any fire protection district created under State law 
and any water district providing fire protection services. 

FUEL MODIFICATION ZONE. A strip ofland where combustible vegetation has been 
thinned or modified or both and partially or totally replaced with approved fire-resistant 
and/or irrigated plants to provide an acceptable level of risk from vegetation fires. Fuel 
modification reduces the radiant and convective heat on a structure and provides valuable 
defensible space for firefighters to make an effective stand against an approaching fire 
front. 

GREENW ASTE. Organic material that includes, but is ..npt-ijmited to, yard trimmings, 
plant waste, manure, untreated wood wastes, paper prodapts and JlPtw"al fiber products. 

- ~ 

HARDSCAPE. Concrete, gravel, pavers or other<()on-co'ihbustible ma~nal. 

HAZARDOUS FIRE AREA. Any geograplfic a(e~map_P, ¢QY the State orpesignated by 
a local jurisdiction as a moderate, high or very high 'fife'~ard'fu-ea or whiclfthe F AHJ has 
determined is a hazardous fire ar<ta, because the t,q,e, and condition of vegetation, 
topography, weather and structure d~ity increase the l'{Obability that the area will be 
susceptible to a wildfire. 

HOGGED MATERIALS. Mill waste con . tifJ.ftrmainzy of/fogged bark but may include a " 
mixture ofbark, chips, daii oFo.ther by-pro~ifrom tr~s and vegetation. 

INSPECTOR. FQf~'p.urposes (>f sections 9~;J.J601.2, an inspector is a person on the 
Issuing Officer's appro d··list 0finspectors au1'.)orized to conduct inspections, before and 
after a blast. To beo!l the1~tdng-6ffi~r~-~oved list, an inspector shall have a blasting 
license is*d by-C.@.1/0SHA. 

MA46~' BLASTING. ,A blasting 
/ 
_operation that does not meet the criteria for minor 

blasting. 

MID-RISE BfilLDING. /~ building four stories or more high, but not exceeding 75 feet 
in height and not ~finea;as a high-rise building by section 202 of the California Building 
Code. Measurements1 shall be made from the underside of the roof or floor above the 
topmost space that nfay be occupied to the lowest fire apparatus access road level. 

MINOR BLASTING. A blasting operation that meets all of the following criteria: 
quantity of rock to be blasted does not exceed 100 cubic yards per shot, bore hole diameter 
does not exceed 2 inches, hole depth does not exceed 12 feet, maximum charge weight 
does not exceed 8 pounds of explosives per delay and the initiation of each charge will be 
separated by at least 8 milliseconds. The maximum charge weight shall not exceed the 
Scaled Distance as shown below: 

Page20 of96 

mailto:by-C.@.1/0SHA


Distance from Blast Site (In Feet) Scale Distance Factor 
0 - 300 Mandatory Seismic Monitoring 

301 - 5,000 55 
5,000+ 65 

MULCHING. The process by which mixed greenwaste is mechanically reduced in size 
for the purpose of making compost. 

RESPONSE TIME. The elapsed time from the fire departmenfs receipt of the first alarm 
to when the first fire unit arrives at the scene. 

SKY LANTERN. An unmanned device with a fuel S9~lhat incorp,mates an open flame 
in order to make the device airborne. 

STATIC PILE. A composting process that if sim· dr. to the.~ated staticP)Je except that 
the air source may or may not be controlled. 

STRUCTURE. That which is built or C!bns_tructed, an ediflce or building of any kind, or 
any piece ofwork artificially built up or~mpo'sed ofparts join;edt6gether in some manner. 

(/ 

TRAVEL TIME. The estimated time it w('uld{ake ft,r ~a responding agency to travel from 
the fire station to the fu~t structure in a roposed de~:velopment project, determined by 
measuring the safes~ · most ~~ appropriata ·i;ind reliable route with consideration given 
to safe operating spee¢i' for heavi fire apparah\5. 

WINDROW ·C0MPOS'ffNG PR6CE.$S. ifhe process in which compostable material 
is place~,m elongateft Piles. 'FQe'piles or windrows are aerated and/or mechanically turned 
on a periodic basis. 

WOOD (Sf{IPS. Chips Gf various species of wood produced or used in chipping and 
grinding ope~tions. 

SEC. 304.1.4 OUT'1)O0R CARNIVALS AND FAIRS. 

Section 304.t4 is added to the California Fire Code to read: 

Sec. 304.1.4 Outdoor carnivals and fairs. Outdoor carnivals and fairs shall only be 
conducted on grounds free of combustible vegetation or trimmed to the satisfaction of the 
FAHJ. 

Page 21 of96 



SEC. 305.6 ROCKETS, MODEL AIRCRAFT AND SIMILAR DEVICES. 

Section 305.6 is added to the California Fire Code to read: 

Sec. 305.6 Rockets, model aircraft and similar devices. Rockets, model airplanes, 
gliders, balloons, sky lanterns, floating luminary or similar devices powered with an 
engine, propellant, open flame or other feature liable to start or cause a fire shall not be 
projected into or across hazardous fire areas without prior approvaL9fthe fire code official. 

SEC. 307.4.3 PORTABLE OUTDOOR FIREPLACES. 

Section 307.4.3 of the California Fire Code is re1Afed to r~d,, 

Sec. 307.4.3 Portable outdoor fireplaces. Portable outdoor fireplaces shall be used in 
accordance with the manufacturer's instructions and shall not be operated within 15 feet 
(3048 mm) of a structure or combustible material. • " 

Exception: Portable outdoor fireplaces used i Q•-ancf>two-family'awellings. All 
"warming fires", by which open bur11-ing ofwood, sha1( liave installed a "spark arrester" 
of ½ " screen mesh or smaller installfiJ 0r used in accor{_iauce with the manufacturer's 
instructions. 

SEC. 307.5 ATTENDANCE OF OPEN Uru,'fNG~D;RECREATIONAL FIRES. 

Section 307.5.6:f'the Ca~ifomia Fire c.ie is revis~d to read: 

Sec. 307.5 A.ttendance. Open.burning, bonfir~ recreational fires and the use ofportable 
outdoor fireplaoo&- shall be ,constantly J!tfend~ by an adult until the fire is extinguished. 
Not fewerihan one_pdrtable fi~e'extinguisliet complying with section 906 with a minimum 
4-A rating or other apptoved on--s.Jtb-tir~extinguishing equipment, such as dirt, sand, water 
barnei., -garden hose or water,. truck, ~~11 be available for immediate utilization. 

Page 22 of96 



SEC. 325. MID-RISE BUILDINGS. 

Section 325 is added to the California Fire Code to read: 

Sec 325.1 General. A newly constructed mid-rise building or a mid-rise building which 
undergoes a complete renovation that requires the building to be completely vacated shall 
comply with this section. 

Exceptions: 

1. Buildings used exclusively as an open parking gatag~. 

2. Buildings where all floors above the fourth tl2or1evel are ~ed exclusively as an 
open par king garage. 

~ 

3. Buildings such as a power plant, lcfokc)\J.t tower,AiWeple, grain hoU$e, and other 
similar structures with intermittent human o J)a{)ey. ~ 

Sec. 325.1.1 Automatic sprinkler s~fems and standpipes. Mid-rise buildings shall be 
protected throughout by an automa · c ~rinkler system desi,~ned and installed in 
conformance with the NFP A 13 editi~\ as referenced in 1hapter 80 of CFC and in 
accordance with the following: 

1. A control valve and. a water flow ~rm shalf'be provided for each floor. Each 
controlj'(ralve-and water flow alarm haU be electronically supervised. 

2. Mid-rise buildi~s -shaU b~ provitled with a Class I standpipe system that is 
-tnterconµected witil the automatic sprinkler system. The system shall consist of 
2½-inch h~e valves'lpcateclin each stair enclosure on every floor. Two hose 
outlets shall i,e located 9n the roof outside of each stair enclosure which 
.penetrates the r , of. The standpipe system shall be designed, installed and tested 
in aceordance witl;l the NFP A 14 edition as referenced in Chapter 80 of CFC. 

3. Fire deRa.rtrpeb:t standpipe connections and valves serving each floor shall be 
located in t,lre vestibule and located in a manner so as not to obstruct egress 
when hose lines are connected and charged. 

Sec. 325.1.2 Smoke detection. Smoke detectors shall be provided in accordance with this 
section. Smoke detectors shall be connected to an automatic fire alarm system and shall 
be installed in accordance with the NFP A 72 edition as referenced in Chapter 80 of CFC. 
The actuation of any device required by this section shall operate the emergency voice 
alarm signal system and shall operate all equipment necessary to prevent the circulation of 

Page 23 of96 



smoke through air return and exhaust ductwork. Smoke detectors shall be located as 
follows: 

1. In every mechanical equipment, electrical, transformer, telephone equipment, 
unmanned computer equipment, elevator machinery or similar room and in all 
elevator lobbies. Elevator lobby detectors shall be connected to an alarm 
verification zone or be listed as a releasing device. 

2. In the main return air and exhaust air plenum of eack,,aii~nditioning system. 
The smoke detector shall be located in a serviceable area downstream ofthe last 
duct inlet. 

3. At each connection to a vertical duct or ~df-setving two,ot more stories from 
a return air duct or plenum of an air c~i.tiom1ig system. In"Oroup R-1 and R-
2 occupancies, an approved smoke detector is ~owed to be usc.Q.':tn ~ch return 
air riser carrying not more than ~000 ~bic foot, er minute and not serving 
more than IO air inlet openings. 

4. For Group R-1 and R-2 ocoµi,an.cies in all corrid.pm serving as a means ofegress 
for an occupant load of 10 ~,mqr~rsons. 

Sec. 325.1.3 Fire alarm system. An apJ#ovpcJ, and !i,sle~:lutomatic and manual, fully 
addressable and electr~caliy-supervised itre alanll, system shall be provided in 
conformance with thf$' 'code ¥d\ the CalifoWa Building Code & NFP A 72 edition as 
referenced in Chapter, 81:}, of CF€. 

Sec. 325.1.4 Emergency ~it'e a1a.rmt!p~aljitg system. The operation of any automatic 
fire detect'4r~orwa~ lro:w de~cb,shall automatically sound an alert tone followed by a pre
recordetl, voice instru0,tioh, givi~ apprppriate information and direction on a general or 
sele.dfl~ basis to the follvwing termipal areas: 

I . Ek.vators 
2. Elev$tlobbies 
3. Corrido~ 
4. Exit stairways 
5. Rooms antf tenant spaces 
6. Dwelling units 
7. Hotel guest rooms 
8. Areas designated as safe refuge within the building 

Sec. 325.1.5 Fire command center. A fire command center for fire department operations 
shall be provided. The location and accessibility of the fire command center shall be 
approved by the fire code official. The room shall be separated from the remainder of the 

Page24 of96 

https://corrid.pm


building by not less than a 2-hour fire barrier. The room shall be a minimum of200 square 
feet with a minimum dimension of 10 feet. It shall contain the following facilities at a 
nnrumum: 

1. Voice alarm and public address panels 
2. Fire department communications panel 
3. Fire alarm annunciator panel 
4. Elevator annunciator panel (when building exceeds 55 feet in height) 
5. Status indicators and controls for air-handling systems'(st~ell pressurization) 
6. Controls for unlocking stairwell doors 
7. Fire pump status indicators (if required) 
8. Set of complete building plans ~ 

9. Elevator control switches for switching of~e{gency pow~t 
10. Work table 

Sec. 325.1.6 Annunciation identification. <Co~ot_panels jn the central ooritrol station 
shall be permanently identified as to their function. Wafpr fl~, automatie' fire detection 
and manually-activated fire alarms, s,upervisory and trc.,µble signals shall be monitored by 
an approved UL-listed central monitqring station and a~unciated in the fire command 
center by means of an audible and vi al jrltiicator. For e purposes of annunciation, 
zoning shall be in accordance with the fotlowing.: 

1. When the syste:m serves more tha1''6ne buildin;, ·each building shall be a separate 
zone. 

2. Each flQt>r4!J. 'a building shall be a se{>arc\te zone. 
3. When one or~ore riseis-serve the sa~e-Iloor, each riser shall be a separate zone. 

Sec. 325.1;7 Elevaj:or's.. Ele~fors and elevator lobbies shall comply with Chapter 30 of 
the California Buildi~ Code. At 1~ast one elevator cab shall be assigned for fire 
dep~eht use, and shaH serve allfloors of the building. This cab shall be provided large 
enough to,~ceommodate ~ ambulltfice-type stretcher in accordance with section 3002.4 of 
the Califomi1' Building Cola 

Sec. 325.1.8 Fire department communication system. An approved two-way fire 
department communic,ation system designed and installed in accordance with the NFP A 
72 edition referenced in Chapter 80 of CFC shall be provided for fire department use per 
section 907 .2.13 .2. 

Sec. 325.1.9 Means of egress. In addition to the requirements of Chapter 10, egress 
components of mid-rise buildings shall comply with sections 325.1.9.1 through 325.1.9.5. 

Sec. 325.1.9.1 Extent of enclosure. Stairway enclosures shall be continuous and 
shall fully enclose all portions of the stairway. Exit enclosures shall exit directly to the 

Page 25 of96 



exterior of the building or include an exit passageway on the ground floor leading to the 
exterior of the building. Each exit enclosure shall extend completely through the roof and 
be provided with a door that leads onto the roof. 

Sec. 325.1.9.2 Pressurized enclosures and stairways. All required stairways and 
enclosures in a mid-rise building shall be pressurized as specified in section 909. 
Pressurized stairways shall be designed to exhaust smoke manually when needed. 

Sec. 325.1.9.3 Vestibules. Pressurized stairway encl~"serving a mid-rise 
building shall be provided with a pressurized entrance vestibule on each floor that complies 
with section 909. 

Sec. 325.1.9.4 Pressure differences. The ~pressure,dlfference between a 
vestibule and adjacent areas shall comply with se~n 90~. 

~ 
Sec. 325.1.9.5 Locking of stairway tfoo~ . All stai~ay doors that Jre locked to 

prohibit access from the interior ofthe stairway shaH~-e;tnec1tpability oftfeing unlocked 
simultaneously, without unlatching, µpon a signal fro~ the fire command center. Upon 
failure of normal electrical service or'1ct:iNation of any f~ alarm, the locking mechanism 
shall automatically retract to the unloc wruion. 

A telephone or other two-way communica$n ~em~~fd to an approved emergency 
service which operates .a<fnntfuously shall bt1'rovided ~not less than every third floor in 
each required exit staij,\vay v~&ile. 

,;, 

Approved signage statinij doo~s ar-e-1.ocked shall ,be provided in each stairwell vestibule on 
each floor in which entry ~1,be made _anti efeach floor in which a telephone is located. 
Hardware fc,r l-ookjng &tairwtl,y' vestibule cfoors shall be State Fire Marshal listed and 
approved' by the fire "Gpcf~ ,offici~' o~ ~ermit before installation. Stairway doors located 
bet'#e~ the vestibules a d the stain¥ay shaft shall not be locked. 

Page 26 of96 



SEC. 326 STORAGE OF FIREWOOD. (T14 1299.03 B2) Zone 2 

Section 326 is added to the California Fire Code to read: 

Sec. 326.1 General. Firewood shall not be stored in unenclosed space beneath a building 
or structure, on a deck or under eaves, a canopy or other projection or overhang. When 
required by the fire code official, firewood or other combustible material stored in the 
defensible space surrounding a structure shall be located at least 30. feet from any structure 
and separated by a minimum of 15 feet from the drip line JJf ~y trees, measured 
horizontally. Firewood and combustible materials not for use: on the premises shall be 
stored so as to not pose a fire hazard. Wood storage shall bt-lo~ated on bare soil or a non
combustible material. Minimum clearance around wood~t(>rage pi)e'shall be 10' bare soil, 
free ofvegetation or other combustible material me~d &I a horiZQrlta,l plane. 
The maximum size of wood storage shall be 2 corqs ofwdods with the'j?ileodimensions no 
greater than 4 feet in height, 4 feet in width, l6 feet in•length. 

Exception: Permit may be issued by the F AH,1 fur··woo~..storage am&unts in excess 
of this section. 

SEC. 501.3.2 FIRE APPARATUS AC€E$S·MODIFICA~IO~ 

Section 501.3.2 is added to the Call(omu( Fire~dtle-to(.,read: 

(, 

Sec. 501.3.2 Fire a paratus ~d;ess modifi¢~tions. Plans for the modification of fire 
apparatus access rpaq shall be submitted to th¢' fm; code official for review and approval 
prior to construction onpodificatien .of any fire ~pparatus road. ,,. 

SEC. 503 FIRE AfPARAT~S ACCESS ROADS 

' ~ 
~ectjon 503 of the CaHfornla J_?fre Code is revised to read: 

Sec. 503.1 G~•u~ral. Fire apparatus access roads shall be provided and maintained in 
accordance wifk,Sections 5Q3.1.1 through 503.1.3. 
Fire apparatus ac~ess .r6ads shall be provided and maintained in compliance with this 
section and the most r:.epent edition and any amendments thereto, ofpublic and private road 
standards as adoptetiby the County ofSan Diego (San Diego County Standards for Private 
Roads and Public Roads, San Diego County Department ofPublic Works). The fire code 
official may modify the requirements ofthis section ifthe modification provides equivalent 
access. 

503.1.1 Buildings and facilities. Approved fire apparatus access roads shall be 
provided for every facility, building or portion ofa building hereafter constructed or moved 
into or within the jurisdiction. The fire apparatus access road shall comply with the 

Page27 of96 



requirements of this section and shall extend to within 150 feet ( 45 720 mm) of all portions 
of the facility and all portions of the exterior walls of the first story of the building as 
measured by an approved route around the exterior of the building or facility. 

Exceptions: 
1. The fire code official is authorized to increase the dimension of 150 feet ( 45 720 

mm) where any of the following conditions occur: 

1.1 The building is equipped throughout with an qp~d automatic 
sprinkler system installed in accordance with Seetion 903 .3 .1.1, 
903.3.1.2 or 903.3.1.3. 

1.2. Fire apparatus access roads cannot_\e, itk;talled b~cmise of location on 
property, topography, waterways, •n-negbtiable grad~ ·or other similar 
conditions, and an approved alterriative mea~ of fire protect;toh.,i~rovided. 

1.3. There are not more than two GroUR &-¼,or Gtoup U occu~ancies. 

2. Where approved by the fire i!ode official, fire ~atus access roads shall be 
permitted to be exempted or 11\odi{led- for solar phQt~taic power generation 
facilities. 

Sec. 503.1.2 Addffl.onal access. ~· fire codi official is authorized to require 
Discretionary projecJ$1locatedJn'State Resp~sibility Areas (SRA) & Local Responsibility 
Areas {LRA) withJtnJ?/Jrse hazard severity zone,~m9re than one fire apparatus access road. 
This requirement is ba~- on .the- pot~ntial for, impairment of a single road by vehicle 
congestion, coodition oftet{am, c11~ ~ti'ons or other factors that could limit access. 
When adl/it-tonal jj,re' appaNJius access toads are necessary as mitigation for the 
exceed/J,11:_'ce ofthe m~iim all(Afa'ble qead-end road length, the additional fire apparatus 
acceh ~obd must be re~tefrom the/primary fire apparatus access road. 

Sec. 'S~~L2.1 Secon~ary Access When Required. When new subdivisions are 
proposed seco ary access.is required pursuant to Sec. 503.2.5.1 or in instances the fire 
code official detenqihes ,tfrat secondary access is required. 

Sec. 503.1.3 High-piled storage. Fire department vehicle access to buildings used 
for high-piled combustible storage shall comply with the applicable provisions of Chapter 
32. 

Page28 of96 

https://access.is


503.2 Specifications. Fire apparatus access roads shall be installed and arranged in 
accordance with Sections 503.2.1 through 503.2.9. 

Sec. 503.2.1 Dimensions. The dimensions offire apparatus access roads shall be 
in accordance with the following: 

(a) Fire apparatus access roads shall have an unobstructed improved width ofnot less 
than 24feet, except as provided in section 503.2.1.1 for single-famijy residential driveways 
serving no more than two residential parcels, which shall have fl, iitil!imum of 16 feet of 
unobstructed improved width. Any of the following, which hat?e separated lanes ofone
way traffic: gated entrances with card readers, guard s(fjti~- or center medians, are 
allowed, provided that each lane is not less than 14 fe(!t )4lide. 

(b) Fire apparatus access roads that are publie'pr pri~te roads wh~li are provided or 
improved as a result of a Tentative Map, Tentati~e Par ] Map or a Mq/orf¥inor Use 
Permit shall have the dimensions as set forth bycJne County( San Diego 'fitandards for 
Public and Private Roads. ?' 

(c) All fire apparatus access roads ~hall have an unobsq1ieted vertical clearance of not 
less than 13 feet 6 inches. 

(d) Vertical clearances or road widths shall ,be in<;rl!ased when the fire code official 
determines that vertical flearances or road widths ~ · not adequate to provide fire 
apparatus access. 

(e) Vertical clearam:;_es-pr road width may be reduced when the fire code official 
determines the reduc;_tfim does llQ,l i,np-,lr access by fire apparatus. In cases where 
the 'vertical _plea.ranee Ji~ been reduced, approved signs shall be installed and 
J/ntlintained incli(;atiJ:zg the"'inouqt ofvertical clearance. 

(f)Dr4'~ays exceedi~ 150 feet in length, but less than 600 feet in length, shall 
provide'{!, turnout near the midpoint ofthe driveway. Where the driveway exceeds 600 
feet, turno1,4fs shall be provided no more than 400 feet apart. 

(g) For building!! that are more than 35 feet in height, a 35-foot unobstructed fire lane 
shall be provided. "(/nless otherwise approved by the fire code official. Fire apparatus 
access roads shall have an unobstructed width of not less than 35 feet when within 
laddering distance ofbuildings exceeding 35 feet in height. The access road shall be set 
back from buildings exceeding two stories in height such that the centerline of the fire 
access road shall be equal to 1/4 the difference in elevation from the fire access road to 
the roof The building curbside access roads serving buildings over two stories in height 
but less than 44 feet in height shall be permitted to be up to 10feet away from the building. 

Page 29 of96 



AMENDMENT TO SECTION 503.2.1 

Sec. 503.2.1 Road phasing requirement for single family dwellings on existing legal 
parcels. 

(a) The fire apparatus access road requirement for widening an existing, improved and 
paved fire apparatus access roadway shall be as provided in Table 503.2.1. The fire 
apparatus access road shall be constructed to extend from the property line to the nearest 
public road. 

TABLE 503.2.1 -PHASING REQU ........u..~NT 
Fire Apparatus Access Roadway - Singlf t'amily bwellings 

Number of 
Parcels Served 

1-2 

3-8 

9 or more 

Unobstructed 
RoadW 0 $h 
16-foott pafed. 

~o feet 
'Ilnmouts every 

Turnouts every 
400 feet 

aved 

(b) The fire apparatus access road s1'all n~" be -(e~to be improved for a non
habitable accessory struotttre~or a residentia{,~dition onr~odel less than 500 square feet 
ifthe fire apparatus a . ss rolt4 &ls already b~n improled and paved to a minimum width 
of 20 feet. Ifthe~ap.-is less thtat!. 20 feet wid~,th,r roadway shall be widened to 20 feet. 
The preceding addition.qr~emoileJ. exception is 'lipzited to one permit per three-year period 
from the date .qfthe last p'e(mlf ap~T. ,,,/ 

~ception: Veqi&l cle.ces.JJr road width may be reduced when the fire code 
offi~ttl}:let~rmines the r¥~tion doeJ;not impair access by fire apparatus. In cases where 
the verticmJ ol~arance has '3~n reduced, approved signs shall be installed and maintained 
indicating t~ an:t.ount ofvoctj.cal clearance. 

Sec. 503.2.2 Auth~rity ,to increase minimums. The fire code official shall have the 
authority to require w- permit modifications to the required access widths where they are 
inadequate for fire 4:5r rescue operations or where necessary to meet the public safety 
objectives of the jurisdiction. 

Sec. 503.2.3 Surface. Fire apparatus access roads shall be designed and maintained to 
support the imposed loads of fire apparatus (not less than 75,000 lbs. unless authorized by 
the fire code official) andshall be provided with an approved paved surface so as to provide 
all-weather driving capabilities. The paving and sub-base shall be installed to the standards 
specified in the County of San Diego Parking Design Manual. A residential driveway 

Page 30 of96 



constructed of 3½" Portland cement concrete may be installed on any slope up to 20% 
provided that slopes over 15% have a deep broom finish perpendicular to the direction of 
travel to enhance traction. The fire code official may allow a surfacing material of6 inches 
ofcompacted decomposed granite on fire apparatus access roads with a slope of10% or 
less in areas allowed by the San Diego County Standards for Private Roads. 

weather driving capabilities. The paving and sub-base shall be installed to the standards 
specified in the County of San Diego Parking Design Manual. A residential driveway 
constructed of 3½" Portland cement concrete may be installed /9R ~y slope up to 20% 
provided that slopes over 15% have a deep broom finish pe?ndicular to the direction of 
travel or other approved surface to enhance traction. 

Sec. 503.2.4 Roadway radius. The horizontal insi4~· r_q,dius ofa jire .apparatus access 
road shall comply with the County of San Die_gy, Publlc and Privat"/ Road Standards 
approved by the Board of Supervisors. The ,hor_izontal ~side radius of imy'ff}ublic or 
J:rivate drivewa! shall be a minimum of28o/"ee ·, _ds,me~SM"§!d_on the insijq,~dge of the 
improvement width or as approved by the fire code -o.fk;lfll Tile length oftertzcal curves 
offire apparatus access roads shall pot be less than 1{)/Jf~et, or as approved by the fire 
code official. 

Sec. 503.2.5 Dead ends. Dead-end fir apparatus- access roads in excess of 150 feet in 
length shall be provided with an approved-,YeaJbt tuniuigaftiund emergency apparatus. 

Sec. 503.2.5.1 'nead e.p.d, roads turr,.-around tequired. A cul-de-sac or other 
approved turn-arefuni shall be provided in r¢s.id~ntial areas where the fire apparatus 
access roads serve 3 or·"!fbre piJ-rce.ls.. The minl,,:um unobstructed radius width for a cu/
de-sac in a _res-id€lltiq,l areq shalt be lfl_Jeet paved, 40 feet graded, or as approved by the 
fire code 4:/.fflr:ial. }Jie fire 'bQ_de official s1iall establish a policy identifying acceptable 
turnardunds for vario~ project~. See Annex A & B for illustrations 

See. 503.2.5.2 De~~end toads. The maximum length of a dead-end road, 
including a11 _dead-end roods accessed from that dead-end road, shall not exceed the 
following cumu~tiv_e lengt ,· , regardless ofthe number ofparcels served: 
(Title 14 SRA 127'S.J)9 &t.) 
ZONING FOR PARCEL SERVED CUMULATIVE LENGTH 
BY DEAD-END R~AD(s) OF DEAD-END ROAD(s) 
Parcels zoned for less than I acre 800 feet 
Parcels zoned for 1 acre to 4.99 acres 1,320 feet 
Parcels zoned for 5 acres to 19.99 acres 2,640 feet 
Parcels zoned for 20 acres or larger 5,280 feet table 

All lengths shall be measured from the edge of the roadway surface at the intersection 
where the road begins to the end of the road surface at its farthest point. Where a dead-

Page 31 of 96 

https://piJ-rce.ls


end road crosses areas ofdiffering zoned parcel sizes, requiring different length limits, the 
shortest allowable length shall apply. Where parcels are zoned 5 acres or larger, 
turnarounds shall be provided at a maximum of1,320 foot intervals. Each dead-end road 
shall have a turnaround approved by the fire code official and constructed at its terminus. 

A turnaround shall be provided to all building sites on driveways over 150 feet in 
length, and shall be within fifty (50) feet ofthe building. 

Sec. 503.2.6 Bridges and elevated surfaces. Where a bridge or an elevated surface is part 
of a fire apparatus access road, the bridge shall be cons~and maintained in 
accordance with AASHTO HB-17. Bridges and elevated sudaces shall be designed for a 
live load sufficient to carry the imposed loads of fire ap!? ~- Vehicle load limits and 
clearance limitations shall be posted at both entrances to¥dges wJiere required by the fire 
code official. Where elevated surfaces designed for ~gency vehiq.~·use are adjacent to 
surfaces which are not designed for such use, apJ$FovedlJarriers, apprqved signs or both 
shall be installed and maintained where requireiffiy the fi - code official. ,.. 

Sec. 503.2.6.1 Bridges with one traffic Ian~. ~en~pproved bfthe fire code 
official, private bridges providing ac;cess to not more ~dn two residential dwellings may 
have one 12-foot-wide travel lane and ltsball provide for~1t0bstructed visibility from one 
end to the other, and turnouts shall be ~etlat both ends. 

Sec. 503.2. 7 Grade. The g_radient for a fife CJ.f!'para~ ~fs roadway shall not exceed 
15.0%. The fire code o.qkjaimay allow r~way gratljs up to 20.0¾provided that the 
roadway suiface co-rifbrms to S<lldion 503. 2. 3. ,The fire code official may require additional 
mitigation measu~. 

Sec 50ld...;J'"1 Cros -Slope. -The§ltrnd'f/(rd cross-slope shall be 2 percent; minimum 
cross-slopfJ,shall -bi: Ip~rcentf maximum cross-slope shall be 5 percent. 

""" .,;'Sec~:.,'(Q.l..8 Angles of ~ p,roach ·a1,1d Departure. The angles of approach and departure 
for fire appar.atus access 1l)8US shtfll not exceed 7 degrees (12 %) for the first 30' or as 
approved by {htJfire code ifficial and shall not allow for transitions between grades that 
exceed 6% ele~ou chan 'along any 10-foot section. 

Sec. 503.2.9 Roadw,r/l'urnouts. When required by the fire code official, turnouts shall 
be a minimum of12 feet wide and 30 feet long with a minimum 25-foot taper on each end. 
(Title 14 SRA 1273.06) 

Exception: The minimum width ofthe turnout may be reduced to 10 feet wide 
when the fire code official determines the reduction does not impair access by fire 
apparatus. 

Page 32 of96 



Sec. 503.3 Marking. When required by the fire code official, approved signs or other 
approved notices or markings that include the words "NO PARKING FIRE LANE" shall 
be provided for fire apparatus access roads to identify such roads or prohibit the obstruction 
thereof. Signs or notices shall be maintained in a clean and legible condition at all times 
and be replaced or repaired when necessary to provide adequate visibility 

Sec. 503.3.1 Fire Lane Designation. Where the fire code official determines that it 
is necessary to ensure adequate fire access, the fire code official .may designate existing 
roadways as fire apparatus access roads as provided by Vehicle{:~section 22500.1. 

Sec. 503.4 Obstruction of fire apparatus access roads. Fire-apparatus access roads shall 
not be obstructed in any manner, including the parking''9f vehi~s~ The minimum road 
widths and clearances established in sections 503 .2 .1 ~~ 500.2.2 shall'~ maintained at all 
. . ~ 

times. 
~ 

Sec. 503.4.1 Traffic calming devicesf Tmffic cahrii~~devices {inclMflfng, but not 
limited to, speed bumps, speed humps, speed control, dips,. etcJ shall be pr6hibited unless 
approved by the fire code official. 

Sec. 503.5 Required gates or barrica()e . The fire code ofvcla.lJis authorized to require 
the installation and maintenance ofgates vr other ,approved ba~cades across fire apparatus 
access roads, trails or other access ways, 1\0t in~udfng_ pttblic streets, alleys or highways. 
Electric gate openers, w4:tre j)rQvided, shalfbe listed i~ accordance with UL 325. Gates 
intended for automatto, operat¼>n-shall be de,\gned, constructed and installed to comply 
with the requirem~t~ ot:ASTM B2200. 

Sec. 503.5*1 Secure4! gates -an«i bartjeades. When required, gates and barricades 
shall be setured as JlpPr_oved-bJJ"the fire code official. Roads, trails and other access ways 
that havebeen closed·-~d obs~fed in the manner prescribed by section 503.5 shall not 
be tl'eSPllS&ed on or used'\lflless authQrized by the owner and the fire code official. 

Jb.ception: l'ti.e restriction on use shall not apply to public officers acting 
within the scope, o"f.duty. 

Sec. 503.5.2 ·&chool fences and gates. School grounds may be fenced and gates 
therein may be equipped with locks, provided that safe dispersal areas based on three 
square feet per occupant are located between the school and the fence. Such required safe 
dispersal areas shall not be located less than 50feetfrom school buildings. 

Every public and private school shall conform to Education Code section 32020, 
which states: 

Page 33 of96 



The governing board ofevery public school district and the governing authority of 
every private school, which maintains any building used for the instruction or housing of 
school pupils on land entirely enclosed (except for building walls) by fences or walls, shall, 
through the cooperation of local law enforcement and fire protection agencies having 
jurisdiction ofthe area, provide for the erection ofgates in these fences or walls. The gates 
shall be ofsufficient size to permit the entrance ofambulances, police equipment and fire
fighting apparatus used by law enforcement and fire protection agencies. There shall be 
no less than one access gate and there shall be as many ofthese gates as needed to ensure 
access to all major buildings and ground areas. Ifthese gates aPe,-~ped with locks, the 
locking devices shall be designed to permit ready entrance ,hy the use of chain or bolt
cutting devices with which the local law eriforcement andfae -p_rotection agencies may be 
equipped. 

:-..
Sec. 503.6 Security gates. No person shall install,ljsecuri'ty gate or se~rit,y device across 
a fire apparatus access road without the fire cal1e-.official~,approval. 

#-

1. An automatic gate across afire access roeefw drivifvay shall be'equipped with 
an approved emergency k~-operated switch _pv,erriding all command functions 
and opening the gate. 

2. A gate accessing more th~ fqµrc residences OT -lesftl,ential lots or a gate 
accessing hazardous, instituti ·nal, erJ.v,cational orjlssembly occupancy group 
structure, shall also be equipp~ witJfan-ap__provJ!d emergency traffic control
activating straf)JJ light. sensor or ~r device J{Pproved by the fire code official, 
which will-Qctivate '4,-e'gate on the ~proach ofemergency apparatus. 

3. An aut(lmq/ls gate w~all be pro -~ edp with a battery back-up or manual 
mechanical ~eonndct- m case of J!IIWer failure with ''fail open " and ''fail 
secUFe" options-..::n'6ble'dmprevf!frt}lntrapment. 

4. -1n au~afir::, gate '4zall meet fire- department policies deemed necessary by the 
fire code offtpi'hlfor rspt:ri,,, r~liable access. 
When require b)J. the flre7 code official, an automatic gate in existence at the

{!me of adoptioff: of thisJ,,chapter is required to install an approved emergency 
key-operated swlt ·. h or other mechanism approved by the fire code official, at 
an appmved lo<iq:tion, which overrides all command functions and opens the 
gate. J1. propepty owner shall comply with this requirement within 90 days of 
receiving wr;itten notice to comply. 

6. Where thif section requires an approved key-operated switch, it may be dual
keyed or equipped with dual switches provided to facilitate access by law 
eriforcement personnel. 

7. All gates providing access from a road to a driveway shall be located a minimum 
of30 feet from the nearest edge of the roadway and shall be at least two feet 
wider than the width ofthe traffic lane(s) serving the gate. 

Page 34 of96 



8. Electric gate openers, where provided, shall be listed in accordance with UL 325. 
Gates intended for automatic operation shall be designed, constructed and 
installed to comply with the requirements ofASTMF2200. 

SEC. 505 PREMISES IDENTIFICATION 

Section 505 of the California Fire Code is revised to read: 

Sec. 505.1 Address identification. New and existing buildin~.~l be provided with 
approved address identification. The address identification sludtbe legible and placed in a 
position that is visible from the street or road fronting the,ptop~rly. 
Address identification characters shall contrast with thei[, backgr"'und. Address numbers 
shall be Arabic numbers or alphabetical letters. N1pflb~rs~hall not ,be spelled out. Each 
character shall be not less than 4 inches ( 102 m1p): high iith a minim-uµi stroke width of 
½-inch (12.7 mm) for residential buildings, "8- inches igh with a 1-ip.&h ~rake for 
commercial and multi-family residential buildings.. and 12 in~es high with a )'-inch stroke 
for industrial buildings. Where required by the fire cod,, offibial, addresf identification 
shall be provided in additional approy,ed locations to fac"lhate emergency response. Where 
access is by means of a private road ~d the building c~ot be viewed from the public 
way, a monument, pole or other sign \Or ~ shall be ~d t,d·identify the structure. 
Address identification shall be maintain ·, 

Sec. 505.2 Street or roaf!iif ns . .. Streets amf toads shallpe identified with approved signs. 
Temporary signs shalt ·be ~11~.d at each street intersection when construction of new 
roadways allows wt~gt\by vehicles. Signs sh,U b~ of an approved size, weather-resistant 
and be maintained unti'i ,replaced' by permanent signs. All new public roads, all private 
roads within major subdfv.jsfons and qll ~ate road easements serving four or more 
parcels sJta/l be Jl.(lm:e4. R~ name signs shall comply with County of San Diego 
Departfnent ofPublic}forks Des~S(t;ndard #DS-13. 

Sec so,:1~1Traffic Access Limitations. Signs identifying traffic access limitations 
shall be placed·-a/ th!:! inters~ction preceding the traffic access limitation, and no more than 
100 feet before su'BI! 'tra/fJc access limitation 

Sec. 505.3 Easeme,(t address signs. A road easement which is not named differently from 
the roadway from which it originates shall have an address sign installed and maintained 
listing all street numbers occurring on that easement. The sign shall be located where the 
easement intersects the named roadway. The numbers on the sign shall contrast with the 
background and have a minimum height of4 inches and a minimum stroke of½-inch. 

Page 35 of96 



Sec. 505.4 Directory map. A lighted directory map acceptable to the F AHJ, shall be 
installed at the driveway entrance to a residential multi-family project or a mobile home 
park, with more than 15 units. 

Sec. 505.5 Response map updates. Any new development which necessitates updating 
emergency response maps due to new structures, hydrants, roadways or similar features 
shall be required to provide map updates in a format compatible with current department 
mapping services and shall be charged a reasonable fee for updating all response maps. 

SEC. 506.1.3 EMERGENCY KEY ACCESS. 

Section 506.1.3 is added to the California Fire C~ porti'Qp to read: 

Sec. 506.1.3 Emergency key access. All central~tion.Tuonitored firn,dotection systems 
and automatic sprinkler systems shall have an ~proved e1'ergency key a~ess ~x on site 
in an approved location. The owner or occuian·~l provqle and maintai~eurrent keys 
for any structure for fire department placement · ·~ bo~ and shall fi'otify the fire 
department in writing when the builc\ing is re-keyed. 

Page 36 of96 



SEC. 507.2 TYPE OF WATER SUPPLY. 

Section 507 .2 of the California Fire Code is revised to read: 

Sec. 507.2 Type of water supply. A water supply may consist of reservoirs, pressure 
tanks, elevated tanks, water mains or other fixed systems, as approved by the fire code 
official, capable of providing the required fire flow. In setting the requirements for fire 
flow, the fire code official shall follow section 507.3 or Append~ B of the CFC, or the 
standard published by the Insurance Service Office, "Guide for [:Ji}tebJ}.ination ofRequired 
Fire Flow". 

Sec. 507.2.1 Private fire service mains. P.)ivate we· service mains and 
appurtenances shall be installed in accordance with ~.P!'i4 as referenced in Chapter 80 
of CFC. 

Sec. 507.2.2 Water tanks. Water tanks for.pri~ate ~ential fire pr@tection, when 
authorized by the fire code official, shall comply W{tlt :f(lble )07.2.2 and tie installed in 
accordance with the NFPA 22 editiop referenced in ~pter 80 of CFC. Water tanks for 
commercial fire protection, when aut rized by the fire CS:,de,official, shall be installed in 
accordance with the NFPA 22 edition re~itced in ChapterJOcyf CFC. Water tanks are 
only allowed ifa letter from the applicab'fi! wate,c_µl~trict is pr9yided stating that extending 
the water line and adding a hydrant is un tvicqible. 

T ABL -$.07.2.2 
RESIDENTIAL WATER T \ ,J,( RE UIREMENTS 

Building DurationGai\obs P~r Minut~ Capacity 
Square Eeet MinutesWaterffow -0,allons 

JJp,td 1,500 2~0 5,000 20 
Over l, 5()0 250 10,000 40 
When th~ exposure distance is one hundred feet (100') or less from an adjacent 
property, or ,where additibnal hazards or higher fire flow exists, the required water 
stora e mav be IflQdified b the fire code official. 

1. Tank bottom elevation shall be equal to or higher than the fire department connection 
on the premises. Regardless of domestic use, all tanks shall be equipped with a device that 
will ensure that the tank contains the designated amount of water for fire flow duration as 
determined by the FAHJ. Tank size may be increased to serve multiple structures on a 
single parcel. The bottom ofthe water storage tank shall be level with or above the building 
pad. 

Page 37 of96 



2. Supply outlet shall be at least one-4 inch in diameter from the base of the tank to the 
point of outlet at the fire department connection. The fire department connection shall have 
an approved means of controlling water flow. The fire department connection shall be at 
least one-4 inch National Standard Thread (male), reduced to one- 2½ inch National 
Standard Thread (male). Additional outlets may be required. 

3. Location of fire department outlet shall be shown on the plot plan when submitted 
to the FAHJ. Consideration will be given to topography, elevations, and distance from 
structures, driveway access, prevailing winds, etc. 

4. The outlet shall be located along a fire apparatus*~ roadway and shall not be 
closer than 50 feet or further than 150 feet from the struc~ unle~ approved by the F AHJ. 

, . ~ 

5. All exposed tank supply pipes shall be liste.d;ror abive-ground u~ t:ts per the NFP A 
13 edition referenced in Chapter 80 of CFC. Adequate su ort shall be p~~-

6. Water storage tanks shall be constructed from,ma,$ials1tpproved b/the NFPA 22 
edition referenced in Chapter 80 of eye and installed ~!'manufacturer instructions. 

7. Plans shall be submitted to the F,A.-HJ:- fur. .approval p~r te;fank installation. Tanks 
shall be installed as per County Zoning setlJack~uiTements. r "Annex F" example plan 
submittal. 

. . ~ 

8. Vessels previousry usedfoti products o'tp.er than water shall not be allowed. 

9. All underground-,piping ~enung the fire ijepartment connection shall be listed and 
approved as ,per the. NFP.k ,7.4'edit1nn re,.~ in Chapter 80 of CFC. 

SEC. sd:1.3 FIRE FbQ'W. 

Se~ful 507.3 of th~ G,alifoi4:iia Fire Code is revised to read: 

Sec. 507.3 Fi Dow. Fh:e flow requirements shall be based on Appendix B of the 
California Fire Coqe'·or~e standard published by the Insurance Services Office, "Guide 
for Determination of ~equired Fire Flow." Consideration should be given to increasing 
the gallons per minute to protect buildings and structures ofextremely large square footage 
and for such reasons as: poor access roads, grade and canyon rims, hazardous brush and 
response times greater than five minutes by a recognized fire department or fire suppression 
company. In hazardous fire areas the main capacity for new subdivisions shall not be less 
than 2,500 - 3,000 gallons per minute, unless otherwise approved by the fire code official. 
If fire flow increases are not feasible, the fire code official may require alternative design 
standards such as: alternative types of construction that provides a higher level of fire 
resistance, fuel break requirements, which may include required irrigation, modified access 

Page38 of96 



.

road requirements, specified setback distances for building sites addressing canyon rim 
developments and hazardous brush areas, and other requirements as authorized by this 
chapter and as required by the fire code official. 

SEC. 507.5.7 FIRE HYDRANT AND FIRE VALVE LOCATION. 

Section 507.5.7 is added to the California Fire Code to read: (Title 14 1275.15) 

Sec. 507.5.7 Fire hydrant and fire valve location. The fire hy.dtan~r fire valve shall be 
between 14 to 24 inches above grade, no closer than 4 feet not further than 10 feet from 
the roadway, and 10 feet from combustible vegetation. 

Sec. 507.5.7.1 Signing of water sources aml fi,reilepartri\ nt,.connections. The 
fire code official shall require fire hydrants a~ fire.._ department ~onnections to be 
identified. Fire hydrants shall be identified by a'raflective qlue marker anafl.te-d,partment 
connections shall be identified by a reflectivi"gree,z marken, t,yith a minimum f/fmension of 
3 inches, in the center of the travel lane adjacent th( ~r ~urce, or by ither methods 
approved by the fire code official. 

All materials shall be listed and appro~Jzy the water pu~dr-tfnd/or fire code official. 
The fire code official may require afire ·.rant/,Q liavf! any COJ!lbination ofone-4 inch and 
one-2 ½ inch outlets with National Stand~d feads. 

SEC. 507.5.8 WATERLINE XTENSION~~ 

Section 507.5.81~ aadedlo-the California Fire Code to read: 

Sec. 507.5:8 ·Wa~rltn~ Ex~nsions. The· fire code official may require a waterline 
extensi6n for the pul'PQse -of instti_flin,g,p fire hydrant if a water main is 1,500 feet or less 
from~ property line. Water tanks ~e only allowed if a letter from the applicable water 
district is provided statiq.g ' that 6extending the water line and adding a hydrant is 
unserviceabl~ 

SEC. 605.3.1 SPAlll(AMESTERS. 

Section 605.Y~l is added to the California Fire Code to read: 

Sec. 605.3.1 Spark arresters. All buildings and structures having a chimney, flue or 
stovepipe attached to a fireplace, stove, barbecue or other solid or liquid fuel burning 
equipment or device shall have the chimney, flue or stovepipe equipped with an approved 
spark arrester. An approved spark arrester is a device intended to prevent sparks from 
escaping into the atmosphere, constructed of welded or woven wire mesh, 12-gauge 

Page 39 of96 

https://507.5.81


thickness or larger, with openings no greater than½" inch, or other alternative material the 
F AHJ determines provides equal or better protection. 

SEC. 605.8.1 RESIDENTIAL INCINERATORS. 

Section 605.8.1 of the California Fire Code is revised to read: 

Sec. 605.8.1 Residential Incinerators. Residential incinerators are prohibited in the 
unincorporated area ofthe County. 

SEC. 903.2 AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER SYSTEMS-W(l~E,REQUIRED. 

Section 903.2 of the California Fire Code is revhed"11:J read: 
~~ 

903.2 Where required. Approved automatic spfiruder sys~ms shall be in~~n all new 
buildings. For the purpose ofautomatic sprinti.e~tems, buildings separat~by less than 
10 feet from adjacent buildings shall be consideF¢' dpe Wilding. Firl barriers and 
partitions, regardless of rating, shall.._not be considered,~,.creating separate buildings for 
purposes of determining automatic swfbk].er system reqo.vem.ents. Mezzanines shall be 
included in the total square footage cal~~~. All new bu14fibttconstructed shall have 
an approved NFPA 13, NFPA 13R or NP~A ~I? tmto!?atic Fnkler system installed as 
per 903.3.1.1, 903 .3.1.2 or 903 .3.1.3. The f\ke Cqde Otficim)as the final decision ofwhich 
NFPA 13 standard to a~ al'-required due,t<J,access, "j¼ter supply and travel time. 

Exception$,¼ 
1. Group U occupan,cies net.greater tha11,, 500 square feet, and when the building is 

more twin 10 fe from an a4iacem.;b"uilding or property line measured from the 
1arthest.p)."ojiectionffom the buildfng. 

~- i\gricultural b~ldings Cqrt$tructed ofwood or metal frames over which fabric or 
~irn.ilar material is\ stret&ed, which are specifically used as green houses are 
ex:~pt from the automatic sprinkler system requirements unless physically 
comi~tM to otht;r building. 

903.2 (a) Additjons. An automatic sprinkler system shall be required to be installed 
throughout the building when the addition is more than 50% of the existing building or 
when the altered building will exceed a fire flow as calculated pursuant to section 507.3. 
The fire code official may require an automatic sprinkler system to be installed in buildings 
where no water main exists to provide the required fire flow or where a special hazard 
exists, such as poor access roads, steep grades and canyon rims, hazardous brush and 
response times greater than 5 minutes by a fire department. The fire code official may 
require that other protective measures be taken based on existing conditions and/or 

Page40 of96 

https://swfbk].er


potential hazards. The preceding addition or remodel exception is limited to one permit per 
three-year period from the date of the last permit approval. 

903.2 (b) Remodels or reconstructions. The fire code official may require an 
automatic sprinkler system to be installed throughout buildings if a remodel or 
reconstruction includes significant modification to the interior or roof of the building. The 
fire code official may require that other protective measures be taken based on existing 
conditions and/or potential hazards. The preceding addition or remodel exception is limited 
to one permit per three-year period from the date of the last pern4.t ap~roval. 

903.2 (c) Group U Occupancies. For Group U Occµpa~ies, greater than 500 square 
feet, an approved automatic sprinkler system shall be irt~talled as per NFP A 13D edition 
referenced in Chapter 80 CFC, or as approved by the tfJI1~ ' 

'" 
SEC. 903.4 AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER SYS'r-EM M~NITORING A D ALARMS. 

Section 903.4 of the California Fire Code is ~vtseifto ~d: 

Sec. 903.4 Automatic Sprinkler systeritsupervision and,ahlrms. All valves controlling 
the water supply for automatic spri~et systems, pumw,, ,qtftks, water levels and 
temperatures, critical air pressures and \water-flow switche~, ,On all automatic sprinkler 
systems shall be electronically supervised\\>y a Jfsted4i_nfal1;lfm control unit. 

Exceptions: 
1. AutomlltlG ~prinkler ~ystems with le$s than 100 fire sprinklers protecting one
family and two-fi\niily dwellings and Group U occupancies. 

2. ,.(imited'4I"ea sprink:l~r systems in accordance with Section 903.3.8. 

4- Automatic sptjnkler systems installed in accordance with NFP A 13R edition 
refeyenced in Chap~r 80 CFC. Where a common supply main is used to supply both 
domestfo,water and th~ automatic sprinkler system and a separate control valve for 
the auto11µ1ti<; sprinlder system is not provided. 

4. Jockey pump'control valves that are sealed or locked in the open position. 
<'. ·' 

5. Control valves to commercial kitchen hoods, paint spray booths or dip tanks that 
are sealed or locked in the open position. 

6. Valves controlling the fuel supply to fire pump engines that are sealed or locked 
in the open position. 

Page41 of96 



7. Trim valves to pressure switches in dry, preaction and deluge sprinkler systems 
that are sealed or locked in the open position. 

SEC. 1205.5 GROUND-MOUNTED PHOTOVOLTAIC ARRAYS. 

Section 1205.5 of the California Fire Code is revised to read: 

Sec. 1205.5 Ground-mounted photovoltaic arrays. Ground-mounted photovoltaic array 
installations shall meet the requirements ofsections 1205.5.1 th rugJ:i._J 205. 5. 4. 

Sec. 1205.5.1 Fire apparatus access roads. Fifi! 11{>/Jaratus access roads to 
ground-mounted photovoltaic arrays, associated equtptfJ,ent structures and 
operations/maintenance buildings shall comply with,,sc.eit1i 503. 

Exception: Private residential an~ agricul!~ral s~e~s less than J0'ac,es in si~e 
and where the energy generated is p-Ama,q°"for ou-~te use are exen,pt from this 
requirement subject to the approval ofthe fin,. datlp,offi~al. I<'· 

Sec. 1205.5.2 Perimeter fir lpparatus access toadway. Ground-mounted 
photovoltaic arrays 10 acres or largt;1: ,il:t size shall pro~· ¢fire apparatus access 
roadway around the perimeter ofthe proNc:t. ~erimeterfi'7'apparatus access roadway 
shall comply with section 503. 

~ 

Sec. 1205.5.~ ,Fuel mo«'-ification. Co1fl,,bustible vegetation within the array and to 
a distance of30fe.,ltfrdn:i the array and associqtt;d,,.;,equipment shall be reduced to a height 
ofno more than 6 inch~. The fa't!lmodificatiom.

7 
zone may be increased when required by 

the fire code rJif.u;,ial or as 'r~Co:mmendbJ,'-ajhf%protection plan. 

/Exception: For ,private ~itienJja,l and agricultural systems less than 10 acres in 
-B.jze, f!,nd where thf iJ.nergy'Kf}nerated is used primarily on-site, the required fuel 
motfjfication zone '/n,t,,y befreduced to 10 feet from the array and associated 
equi~int. 

' 
Operation/mainte~e 1;,uildings shall be provided with fuel modification zones that 
comply with section 4~7. 5. 

;, 

Sec. 1205.5.4 Water supply. Water supply forfire protection and suppression shall 
be provided for equipment structures and operations/maintenance buildings as required 
by section 5 07. 

Sec. 1205.6 Identification. Ground-mounted photovoltaic arrays with multiple equipment 
structures shall include a means ofreadily identifying each equipment structure. The fire 

Page42 of96 



code official may require a lighted directory map ofthe project to be installed on-site near 
the entrance to the facility for projects of10 or more acres in size. 

SEC. 2808 STORAGE AND PROCESSING OF WOOD CHIPS, HOGGED 
MATERIAL, FINES, COMPOST, SOLID BIOMASS FEEDSTOCK AND RAW 
PRODUCT ASSOCIATED WITH YARD WASTE, AGRO-INDUSTRIAL AND 
RECYCLING FACILITIES. 

Section 2808 of the California Fire Code is revised to re84; 

Sec. 2808.1 General. The storage and processing (mulching, "&pm.posting) of wood chips, 
hogged materials, fines, compost, solid biomass feedsto~ and raw pi:oduct produced from 
yard waste, debris and agro-industrial and recycling,(~~~ties shall~ in accordance with 
section 2808.1 through 2808.10.10. 

Sec. 2808.2 Storage sites. Storage sites stall j)e, level and on solid gnt;,md or other 
approved all-weather surface. ?' 

Sec. 2808.3 Size of piles. Pile height, width and length sha\J be limited to criteria approved 
by the fire code official, based in part -~ §ite material ha~'ing'equipment. In no case 
shall a pile exceed 12 feet in height, 100 '(eet in-width and 20~ feet in length. 

Sec. 2808.4 Pile separa~p. Piles shall be ~parated frof ,adjacent piles and property lines 
by fire department aoce,ss roa ays. 

Sec. 2808.5 CombustibJe vegetatio.n. control. The operator shall clear any combustible 
material, weedsr brush, tre~ 6r other ~,.getati_6ii (including mulch) that is or may become, 
dry and capable-oftfatismitting ftte, from w"ithin 50 feet ofraw green waste and mulch piles. 
Clearanoe shall be to ~are earth--Pi' appxoved pavement. Individual growing trees within 
thakdi~\aflCe may remain, su,bject to the fire code official's approval. 

Sec. 2808.6 -$fatic pile protection. Interior pile temperatures shall be monitored and 
recorded on a ~lar basis . per the Operational Plan. Internal pile temperatures shall be 
taken at½ the pile~eight,J2 to 24 inches from the surface with a probe-type thermometer. 
Readings shall be ma(}e at not greater than 50-foot intervals along the length of the pile. 
Temperatures abov&l 58° F are known to adversely affect microbial decomposition and 
are considered excessive. Infrared thermometers may be used to monitor for hot spots at 
the surface, but are not a substitute for internal probe measurement and documentation. 
Once windrows exceed 170° F, the windrows shall be reduced in size, be rotated and be 
monitored daily until temperatures drop below 158° F. All greenwaste stockpiles shall be 
re-mixed as necessary to alleviate any fire due to spontaneous combustion or temperatures 
above 170° F. Windrows shall be visually inspected on a regular basis. Once fires have 
been detected in any windrows at a site, this visual inspection shall be a minimum daily 

Page43 of96 

https://2808.10.10


requirement. Daily inspections shall continue until the threat of fire no longer exists and 
the fire code official agrees inspections may be discontinued. All temperature and pile
handling records shall be kept on file at the site and be made available for inspection by 
fire department personnel. Data shall include date, time, temperature, specific location and 
person conducting measurement. 

Sec. 2808. 7 Firefighting water supplies and storage. Firefighting water supplies shall 
conform to sections 2808.7.1 or 2808.7.2. 

Sec. 2808.7.1 Public water supply. The operator "1iall provide and maintain 
approved fire hydrants and waterline mains as required bi~ fire code official. Water 
lines may be approved aboveground lines supplied ~ a re~lJ'le water supply with 
adequate protection against impact and fire flow reacti~. ~drant S:N!Clllg shall be at 400-
foot intervals along primary fire access roadways~ l'ire fl&w at each hy,qrant shall be least 
1000 gallons per minute at 20 psi. Duration of ~require~reflow shall~ a.dptermined 
by the fire code official. 

Sec. 2808.7.2 Private water supply. Above-~otm.d water storage tanks may be 
installed when authorized by the fi~ code official w~e' public water supply is not 
adequate to meet fire flow requireme~. ~<mnne and dur~on;.if the required fireflow 
shall be as determined by the fire code o'$,cia1. 

shers: 

Sec. 2808.9 Mat~~-bandling (lquipment. lfkluipment used on all piles should be of a 
type that minimizes co~actimt All vehicles _,operating on or around the piles shall have 
a Class A fire -~tinguisnei:- (1t'a ~um: 2,A rating, in addition to the Class B rating 
appropriat~- for the vehicles. ,AJlproved material-handling equipment shall be available 
during.,fire fighting op~rations ft\r movjp.g wood chips, hogged material, compost and raw 
pro<ilttcqn-oduced from Nf(i\waste'1)¢wood fines. 

Sec. 2808.1.1) Qperational and emergency plans. The following operational and 
emergency acti~ plans sha1fbe submitted to and be approved by the fire code official prior 
to initiating an op~tioui.mder section 2808.10 through 2808.10.10: 

1. Operati6nal Plan. The operational plan shall include: Site layout, pile 
dimensions, fire access, water supply, site security, site operations, temperature 
monitoring, rotation and diversion plan. 

2. Emergency Plan. The emergency plan shall include: Operator fire response 
actions, fire dispersal area, emergency equipment operator callback and initiation of 
incoming diversion plan. All plans shall define the equipment necessary to process and 
handle the materials. 

Page44of96 

https://2808.10.10


Sec. 2808.10.1 Permit required. A permit shall be obtained from the fire code 
official prior to engaging in the operation and storing process of wood chips, hogged 
material, fines, compost and raw product in association with yard waste and similar 
material recycling facilities. The permit shall be renewed on an annual basis or shall be 
limited to such period of time as designated by the fire code official. Permits shall not be 
transferable and any change in use, location, occupancy, operation or ownership shall 
require a new permit. 

Sec. 2808.10.2 Financial assurance for cost rec6very. A security bond, 
irrevocable letter of credit or other approved form of finanqal-{l.Smrance shall be required 
to be posted, in an amount determined by the fire code ~fficial. Jbe financial assurance 
shall be a minimum of $25,000.00 and a maximum af)j0(\000.00, -<jepending on the size 
of operation. The financial assurance shall reim ·arse file fire departlpent for expenses 
incurred in any emergency response and/or enforcement ¥tion by the fi~ (kp~ment to 
protect the public from fire or hazardous subitan s' related (\),the operation: The fmancial 
assurance shall be returned to the operator in a timely :fasijion rihce the oper~tion is closed, 
to the satisfaction of the fire code official. 

I . 

Sec. 2808.10.3 Notification of :Qre det,artment. The~~~or shall report all fires 
to the fire department immediately upon '1iscov-ecy. 

Sec. 2808.10.4. EQ!i9:1n1~nt operator emergeniy callback. The operator shall 
implement and maintarn a p1'8\ll for rapid eq\lipment operator response to the site. The 
maximum respon,e Sime to the1 site shall b_h. w,,ithin one hour of a fire department 
notification. The followJng eqwpme11t shall be mi site and staffed with skilled operators: 
bulldozer, loaaeFs and hea,vy- duty ceqqipmerf(necessary to mitigate a fire. Notification 
procedun(shall be l)laintainedpperational 24 hours a day, seven days a week. Notification 
may bt,hy pager actiVf,\ti<>n, telepp.one ~swering service, or other approved means. 

Sec, 2808.10.5 In~ming *aste diversion plan. The operator shall develop a 
diversion pl~ for incoming! greenwaste for implementation in the event of equipment 
failure or other _inapility N process and distribute greenwaste. The plan shall prevent 
stockpiling of was~ on -tl,te site and unauthorized depositing of waste on or near the site. 
The operator shall initiate the diversion plan based on criteria in the Operational and 
Emergency Plan witfiout further direction from the fire department. 

Sec. 2808.10.6 Unprocessable or non-greenwaste material. All greenwaste that 
cannot be processed on-site, such as stumps and fibrous plants, shall be immediately 
removed from the feedstock, stored in roll-off containers or bins and be removed from the 
facility on a weekly basis. All plastic bags shall be removed prior to shredding material. 

Page45 of96 

https://af)j0(\000.00
https://25,000.00


Sec. 2808.10.7 Fire access roadway. A fire access roadway shall be provided to 
the site and on the site. Each roadway shall be at least 20 feet wide, but the fire code 
official may require a greater width, depending on site conditions. The operator shall also 
be required to obtain the fire code official's approval for the type ofdriving surface for the 
onsite access roadway. 

Sec. 2808.10.8 General safety rules for site equipment maintenance. Welding 
or cutting torch operations shall be conducted a minimum of 30. feet from combustible 
materials. A fire watch shall be provided to detect fire, and to ~ fire-extinguishing 
equipment throughout the welding or cutting operation "1ld 30 minutes thereafter. 
Refueling and on-site maintenance shall meet Califo~ · re, Code requirements in 
Chapters 23 & 57 and all other applicable fire code requ.ments. 

. ~ 

Sec. 2808.10.9 Site security. Pile storag~*as sfiall be surrounq.ett with approved 
fencing. Fences shall be a minimum of 6 feet mheight. " 

# 

Sec. 2808.10.10 Smoking and open bur ip.g--prohi61ted. The 'i>perator shall 
prohibit smoking and open flame pn the operation'al ~ite, including smoking within 
vehicles. Approved signs shall be cl "iy and prominenlif. posted, and shall be enforced 
by the site operators. No open burning 'be-allowed on ~e: --? 

SEC. 3319. FUEL MODIFICATION ZQNE REQUf MiNTS 

Section 3319 i ,added tv the Californi~• Fire Codtto read: 

Sec. 3319.1 Fuel modifi~ationizoneduring con truction. Any person doing construction 
of any kind w.e.tGh requir~ a:perrmt J.t!!der tPfs code or the County Building Code shall 
install a ~modifi.pation zon~ prior to allowing any combustible material to arrive on the 
site and shall maintain,th6'zone -d.µting/p:ie duration of the project. 

SEC. 490~ DEFINITIO~S. 

Section 4.f}02 _ofthe(Yalifornia Fire Code is revised to read: 

Sec. 4902.1 General. )"or the purposes ofthis chapter, certain terms are defined as follows: 

BUILDING OFFICIAL means the Director of the Planning and Development Services 
or any person appointed or hired by the Director to administer or enforce the County's 
planning and construction standards. The building official duties shall include plan 
checking, inspections and code enforcement. 

COMBUSTIBLE VEGETATION means material that in its natural state will readily 
ignite, burn and transmit fire from native or landscape plants to any building or other 

Page46 of96 

https://2808.10.10


vegetation. Combustible vegetation includes dry grass, brush, weeds, litter or other 
flammable vegetation that creates a fire hazard. 

DEFENSIBLE SP ACE is an area either natural or man-made, where material capable of 
allowing a fire to spread unchecked has been treated, cleared or modified to slow the rate 
and intensity of an advancing wildfire and to create an area for fire suppression operations 
to occur. Distance measurements for defensible space shall be measured on a horizontal 
plane. 

FUEL BREAK is an area, strategically located for fighting /~ticipited fires, where the 
native vegetation has been permanently modified or replaced~o' that fires burning into it 
can be more easily controlled. Fuel breaks divide fir~-f,fone ar~s into smaller areas for 
easier fire control and to provide access for firefighting; · '\ 

" 
OPEN SP ACE EASEMENT means any right or intere ,in perpetuity tor~ term for 
years in open-space land, as that term is d~finel·mGovernment Code se,ption 51051, 
acquired by the County, a city or a non-profit org~ati4n' w~re the instr«ment granting 
the right or interest imposes restrictipn on use of the laµd;,. to preserve the land for public 
use or enjoyment of the natural or sceiµc·c;haracter of the'i~nd. 

OPEN SPACE PRESERVE means ~pen--sp_ace land, aJ that term is defined in 
Government Code section 65560(b ), for · e p~serva,tion (1f natural resources, managed 
production of resources, '(lytdbar recreation, ,~ublic heal~ and safety, buffer for a military 
installation or the pro(ection ofcultural res011{¢es. 

SLOPE is the variation,~f terrain from the ho~ntal; the number of feet, rise or fall per 
100 feet, measured. horiz0tttaf1y, expr~s~d ~ fa percentage. Regardless of manufactured 
cut, fill or-Jiaturai •slope.. 

TREE (ROWN means ,~e primary and secondary branches growing out from the main 
stem, toge~er with twigs ~d foliage. 

Section 4903 .1.1 of the California Fire Code is added to read: 

SECTION 4903.1.1 
FIRE PROTECTION PLAN WHEN REQUIRED 

Sec. 4903.1.1 When required. Planning and Development Services or the FAHJ shall 
require an applicant for a parcel map, subdivision map, specific plan or major use permit 
for any property located in a wildland-urban interface fire area to submit a Fire Protection 

Page47 of96 



Plan (FPP) as part of the approval process located in mapped any Fire Hazard Severity 
Zones for LRA and SRA. 

SEC. 4905 WILDFIRE PROTECTION BUILDING CONSTRUCTION 

Section 4905 of the California Fire Code is revised to read: 

Sec. 4905.2 Construction methods for exterior wildfire expos.ure. The construction 
methods for exterior wildfire exposure in a wildland-urban inteifp~re area shall be as 
provided in Chapter 7A ofthe County Building Code. 

SEC. 4906 VEGETATION MANAGEMENT 

Section 4906 of the California Fire Code is/pevisetlto read: 

,i., - ' \, 

Sec. 4906.3 Landscape plans. When requireu byjlie.-F AHJ hmdscape plans 1liall be 
provided to the F AHJ or a designated third party fo1:\¢'ny 1iie~'onstruction fmd or 
addition for residential and commerc;ial buildings or a~tssory thereof Plans shall be 
submitted and approved prior to any framing inspection. 'hJ addition, plans shall be 
provided when modifications occur to <Jf!,J'Jl!'~usly appro~lajidscape plan or to the 
Home Ignition Zones. 

Sec. 4906.3.1 C.Jmhii-JL,Landscape@ns shall cgntain the following: 
1. Plans shall be prepared by a California Licensed Landscape Architect, Architect, 

or Civil Engineer. A landscape designer could prepare planting plans only (not 
irrigation) for a single-family residence but would need one of the above 
professionals to stamp the plans verifying compliance with the regulations. 

2. Provide plans with a readable (Engineer or Architect) scale. 

~3. Delineation of fuel modification zones and Home Ignition Zones with a general 
description of the zone's dimensions and character. 

4. Describe and show existing vegetation on plan. 

5. Designate irrigated areas on the plan. 

6. Include a Plant Legend with both botanical and common names for existing and 
proposed plant material. 

7. Define all symbols, site amenities, features, and shaded areas, etc. used on the 
plans. 

8. Draw all plant symbols of what the full mature canopy size will be. 

9. Include quantities of trees and large shrubs being proposed. 

4906.3.2 Landscaping Installation. All landscaping shall be installed per the 
approved plan prior to final inspection for issuance of certificate of occupancy. 

Page48 of96 

mailto:C.Jmhii-JL,Landscape@ns


Sec. 4906.4 Vegetation. All new vegetation shall be drought tolerant and fire-resistant 
vegetation in accordance with this section. 

Exception: Trees classified as non-fire resistant vegetation complying with Section 
4906.4.2.1 
To be considered fire resistant vegetation, it must meet at least one ofthe following: 
1. Be identified as fire-resistant vegetation in an approved book, journal or listing 

from an approved organization. 
2. Be identified as fire-resistant vegetation by a licensed landscape architect with 

supporting justification. " 
3. Plants considered fire resistant vegetation and approved by the local enforcing 

agency. 

Sec. 4906.4.1 Shrubs. All new plantings of fu'!!ts-iplanted ir,. Zone 1 and Zone 2 
shall comply with the following: 
1. Shrubs shall not exceed 6 feet in height •. 
2. Groupings of shrubs are limited to<fin~imum ~gate diameter,of 10 feet. 
3. Shrub groupings shall be separated from other/groupings a mininfum of 15 feet 
4. Shrub groupings shall be s,eparated from s~tures a minimum of 30 feet. 
5. Where shrubs are located '\,elo.w or within a ~e~s drip line, the lowest tree 

branch shall be a minimum o thr~e·times the heigl\t of·the understory shrubs or 
10 feet whichever is greater. 

( 

6. Ornamental grasses shall be plat,Jed,4, mlnilpiim j feet from any structure. 

Sec. 4906.t.'l fte~s. Tree~; shall be ma11agep as follow within the 50' foot zone of 
a structure: 
1. New trees shall'b_e 'planted--au,p ~ained so that the tree's drip line at maturity 

js a minit_mim of lO/eet from any combustible structure. 
-l. The horizo a1 distance between crowns of new trees and crowns of adjacent 

trees shall not'~~ less thaJ;!_10 feet. 
3. Existing trees shall be trimmed to provide a minimum separation of10feet (3048 

mm) away from roof lines, barbecue, fire pit, other heat or flame producing 
devices, chimney and stovepipe outlets per Title 14, Section 1299. 03. 

4. For streetscape plantings, all non-fire resistive trees shall be planted so that the 
center ofthe tree trunk is 20 feet from edge ofcurb. Fire resistive trees may be 
planted 10feet from edge ofcurb to center oftree trunk. 

Sec. 4906.4.2.1 Non-fire-resistant vegetation. New trees not classified as fire 
resistant vegetation, such as conifers (including Junipers and Cypress), palms with 
fibrous tissues, pepper trees, acacia species, bamboo species and eucalyptus 
species, and other species deemed highly flammable by the F AHJ shall be permitted 

Page49 of96 



provided the tree is planted and maintained so that the tree's drip line at maturity is 
a minimum 30 feet from any combustible structure. 

SEC. 4907 DEFENSIBLE SPACE & 
ANNEXE "DEFENSIBLE SPACE ORDINANCES FOR FIRE DISTRICTS" 

Section 4907 of the California Fire Code is revised to read: 

Sec. 4907.4 Building and Structure setbacks from property li1'e . J'he building official 
shall establish the minimum setbacks for locating a buildi)Jg find striicture on a lot in a 
wildland-urban interface fire area. The setbacks may be ~~~an the minimum setbacks 
provided in the County Zoning Ordinance, when n~c~sary to ~t:otect a building and 
structure from an unreasonable hazard from a wildf~ 

Sec. 4907.4.1 General fire setbacks. Buildings aiw structures s~t b~etback a 
minimum of 30 feet from property lines ~d ~ok>gicall~n space eastllJ!ents unless 
existing permitted buildings and structures are loca~d~n~·o feet of th! property line 
or the County Zoning Ordinance reqajres a greater m~ttm. When the property line abuts 
a roadway, the setback shall be meastlfetl,from the centerlipe,-of the roadway. 

Exception: When both the buildi~ofll~and th.e F AJfJdetermine that the hazard 
from a wildland fire is not signi~t ,(fr ~- ~terrain, parcel size or other 
constraints on th@1J__a.re'ei-make the req,'dhed setba~infeasible. 

Sec. 4907-~ fi-,e setbaclfs adjacent nro~cted areas. Buildings and structures 
shall be setback a mini~of 00 feet_from a~property line adjacent to a national forest, 
state park or .opoo- space pr~StYVe. ~ s~[may be reduced when existing permitted 
buildings 1md stffi.xtllr-es are -lpcated within 100 feet of the property line or additional 
mitigat:ibn measures ari $1ployaj'thatpre satisfactory to both the F AHJ and the building 
offilitial. 

AMENDME~'I TO SECTION 4907.4.3 

Sec. 4907.4.3 BuilcJfng.afrd Structure setback from slope. Single-story 
buildings or structureBSv shall be setback a minimum 15 feet horizontally from top of slope 
to the farthest projeltion from the structure. A single-story building or structure shall be 
less than 12 feet above grade, measured from plate height. A two-story building or structure 
shall be setback a minimum of 30 feet horizontally from top of slope to the farthest 
projection from the structure. A two-story building or structure shall be greater than a 12-
foot plate height but shall not exceed 35 feet in total height. Buildings and structures greater 
than two stories may require a greater setback as determined by the fire code official. 
See Annex C for "Illustration of Slope" 

Page 50 of96 

mailto:th@1J__a.re'ei-make


Sec. 4907 .5 Fuel modification. A fuel modification zone shall be required around every 
building that is designed primarily for human habitation or use or a building designed 
specifically to house farm animals. Decks, sheds, gazebos, freestanding open-sided shade 
covers and similar accessory structures less than 250 square feet and 50 feet or more from 
a dwelling, and fences more than 5 feet from a dwelling, are not considered structures for 
the establishment of a fuel modification zone. A fuel modification zone shall comply with 
the following: 

(a) When a building or structure in a hazardous fire area is ifl~d 100 feet or more 
from the property line, the person owning or occupying ,building or structure shall 
maintain a fuel modification zone within 100 feet of the1ruil_ding or structure. See Sec. 
4907.9 "Home Ignition Zones" See Annex D for "Fu~ ModiflGatiQn". 

(b) The fire code official may increase the rue,, modification zone·'IJ'lor,e than the 100 
foot minimum if fuel and/or topography ate determi)led to increase ,$b'e-:ijre hazard 
severity. ~ 

(c) When a building or structure ,in a hazardous fin: area is setback less than 100 feet 
from the property line, the person wning or occupying the building or structure shall 
meet the requirements in subsection~ )-al?~, to the extent,.possible, in the area between 
the building or structure and the prop~ line. 

(d) The building ~fficlat and the R)\t{J may ,provide lists of prohibited and 
recommended plants. 

(e) The fuel modific~tion z0.ne "8hall be loca\e:d entirely on the subject property unless 
approved by the F AHJ. ~ s requirea ftlel-.tftodification zone may be reduced as allowed 
in subs¢etion-(,o) aboye oripcreased as required by a fire protection plan. 

' ~ 
(J) When the subject property coqtains an area designated to protect biological or other 
sensitiv~ habitat or res~e, noc:building or other ~truc~re requi~ng a fuel modification 
zone shall)>e located SOBS, to extend the fuel modification zone mto a protected area. 

(g) Improved "F{dperty,: Property owners shall be permitted to clear all combustible 
vegetation witq.in a one hundred (100) foot radius of all buildings and structures 
using method~-, such as mowing and trimming that leave plant root structure intact 
to stabilize soil. Clearing is not limited to these methods and discing, which exposes 
bare mineral soil, may be used if deemed necessary by the F AHJ. 

a. Where the distance from the structure to the property line of the parcel on 
which the building is located is less than the distance required to be cleared, 
(100'), the adjacent parcel owner may be required to establish the required 
fuel break to achieve the required distance of defensible space if such 
requirement is approved by the Fire Code Official. 

Page 51 of96 



Sec. 4907.6 Fuel modification of combustible vegetation from sides of roadways. The 
FAHJ may require a property owner to modify combustible vegetation in the area within 
20 feet from each side of the driveway or a public or private road adjacent to the property 
to establish a fuel modification zone. The F AHJ has the right to enter private property to 
ensure the fuel modification zone requirements are met. 

Exception: The FAHJ may reduce the width ofthe fuel modification zone ifit will 
not impair access. 

~ 
Sec. 4907.7 Community fuel modification. The FAHJ npfy'require a developer, as a 
condition of issuing a certificate of occupancy, to establisl(en~ $more fuel modification 
zones to protect a new community by reducing the fuel l~s adj~nt to a community and 
buildings within it. The developer shall assign the1~d om which: iJP.Y fuel modification 
zone is established under this section to the assocµfton oihther commOJ.l o~ner group that 
succeeds the developer as the person respons~Jt for co~n areas within~e--c.qmmunity. 

Sec. 4907.7.1 Land ownership. Once a fuel ~offi4eatiah zone has b&n established 
under section 4907. 5 the land on whiph the zone is loca(:ed,shall be under the control of an 
association or other common owner~p- established in metuity, for the benefit of the 
community to be protected. · -'? 

Sec. 4907.8 Maintenance of defensible space. Any.pe~twning, leasing, controlling, 
operating or maintaini~abui-Wing ~r s~~e requ~reJ1, to establish a fuel modification 
zone pursuant to Sec.'4907.5 s4ah mamtam t1'e defensible space. The F AHJ may enter the 
property to deteITQlne,_ifthe persop responsible.is cpmplying with this section. The FAHJ 
may issue an order to ~ person.1"6iponsible for,J11aintaining the defensible space directing 
the person to.mec;lify or r~ove non...~ resi~t vegetation from defensible space areas, 
remove ~s, ~liL and "Q._tlrer dead vegetative material from the roof of a building, 
maintain,trees as requi~ed,by Se& 4907.>8. l or to take other action the FAHJ determines is 
nec~'to comply wi~ ilie intent 9f/sections 4907 et seq. 

Sec. ::J90!;[.8.1 Trees. Crowns of mature trees located within defensible space shall 
maintain a mirliqrom horizoptal clearance of 10 feet for fire resistant trees and 30 feet for 
non-fire resistive tr.¢$. J4'ature trees shall be pruned to remove limbs to maintain a vertical 
separation of three t1~s the height of the lower vegetation or 6 feet, whichever is greater, 
above the ground srt'tface adjacent to the trees. Dead wood and litter shall be regularly 
removed from trees. Ornamental trees shall be limited to groupings of 2-3 trees with 
canopies for each grouping separated horizontally as described in Table 4907.8.1. 

Page 52 of96 

https://responsible.is


TABLE 4907.8.1 
DISTANCE BETWEEN TREE CANOPIES 

Distance between Tree Cano Percent Slo e 
Required Distances Between Edge of

Percent of Slope 
Mature Tree Cano 

0 to 20 10 feet 
21 to 40 20 feet 
41 lus 30 feet 

1. Determined from canopy dimensions as described in SunsetWesternGarden Book (Current • · "on) 

AMENDMENT TO SECTION 4907.8.2. 

Sec. 4907.8.2 Orchards, groves or vineyards.~ll orchards, groves ~f Vineyards shall 
be kept in a healthy state and free of combus#~ debris a&i vegetation, in~uttjifg dead or 
downed trees. A IO-foot firebreak shall be clear64 ai:o 4t~perimeter ojrany orchard, 
grove or vineyard. Dead grasses between rows of tr~ · vines shall be mowed. 

Page 53 of96 



Sec. 4907.9 Home Ignition Zones: 

4907.9.1 Zone 0 "Immediate Zone" 0-5' Meaning from exterior wall surface or 
patio, deck or attachment to building or structure extending 5 feet on a horizontal plane. 
This zone shall be constructed of continuous hardscape or non-combustible materials. 
Removal of combustible materials surrounding the exterior wall area and maintaining area 
free and clear of combustible materials. The use of mulch and other combustible materials 
shall be prohibited. 

~ 
4907.9.2 Zone 1 "Intermediate Zone" from Zone 0 to 50' means from the 

immediate edge of Zone O extending out in a horizontal pt~e. This zone shall consist of 
planting of low growth, drought tolerant and fire resisti~ plant sp_ecies. The height of the 
plants in this zone starts at 6" adjacent to Zone O and(~teri'ding in a~ar fashion up to a 
maximum of 18" at intersection with Zone 2. Ve¢ationTu this zone shf4,Il'be irrigated and 
not exceed 6' in height and shall be moderate,& nature a~per Sec. 4907~.~irewood 
inside this zone shall be piled minimum of~o~ ~way from' all buildings ~ structures. 
Cords of firewood shall also be maintained at least M(fc4m p~erty lines at.d not stacked 
under tree canopies drip lines. 

4907.9.3 Zone 2 "Extended Zo o ,Zone 1 to 1 ".lll,dans from the immediate 
edge of Zone I extending out in a horiz<Jfltal pi'ff.tl.e f,gr 50'. TJs zone consists of planting 
of drought tolerant and fire resistive plan( spe_etes ,mod'1'ate height. Brush and plants 
shall be limbed up off~ _ground so the lo¥"t branche;,are 1/3 height of bush/tree/plant 
or up to 6' offthe gr~d on m¢rlre trees. Thitarea would be considered selective clearing 
of natural vegeta~ and dens~ chaparral by rsen,oving a minimum 50% of the square 
footage of this area. 

Befor e Thinning 

Page 54 of96 



Section 4907 .9.3 Home Ignition Zones 

Page 55 of96 



SEC. 5607.16. EXPLOSIVES AND FIREWORKS-APPLICABILITY. 

Section 5607 .16 is added to the California Fire Code to read: 

Sec. 5607.16.1 Applicability. This section shall apply to the manufacture, 
possession, storage, sale, transportation and use of explosives and blasting agents and to 
any blasting operation in the unincorporated area of the County. The Sheriff is the Issuing 
Officer for purposes of this section. The Sheriff may delegate the duties of Issuing Officer 
at her or his discretion. Additionally, as may be appropriate b~a~ circumstances, the 
Issuing Officer may enter into memoranda of agreement with( non-County fire agencies 
whereby such non-County agency will assume the duties/¢~suing a permit or permits 
required by this Chapter. The Issuing Officer shall det~e ~th.er a blast is a major 
blast or a minor blast under this section. A minor b~is ~bject to allconditions of this 
section except the inspection requirements. - ~ ' · 

Sec. 5607.16.2 Definitions. The follo~ing tenns ar.e defined in sectim202: 

BLASTER. 
BLASTING AGENT. 
BLASTING OPERATION. 
BLASTING PERMIT. 
BLAST SITE. 
EXPLOSIVES PERA11T, 
INSPECTOR. 
MAJOR BLASTING. 
MINOR BLA~TING. 

ec. 5607.16.2~ AJ?plica~dn.. ~pplication for a permit required by this section 
shalfbe,,jn>the form requl~ed\ by the J,gsuing Officer. 

" 
Sec. ~07..16.3 Pe~it requirements. No person shall conduct blasting in the 

unincorporated'area.,of the~ounty without an explosives permit issued under this chapter. 
A person applyingipf',an✓explosives permit shall, in addition to demonstrating compliance 
with fire safety requr.ents also comply with all County requirements for any building 
permits, grading permits, use permits, encroachment permits and all other entitlements to 
use property, including zoning requirements and any determination under the Zoning 
Ordinance of non-conforming status. The applicant shall be responsible for providing 
proof of all necessary approvals when requested by the Issuing Officer. 

Page 56 of96 



AMENDMENT TO SECTION 5607.16.3.1 

Sec. 5607.16.3.1 Blasting permit required. In addition to obtaining an explosives permit, 
no person shall conduct blasting without first obtaining a blasting permit. The applicant 
shall be responsible for providing proof of all necessary approvals when requested by the 
Issuing Officer. 

Sec. 5607.16.3.2 Permit conditions. The Issuing Officer rnay impose conditions 
and procedures as are deemed reasonably necessary to protect the,~ic health and safety 
based upon the facts and circumstances of a particular blasdri'g operation. The permit 
conditions shall be in writing. Failure to comply with any,gehU.itcondition is grounds for 
revocation ofthe permit. A blaster may request the Iss~i~,.Officer release the blaster from 
any permit condition if circumstances have changed_ }!iatfflake th-e dondition no longer 
applicable. In addition to complying with the C~ty bf~sting regula~ris, a blaster shall 
also comply with blasting regulations of neighboring ·unsdictions, to,' 8D¥ blasting 
operations outside of the unincorporated area1'f the Coun conducted in co,unction with 
a project within the unincorporated areas of the Cou11:ty~. 

Sec. 5607.16.3.3 Insurance and· indemnificatio required. As an additional 
condition for obtaining an explosives P~! the.applicant shtµi' ~mit: (1) a certificate of 
insurance evidencing that the blaster has ~btained,a general liability insurance policy which 
includes coverage for explosion, collaps~ and undetgrou:µc.t' property damage from an 
insurer satisfactory to th~]ssbing Officer, '1lat is in ef~t for the period covered by the 
permit, written on an .u_occurre,;ice" basis, in al}. amount ;f not less than $500,000 per each 
occurrence, namiQg·44e'·County\131id the F AHJ ,as ap additional insured and providing that 
the policy will not be Cfµib~led or terminated w,ithout 30 days prior written notice to the 
County and (2}-anagreem~titgned b¥ f}ie-blfl~ter agreeing to defend, indemnify and hold 
the County -and its _ag-ents, officers and employees harmless from any claims or actions 
arising-from the issuan~e of the i,erl:nit qr any blasting activity conducted under the permit. 

Set; 5607 .16.3.4 Blasting ltours. Blasting shall only be allowed Monday through 
Saturday, between the hours <;>f 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. or½ hour before sunset, whichever 
occurs first, u~s'8 special circumstances warrant another time or day and the Issuing 
Officer grants app~val of-the change in time or day. 

Sec. 5607.16'~3.5 Additional operational requirements. The owner of any 
property in the unincorporated area of the County on which any blasting is intended to 
occur, shall give, or cause to be given, a one-time notice in writing, for any proposed 
blasting to the local fire agency and dispatch center and to all residences, including mobile 
homes, and businesses within 600 feet of any potential major blast location or 300 feet 
from any potential minor blast location. The notice shall be given not less than 24 hours, 
but not more than one week, before a blasting operation and shall be in a form approved 
by the Issuing Officer. The minimum 24-hour notice requirement may be reduced to a 

Page 57 of96 



lesser period but not less than one hour if the Issuing Officer determines that special 
circumstances warrant the reduction in time. Adequate precautions shall be taken to 
reasonably safeguard persons and property before, during and after blasting operations. 
These precautions shall include: 

1. The blaster shall retain an inspector to inspect all buildings and structures, 
including mobile homes, within 300 feet of the blast site before blasting operations, 
unless inspection is waived by the owner and/or occupant. The inspector shall 
obtain permission of the owner and/or occupant before ~<!~ting the inspection. 
The inspection shall be only for the purpose of deteI:ri.lthing the existence of any 
visible or reasonably recognizable preexisting de(e4s '\f' damages in any building 
and structure. Waiver of inspection shall be in~~ti.ng simetiby the owner and/or 
occupan!. Refusal to allow inspection shall a:Jsjf~~n~titute a 1\'.:Rtver. Th~ inspec_tor 
shall notify the owner and/or occupant offu4-consequences ofref4smg an mspect10n 
shall include a refusal in the summary ,report file~with the Issu~ 0f:.tker. The 
blaster shall request an inspector contucl'-P~t-blast hlspections upq,ry receipt of a 
written complaint of property damage if the ~omdtahrt1s made witfui 60 days of 
completion ofblasting operatipns. Ifthe blaster~asJmowledge of alleged property 
damage independent of the written complaint, t4e blaster shall also retain an 
inspector to conduct a post-blastjI_rSAection. 

2. An inspector shall complete and~ign,t1re-0J~t: m,t,tction reports identifying all 
findings and ins~oit waivers. ThQ11'tb.ster sha}Jvtetain the inspection reports for 
three years frGbl the date Qf the blast~g and upon a complaint of alleged damage 
the blaster _.all, immediate,ly file a copy' of_J:he report with the Issuing Officer and 
provide a copy 'tQ the c~inant. If tp,ere is a change in the blasting contractor 
after blasting_ has CQ_lIDtlenced~ri 111'¢ject, a re-inspection shall be conducted in 
ac~rdance ;with the '{)receding paragraph before the new blasting contractor 
-&rdertakes any"dtlitiona1 J,lastiqg. 

3. :fhe, blaster shal retain tm inspector to conduct a post-blast- inspection of any 
buildhlg"and structure for which a written complaint alleging blast damage has been 
receivecl. A written

1 
teport of the inspection shall be immediately filed with the 

Issuing Offi~er, ~provided to any person who made a complaint for damages. 

4. The blast~ shall allow any representative of the Issuing Officer to inspect the 
blast site and blast materials or explosives at any reasonable time. 

5. If the blaster wants a representative of the Issuing Officer to witness a blasting 
operation the blaster shall make a request with the Issuing Officer at least 12 hours 
before the blast. The blaster shall confirm the request for a witness with the Issuing 
Officer at least one hour before the blast. The blaster shall be responsible for any 
cost incurred by the Issuing Officer in having a representative witness the blast. 

Page 58 of96 

https://in~~ti.ng


6. The blaster shall notify the Issuing Officer on the day of a scheduled blasting 
operation not less than one hour before blasting. 

7. All major blasting operations shall be monitored by an approved seismograph 
located at the nearest building and structure within 600 feet ofthe blasting operation. 
All daily seismograph reports shall be maintained by the blaster for three years from 
the blasting. 

Sec. 5607.16.3.6 Seizure of illegal items. The Issuirtg·_ Officer may seize at the 
owner's expense, all explosives, ammunition or blastiafr a~ents, which are illegally 
manufactured, sold, offered or exposed for sale, delivere stored,'i)OS~essed or transported 
in violation of this chapter. 

Sec. 5607.16.3.7 Violations for false o . misle311,ing informati9n. r, shall be 
~awful_ and a violation ~f this chapter fof any Jiers?n cf R.rovide falsel1' misleading 
mformation or documentauon to the County or any-{!:f-1t4offi~rs or employees or to any 
fire department, fire protection district, fire company Of, legally formed volunteer fire 
department, or its officers or employ~s in the unincorpo1'lted area of the County, having 
jurisdiction over any aspect of the ewI~i'1es or blasting ,perJiiit process or blasting 
operations. 

Sec. 5607.16.3.8-¥,~s. Aperson ap}\l)dng to the(,tssuing Officer to be approved as 
a blaster or inspector, 'as defi~d i,i this secti~n,, shall pay an application fee to the Issuing 
Officer. A person.1ttpply:ip,g for 1~ explosives ~I'JJ;lit under this section shall pay the fee 
established by the Issui~ Qfficerwith the appl~tion. The amount of any fee required by 
this chapter shall-be ~etermip.e'd'by-the ~stling_Officer on the basis ofthe full costs involved 
in process{ng an applfoation. 

SE0. 5~08.1 FIREWO DISPLAY. 

Secti~ 5608.1 of the California Fire Code is revised to read: 

Sec. 5608.1 Gener-.t ()Qtdoor fireworks displays, use ofpyrotechnics before a proximate 
audience and pyroteohpic special effects in motion picture, television, theatrical and group 
entertainment productions shall comply with California Code of Regulations, Title 19, 
Chapter 6 Fireworks and County Code sections 32.101 et seq. The Fire Warden is the 
Issuing Officer for any fireworks permit required by this Chapter. The Fire Warden may 
delegate the duties of Issuing Officer at her or his discretion. Additionally, as may be 
appropriate based on circumstances, the Issuing Officer may enter into memoranda of 
agreement with non-County fire agencies whereby such non-County agency will assume 
the duties ofissuing a permit or permits required by this Chapter. 

Page 59 of96 



Sec. 5608.1.1 Scope. The possession, manufacture, sale, storage, use and display 
offireworks are prohibited in the unincorporated area ofthe County except as provided in 
County Code sections 32.101 et seq. 

SEC. 5705.2.4 TRANSFERRING CLASS I, II OR III LIQUIDS. 

Section 5705.2.4 of the California Fire Code is revised to read: 

Sec. 5705.2.4 Transferring Class I, II or III liquids. Class //9,µ J~liquids or Class III 
liquids that are heated up to or above their flash points shall -be transferred by one of the 
following methods: 

1. From safety cans complying with UL 30. 

2. Through an approved closed piping syst~ 
# 

3. From containers or tanks by an approved pump talqng stittion throug'/i an 
opening in the top of the container or tank. 

4. Approved engineered liquid tran~~m. 

Exception: Liquids in containers not exc•di~,a S:~ali0,t(20 L) capacity. 

' ~ 
SEC. 5706.2.5.2 TANKS FO GRAVITY ISCHARGE. 

--:> 

Section 5706.2.5:.7:1,,is doo-to the Caira Fire Code to read: 

Sec. 5706~.5.2.-1 _\,idtitation, on tanks for gravity discharge. Gravity dispensing of 
Class I/or II liquids or,Class III'ijqu.ids)hat are heated up to or above their flash points is 
proWb~d,, Dispensing ,p.evices for_ flammable and combustible liquids shall be of an 
approved,~e. Approved: pumpslfaking suction from the top of the tank shall be used. 
Flammable 0( corp,bustible \liquids shall not be dispensed by a device that operates through 
pressure within t storage tank. Air or oxygen shall not be used to pressurize an 
aboveground tanl<'. 

Page60 of96 



SEC. 5706.2.8.2 PROHIBITION ON USE OF TANK VEHICLE. 

Section 5706.2.8.2 is added to the California Fire Code to read: 

Sec. 5706.2.8.2 Tank vehicle as a substitute for permanent tank prohibited. The use 
of a tank vehicle in a stationary manner as a substitute for an approved above-ground or 
below-ground fuel tank is prohibited. 

SEC. 6107.5 SAFETY PRECAUTIONS AND DEVICES- ECURING LPG TANKS. " 
Section 6107 .5 is added to the California Fire Coije to reaq: 

Sec. 6107.5 Securing LPG tanks. When requiredJty the FAHJ, LPG tanl<s' shall be secured 
to prevent the tank from rolling or moving. 

SEC. 8001 REFERENCED STANDARDS. 

Section 8001 is added to the C -ifomia Fire Code tQ read: 

Sec. 8001 Referenced standard NFPA 13 . Referenced .sections as follows: 
~ '\ (,. ' 

Revise 5.1.1.2 to read a1,fg_lli>ws: 

NFPA 13D 5.1.lJ ,Spitre spri~kler heads. Sp~r~ fire sprinkler heads (one of each type 
or as approved by the F,AHJ) wrench, inspector~ test key and operation and maintenance 
instructions shall be. provid~d1n the~vi~µtlty -qfthe riser. 

The Valley Center Fire.,_Pt-otection Bist,jcts revises the following section to read as follows: 

NFPA 13D 7.2.5 (RSF) Inspector Test. Each automatic sprinkler system shall have a 
½" or larger test connection with a threaded keyless valve. The valve shall be remote to 
the riser, located on the building exterior about five 5 feet above final grade. It shall be 
labeled with a permanent plate with minimum ¼" lettering, contrasting with 
background, and stating: "INSPECTOR TEST". (Pre-assembled riser assemblies with 
a built-in Drain/Test valve shall not be accepted for inspector test valve unless approved 
by the F AHJ.) 

Add a new 7.3.4 to read as follows: 

NFPA 13D 7.3.4 Pressure gauge. An approved 300 psi pressure gauge shall be 
permanently installed at the riser. 

Page 61 of96 



Revise 7. 6 to read as follows: 

NFPA 13D 7.6 Alarms. A water flow switch shall be provided and located on the sprinkler 
riser above the check valve and main drain and shall actuate an audible fire alarm signal 
bell and may be required to be interconnected to the interior smoke alarms. The water flow 
switch shall be a retarding type with a delay between 15-60 seconds before activation of 
the signal bell. Alarm bell shall have a minimum diameter of 8 inches and be mounted on 
the exterior in the vicinity of the master bedroom. The alarm bell,shall be clearly audible 
in all bedrooms with intervening doors closed. 

Revise 8.3.2 to read as follows: 

NFPA 13D 8.3.2 Sprinklers are not required in ba~s·,vhere tli ._area does not exceed 
55 sq. ft. unless there is door exiting directly to ·t}ie ouThide, and the'WMls and ceilings 
including behind fixtures, are of noncomhitstible or '1,imited comb6'111)le-1111aterials 
providing a fifteen-minute thermal barrier. 

Revise 8.3.4 to read as follows: 

NFPA 13D 8.3.4 Sprinklers may be ~ fr~m carports, aflt\:t>pen attached porches. 
However, attached garages shall be protected. with inte~ediate temperature rated 
sprinklers. Sprinkler heads in garages shl,dl bo/pro~telt ~gainst mechanical damage by 
approved guards, unless-~_pe~d heads are 'P(evided. Grge doors may be disregarded in 
the layout of the autrnfui.tic sp~er system. 

Revise 8.3.5.1.1 to read_ sjollow : 

NFPA 13J;)-8.3.5.~fWhere)4e'fuel-fired-e-quipment is above all of the occupied areas of 
the dw&fing unit, at 1'© st one qu,jdk.,..rejponse intermediate temperature sprinkler shall be 
insta1leq above the equiwient. 

Add a new 1-(J__.2.4. l to read• follows: 

NFPA 13D 10.2.4.:J :J.,.H~d Calculation. When design conditions exceed the allowances 
of sec. 10.2, a 3-head <;alculation may be required by the F AHJ. 

" Add a new 10.2.5 to read as follows: 

NFPA 13D 10.2.5 Pressure Cushion. The system shall be designed 10% below available 
water source pressure during peak usage. 

Page62 of96 



Revise 11.2.1.1 to read as follows: 

NFPA 13D 11.2.1.1 Hydrostatic Tests. Where a fire department connection is not 
provided, the system shall be hydrostatically tested at 200 psi for 2 hours. 

Revised 12.3.6 to read as follows: 

NFPA 13D 12.3.6 Inactive Systems. When automatic sprink).e; sy~ems are shut-off or 
otherwise inoperative for periods greater than 48 hours for 1epair of service, the F AHJ 
must be notified immediately. 

SEC. APP.B103.3 AREAS WITHOUT WATE~,SUPPLY SYSTE S. 

Appendix B, section B 103 .3 of the C;aliforttta Fire Code is revised to,read: 

B103.3 Areas without water suppl . systems. For inf,Qrination regarding water supplies 
for fire-fighting purposes in rural area and suburban areas in-which adequate and reliable 
water supplies do not exist, the fire codt;,,off12ral is authorized tO'lfttlize NFP A 1142 or the 
standard published by the Insurance ~rvicM Office docllJlfient entitled "Guide for 
Determination of Required Fire Flow." <-

SEC. APP.Hl00 JmfORTING FORMS 

Appendix H, sec. H~O(Hs addec{~cfthe'California Fire Code to read: 

SECTION Hl00 
REPORTING FORMS 

Hl00.1 Repo,rlii,.g forms. Hazardous Materials reporting forms currently adopted by San 
Diego County 'Qepartment of Environmental Health Hazardous Materials Management 
Unit which cover ~e same areas as forms contained in this Appendix are adopted by 
reference and take pre9edence over this Appendix. 

Section 4 GEOGRAPHIC LIMITS 

The geographic limits referred to in certain sections of the 2022 California Fire Code 
are established as follows: 

Page63 of96 



(a) Sec. 5704.2.9.6.1 The geographic limits in which the storage of Class I and Class 
II liquids in above-ground tanks outside ofbuildings is prohibited: the unincorporated area 
of the County of San Diego. 

Exceptions: 
1. In areas zoned for mixed, general or high impact industrial uses. 

2. Crankcase draining may be stored in specially constructed above-ground storage 
tanks, approved by the fire code official, with a maximu~~city of 550 gallons. 
These tanks may be located within a building when 1he fire code official deems 
appropriate and the container meets U.L. StandafJt~086. Containers shall be 
installed and used in accordance with their listi_n~d pr~swns shall be made for 
leak and spill containment. In no case shallwage be all~ed on residential or 
institutional property. ~ 

3. With the fire code official's appro~l, -ei$6 I and U--Jiquids may bt,stored above 
ground outside of buildings in specially de~ app?oved and li~ed containers 
which have features incorpqrated into their ire$ign which mitigate concerns for 
exposure to heat, ignition sow~- and mechanical damage. Containers shall be 
installed and used in accordance wit1i their listing, andpro,tsions shall be made for 
leak and spill containment. The ~e code Miic~al mai disapprove the installation 
of these containers when in his ot 'he~ .qpirrloQ thei;J9use presents a risk to life or 
property. 

(b) Sec. 5706.2;4.4 1:l_ie geo¥1]1phic limits it,w~ch the storage of Class I and Class II 
liquids in above-grouno-fahks is prohibited: ~o,iulincorporated area of the County of San 
Diego. 1/ 

,Exceptions: --l 
J._. In areas zoned,fo1\other·t~n residential uses, when approved by the FAHJ. 

2. Crapkcase drainingtmay be stored in specially constructed above-ground storage 
tanks, apprbved by i\te fire code official, with a maximum capacity of 550 gallons. 
These tanks , may i,e located within a building when the fire code official deems 
appropriate am:t the container meets U.L. Standard 2085. Containers shall be 
installed and t\'sed in accordance with their listing, and provisions shall be made for 
leak and spill containment. In no case shall storage be allowed in residential or 
institutional property. 

3. With the fire code official's approval, Class I and II liquids may be stored above 
ground in specially designed, approved and listed containers which meet U.L. 
Standard 2085. Containers shall be installed and used in accordance with their 
listing, and provisions shall be made for leak and spill containment. The fire code 

Page 64 of96 



official may disapprove the installation of such containers when in his/her opinion 
their use presents a risk to life or property. 

(c) Sec. 5806.2 The geographic limits in which the storage of flammable cryogenic 
fluids in stationary containers is prohibited: the unincorporated area of the County of San 
Diego, except for areas zoned for mixed, general or high impact industrial uses. 

(d) Sec. 6104.2 The geographic limits in which the bulk storag~ ofliquefied petroleum 
gas is prohibited for the protection of heavily populated a((d. ~ngested areas: the 
unincorporated area of the County of San Diego, except for ~ zoned for mixed, general 
or high impact industrial uses. 

Exception: Bulk tanks with a maximum aggr~m-.e. capacity 0(3'0.,000 gallons water 
capacity for above-ground storage of und~ound~distribution t~ residential areas, 
where the storage and distribution meets Coun\;Y Fire Code ~.e,ments as 
determined by the F AHJ. 

Page 65 of96 



Section 5 RIGHTS 
That nothing in this ordinance or in the 2022 California Fire Code hereby adopted shall be 
construed to affect any suit or proceeding impending in any court, or any rights acquired, 
or liability incurred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or existing, under any act or 
ordinance hereby repealed as cited in Section 1 of this ordinance; nor shall any just or legal 
right or remedy of any character be lost, impaired or affected by this ordinance. 

Section 6 READINGS 
That the Clerk of the Board of Directors is hereby ord~d ¢d directed to cause this 
ordinance to be published. First read at a regular meetiJ1! of the ~oaird of Directors of the 
Valley Center Fire Protection District, held on the · ~ . A second reading 
occurred at a regular meeting on _______.__ _, and finally a~ted and ordered 
published in the manner required by law at the..hearing an(\.meeting on ______by 
the following roll call vote: . " 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

, 

Upon passage, the Secre~ of the Board ~n transm), a copy of this Ordinance to the 
California Building .standards Chmmission pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
17958.7. 

Section 7 ADOPTION 
That this-'4dinan~ti,the nt~~::regulations, provisions, requirements, orders, and matters 
established and adopteq. ~eby ~llta~ effect and be in full force and effect 30 days from 
andJft,q- the date of its fi{laL passage,Emd adoption. 

Phil Bell 
President 

ATTEST: 

Josef Napier 
Fire Chief 

Page 66 of96 



,

INDEX BY CODE SECTION 
CONSOLIDATED FIRE CODE 

Differences: 
1. Showed the language and text that is different from the California Fire Code and the County Code as 

shown in Italics. 
2. Changed punctuation or a grammatical change. 
3. Words were deleted or sections deleted. County amendments were not necessary as section was adopted in 

model code language. 
4. Revised or referenced texts. Changes from the previous code that have been r.evised. 
5. NO CHANGE (NC) means no changes made. Language is the same. 
6. NEW - Means new image or section provided for clarity. 

/ 
2023 Fire2020 Fire

County Adde~County Section District DistrictSubjectSection New DifferenceAmen~Old (2020) Section Section
(2023) Revised (2020) (2023) 

~I'Application of~ 4'Sec 1.001 NC 4Sec. 1.001 )/ 
Explanation of the 
CCC · ~ 

"' Sec. 1.002 Sec 1.002 4C
CCC 
Adoptibn of 
County

Sec. 96.1.001 Sec. 96.1.001 4NC ~titm2~,- Section 2
Amendm'¢ts-tQtli~ 
CFC ~ 

Amendmeni-1,t.Q- stction 1 Section 1 5
Section 96.1.0.0J 

)"Explanation of 
Sec. 96.1 .002 Sec.116,1.002 CFC to 2022 Fire NC 4 

"Code 
'Explanation of 

Sec. 96.1.003 Sec. 96.l .OQ3 4NC-~unty'Fiie..Code 
adding·96.J 
Responsibility for NCSec. 96.1.0.04 Sec. -.Q_6. L004 5
,Ewcernent 

, ,
Sec. 9Jj.l.QO · Geqgn:tphic Limits NC 5Sec. 96.1:Q05 

·" 
StQrage of Class I 
and Class II liquids 

Sec. Sec.in above ground A 5
5704.2.9.6. l 5704.2.9.6.1

tanks outside of 
buildings 
Storage of Class I ·""}r/J) 
and Class II liquids Sec.

A Sec. 5706.2.4.4 5in above ground 5706.2.4.4 
tanks 
Storage of 
flammable 
cryogenic fluids in A Sec. 5806.2 Sec. 5806.2 5 
stationary 
containers 
Storage of bulk 
LPG for protection Sec. 6104.2A Sec. 6104.2 5 
in heavilv 

Page 67 of96 

https://9Jj.l.QO
https://96.1.0.04
https://96.1.0.0J


County Added, 
2020 Fire 2023 Fire 

County Section 
Section New Subject Amend, District District 

Difference
Old (2020) 

(2023) Revised 
Section Section 

2020 2023 
populated and 
con ested areas 
Deletions, 

Sec. 96. 1.006 Sec. 96.1.006 
Revisions, NC 5
Additions and 
Numerical 

Sec. 96.1.101.5 Sec. 96.1.101.5 Validity NC Sec. 1.@l...5
' 

Sec. 101.5 5 

Repeal of 
Conflicting 

Sec. 96.1.102.13 Sec. 96.1.102.13 Ordinances, A Sec. 102.13 5 
Resolutions or 
Motions 

Sec. 96.1.104.8 Sec. 96.1.104.9 Modifications 4 

Sec. 96.1.104.12 Sec. 96.1.104.13 Cost Recovery 4 

Sec. 96.1.104.12.1 
Sec. Reimbursement 

4
96.1.104.13.1 Re uired 

Sec. 96.1.105.3.9 Sec. 96.1.105.3.9 Expe11s~ Recovery 5 

Sec. 96.1.105.6.6.1 
Sec. Chris~-1''fee 

A 4
96.1.105.5.52.1 Lots 

Greenwas~ 

Sec. Sec. 
Recycling, "Mulching, ~- 4

96.1.105.6.20.1 9 6 .1.1 0 5 .5 .52-c.-2-
Composting & 

ro5.6.20.1 

Stora e 

~ ' 

Sec. 96.1.105.8 Sec. 96:{.m5.7 A Sec. 105.8 1, 4 

Sec. 96.1.109 .~. 96.-J .111 'Appeals R Sec. 109 4 

:l{~ional Fire 
A~~oard R Sec. 109.1 4 
established 

authorit 
R Sec. 109.2 4 

Qualifications R Sec. 109.3 4 

Appeals 
R Sec. 109.4 4

Procedures 
Appeals of 
determinations 

R Sec. 109.4.1 4
regarding building 

ermits 
Appeals of 
determinations 
regarding R Sec. 109.4.2 4 
discretionary 

ermits 
Appeals of 

R Sec. 109.4.3 4
determinations for 

Page68 of96 



County Added, 
2020 Fire 2023 Fire 

County Section 
Section New Subject Amend, 

District District 
DifferenceOld (2020) 

(2023) Revised 
Section Section 

2020 (2023) 
matters other than 
building permits or 
discretionary 

ermits 
Regional Fire 

R
A eals Board 
Violations, 

Sec. 96.1.110.4 Sec. 96.1.112.4 
Penalties and 

R 4
Responsibilities for 
Com liance 
Amendment to 
Section 112.4 
Violations, 

END Sec. 110.4 4
penalties and 
responsibility for, 
com liance v 
Amendment to 
Section 113.4 AMEND Sec. 112.4 4 

Sec. 96.1.202 Sec. 96.1.202 R '¥C>202 Sec.202 1, 2, 4 

Sec. 96.1.304.1.4 Sec. 96.1.304.1.4 A Sec. $)4.1.4 Sec. 304.1.4 5 

, , .., 
Sec. 96.1.305.6 Sec. 96.1.305.6 A jec. 305.6 Sec. 305.6 5 

Sec. 96,,T307,4.'3 R 1, 4 

Sec. 96.1.307 .5 Sec. 96.1;3<17.5 R Sec. 307.5 1, 4 

A Sec. 321 1, 4 

A Sec. 321.1 4 

Sprinkler System 
A Sec. 321.1.1 4 

& Stand i es 
Mid-Rise: Smoke 

A Sec. 321.1.2 4
Detection 
Mid-Rise: Fire 

A Sec. 321.1.3 4
Alarm 
Mid-Rise: 
Emergency Voice 

A Sec. 321.1.4 4Alarm Signaling 
S stem 
Mid-Rise: Fire 

A Sec. 321.1,5 4
Command Center 
Mid-Rise: 
Annunciation A Sec. 321.1.6 4 
Identification 

Page 69 of96 



County Added, 
2020 Fire 2023 Fire 

County Section 
Section New Subject Amend, 

District District 
Difference

Old (2020) 
(2023) Revised 

Section Section 
2020 (2023) 

Mid-Rise: 
A Sec. 321.1.7 4

Elevators 
Mid-Rise: Fire 
Department 

A 4
Communication 
S stem 
Mid-Rise: Means 

A Sec . .J~,t.1.9 4
ofE ress 
Mid-Rise: Extent 

A 4
of Enclosure 
Mid-Rise: 
Pressurized 

4
Enclosures and 
Stairwa s 
Mid-Rise: 

4
Vestibules 
Mid-Rise: 
Pressure 4 
Diffel'ences 
Mid-Ri~: Locking 

A 4
of Stai ' rS' 

Sec. 96.1.322 Sec. 96.1.326 
Storage of 

~ SecP.322 4
Firewood ---> 
Fire Apparatu~ · 

; 

Sec. 96.1.501.3.l Sec.- 96A;5trl.~1 'Access A Sec. 501.3.1 4 
odifications 

Sec. 96.1.503 
Fire Apparatus 

R Sec.503 Sec. 503 5..Access Roads 
~ApplW,atus 

.,Access~. R Sec. 503.1 Sec. 503.1 1, 3 
General 

~irMp!W11tus 
A~s~Roads: R Sec. 503.1.1 Sec. 503.1.1 1, 2, 3, 4 
B~ings and 
Facilities 
Fire Apparatus 
Access Roads: R Sec. 503.1.2 Sec. 503.1.2 1, 2, 3, 4 
Additional Access 
Fire Apparatus 
Access Roads: 

N 1, 4, 6 
Secondary Access 
Re uired 
Fire Apparatus 
Access Roads: 

R Sec. 503.1.3 Sec. 503.1.3 4High Piled 
Stora e 
Fire Apparatus 
Access Roads: R Sec. 503.2 Sec. 503.2 1, 4 
S ecifications 

Page 70of96 



_ 

County
County Section 

Section New Old (2020) 
(2023) 

Subject 

Fire Apparatus 
Access Roads: 
Dimensions 
Fire Apparatus 
Access Roads: 
Amendment to 
Road Phasin 
Fire Apparatus 
Access Roads: 
Authority to 
Increase 
Minimum 
Fire Apparatus 
Access Roads: 
Surface 
Fire Apparatus 
Access Roads: 
Amendment to 
Surfa 
Fire Apparatbs, 
Access R~d-s; 
Roadwa dins 
Fire Apparatu.s 
Access Roads· 
Dead Ends 
Fire Apparatus 
~cess Roads: 

'Dead End Roads 
tuirfi:.:llr-0und 
re uiAd 
Rire Apparatus· 
~e¢e~s Roads: 
~d Roads 
Fire ,Apparatus 
Act'ess Roads: 
Bridges and 
Elevated Surfaces 
Fire Apparatus 
Access Roads: 
Bridges with 1 
traffic lane 
Fire Apparatus 
Access Roads: 
Grade 
Fire Apparatus 
Access Roads: 
Cross Slo e 
Fire Apparatus 
Access Roads: 
An es of 

Added, 
Amend, 
Revised 

R 

AMEND 

R 

R 

R 

R 

R 

R 

R 

R 

R 

R 

R 

503.2.1.1 

2020 Fire 
District 
Section 
{2020 

Sec. 503.2.1 

Sec. 

Sec. 503.2.3 

Sec. 503.2.3 " 
s~. S03~t.4 

Sec. 503.2.5 

Sec. 
503.2.5.1 

Sec. 503.2.6 

Sec. 
503.2.6.1 

Sec. 503.2.7 

Sec. 
503.2.7.1 

Sec. 503.2.8 

2023 Fire 
District 

s ·~·3_, 

(/ 

Sec. 503.2.3 

Sec. 503.2.6 

Sec. 503.2.6.1 

Sec. 503.2.7 

Sec. 503.2.7.1 

Sec. 503.2.8 

Difference 

1, 2, 3, 4 

1, 2, 3,4 

5 

4 

1 

1, 4, 6 

4 

1 

1 

1 

1, 4 

1, 4 

Page?! of96 

I 



2020 Fire 2023 Fire
County Added, 

District District 
Difference

County Section 
Section New Subject Amend, 

Section SectionOld (2020) 
(2023) Revised 

2020 2023 
Approach and 
De arture 
Fire Apparatus 
Access Roads: R Sec. 503.2.9 Sec. 503.2.9 1, 4
Roadway Turn 
Outs 
Fire Apparatus 

Sec,{93.3 1, 4Access Roads: R 
Markin 
Fire Apparatus 

~ 

Sec. 503.3.1 1, 4Access Roads: Fire R Sec. 503'4.l 
Lane Desi nation 
Fire Apparatus 
Access Roads: 

Sec. j()f4 1, 4Obstruction of#--
Fire Apparatus 
Roads 
Fire Apparatus 
Acce~R.oads: R Sec. 503.4.1 1, 4
Traffic'fafuling 
Devices 
FireAppa.¥us 

~Access Roa~ s,t. 503.5 Sec. 503.5 5Required Gates or 
,Barricades 
Fire Apparatus 
Ai:;cess Roads: 

Sec. 503.5.1 Sec. 503.5.1 1, 4
/Secured Gates 
an'irBar.rjcades 
Frre~s 

1
'Access Roads: · 

R Sec. 503.5.2 Sec. 503.5.2 
School Fences and 
~ tes- "? 

Fire ~pparatus 
Actess Roads: R Sec. 503.6 1 
Securi Gates 
Premises R Sec.505 Sec. 505 5Sec. 96.1.505 Identification 
Address R Sec. 505.1 Sec. 505.1 5Identification 
Street or Road 

R Sec. 505.2 Sec. 505.2 5Si s 
Traffic Access R Sec. 505.2.1 Sec. 505.2.1 1Limitations 
Easement Address 

R Sec. 505.3 Sec. 505.3 1Si , s 

Directory Map R Sec. 505.4 1 

Response Map 
R Sec. 505.5 1

U dates 

Page72 of96 



County Added, 
2020 Fire 2023 Fire 

County Section District District 
Old (2020) 

Section New Subject Amend, 
Section Section Difference 

(2023) Revised 
2020 2023 

Sec. 96.1.506.1.3 Sec. 96.1.506.1.3 
Emergency Key 

A Sec. 506.1.3 Sec. 506.1.3 1, 3
Access 

Sec. 96.1.507.2 Sec. 96.1.507.2 
Type of Water 

R Sec. 507.2 Sec. 507.2 1, 4
Su 1 
Private Fire 

R Sec. 507.4. l Sec. 507 .2.1 1, 2
Service Mains 
Water Storage 

R 1,2,4
Tanks 

Sec. 96.1.507.3 Sec. 96.1.507.3 Fire Flow R '~-~07.3 1, 4 

Fire Hydrant and 
Sec. 96.1.507.5.7 Sec. 96.1.507.5.7 Fire Valve A ,Sec. 507.5..7 1, 4 

Location ~ 

Signing ofWater 
Sources and Fire 

A 1
Department 
Connections 

Sec. 96.1.507.5.8 Sec. 96.1.507.5.8 
Waterline 

A 4
Extensions 

Sec. 96.1.603.6.6 Sec. 96.1.605.3.1 Spark Arres'ter~ A ,$eih603.6.6 4 

Residenti.i:. / 

Sec. 96.1.603.8.1 Sec. 96.1.605.8.1 
Incinerato~-. R Sec"' 6~:8.l 4 

Smoke Ven ·'a,tion 
(Remove fro~ 

D 
S'ec. 

3
CCC & Ord no .fu 1204.3.3 
tl\Odel code 
Ground Mounted · 

Sec. 96.1.1204.4 ·Photovoltaic R Sec. 1204.4 4 
Arrav 
_FireA~!1,ls R 

Sec. 
4

Access Roads 1204.4.1 

enm~t5Fire 
R 

Sec. 
4App~s Access 1204.4.2

Roadwa 

Fuel Modification R 
Sec. 

4
1204.4.3 

Water Supply R 
Sec. 

4
1204.4.4 

Identification R Sec. 1204.5 4 

Fire Department 
D 

Now part of 
3

Connections model code 
Fire Hydrants and 

D 
Now part of 

3
Fire A liances model code 
Automatic 

Sec. 96.1.903.2 Sec. 96.1.903.2 Sprinkler Systems R Sec. 903.2 Sec. 903.2 I , 4 
Where Re uired 

Additions A 
Sec. 

I, 4
903.2(a 

Page 73 of96 



County Added, 
2020 Fire 2023 Fire 

County Section District District 
Old (2020) Section New Subject Amend, 

Section Section 
Difference 

(2023) Revised (2020) (2023) 
Remodels or 

A Sec. 
Sec. 903.2(b) 1, 4

Reconstruction 903.2(b) 
GroupU 

A 
Sec. 

Sec. 903.2(c) 4Occupancies 903.2(c) 
Amendment to 
Section 903.2(c) 

AMEND Sec. 903'.2' 1, 4Where Required 
RSF 
Amendment to 
Section 903 .2 San D <!foe. ~.2' See. 9Q~-~ 3 
Marcos ' Sprinkler System /~ ' ' Sec. 96.1.903.4 Sec. 96.1.903.4 Monitoring and I/ R Sec. 903.4 ¥C)-903.4 1 
Alarms ,, ,/ ' "Storage and ~ 

·~ ' yProcessing of 
I~Wood Chips, 

Hogged Materials, :, 
Fines,~post, 

Sec. 96.1.2808 Sec. 96.1.2808 SolidB\J~. R "'· Sec. 2808 
F eedstoc~ ~\,,~ ~.2808;, 4 

Product as~ciated 

~ 
with Yard V(ilste, ,, 

7Agro- Indus~f d Recycling 
,.. ' acilities 

S~ ~(ll&.l 
I 

General ilGrneral ' 
D Sec. 2808.1 Sec. 2808.1 3 

... INCH2
Storage Site Sec. 2808.l 1 D~ns D Sec. 2808.2 3·-- - DEFINITIONS 

Sec: J.05.6.2~ • -
Size ofPile~ 2~1.f, 

·· Permit Requrred D Sec. 2808.3 Sec. 2808.10.1 3 
' 

PileS~ ti i n Sec. 28~1~ ~l!Bcia}? D Sec. 2808.4 Sec. 2808.10.2 3
A~u~ce 

Combustible"\'}8be "\ Opjrational &
Sec. 2808. 12, D Sec. 2808.5 Sec. 2808.10 3 

~.. Emergency Plan 

Static Pile 
"-, I Notification ofFire 

D Sec. 2808.6 Sec. 2808.10.3 3Se:f.: 2808.15 • Department 

Seo. 
,If' Equipment 

Pile Fire Protection 
903.3/ ,(CFC) 

Operator D Sec. 2808.7 Sec. 2808.10.4 3 
EmerJ!,ency Call 

~ 

Incoming Waste 
Fire Extinguishers Sec. 906 (CFC) 

Diversion Plan 
D Sec. 2808.8 Sec. 2808.10.5 3 

Material Handling 
Sec. 2808.17 

Unprocessed or 
D Sec. 2808.9 Sec. 2808.10.6 3Equipment Non-Green Waste 

Emergency Plan Sec. 2808.3 
Fire Access 

D 
Sec. 

Sec. 2808.10.7 3Roadway 2808.10 

Sec. 2808.5 Storage Sites D 
Sec. 

Sec. 2808.2 32808.11 

Page 74of96 



County Section 
Old (2020) 

County 
Section New 

(2023) 

Sec. 2808.6 

Sec. 2808.7 

Sec. 2808.8 

Sec. 2808.9 

Sec. 2808.10 

Sec. 2808.4 

Sec. 2808.16 

Sec. 2808.18 

Sec. 2808.19 

Sec. 2808.20 

Subject 

Combustible 
Ve etation 

Pile Separation 

Size ofPiles 

Static Pile 
Protection 
Fire Fighting 
Water Su lies 
Public Water 
Su 1 
Private Water 
Su 1 

Fire Extinguishei'S 

Material Handling 
E ui ment 
Gene!lltFire Safety 
Rules 

Site Secm-;fty 

Smoking 
Prohibited & pen 

, Burnin 

General 

Storage Sites 

Size of Piles 

Pile Separation 

Combustible 
Ve etation 
Static Pile 
Protection 
Fire Fighting 
Water Su lies 
Public Water 

u I 
Private Water 
Su 1 

Fire Extinguishers 

Material Handling 
E ui ment 
Operational & 
Erne enc Plan 

Permit Required 

Added, 
Amend, 
Revised 

D 

D 

D 

D 

D 

o· 

D 

D 

D 

R 

R 

R 

R 

R 

R 

R 

R 

R 

R 

R 

R 

R 

2020 Fire 
District 
Section 
(2020 

Sec. 
2808.12 
Sec. 
2808.13 
Sec. 
2808.14 
Sec. 
2808.1'5 

~-
!808.l 
Sec. 
·"808.16.1 

Sec. 
2808.16.2 

Kee. 
2808.18 
S~. 
280!.VJ 

Sfe~ 
2808.20 

Sec. 2808.1 

Sec. 
2808.11 
Sec. 
2808.14 
Sec. 
2808.13 
Sec. 
2808.12 
Sec. 
2808.15 
Sec. 
2808.16 
Sec. 
2808.16.1 
Sec. 
2808.16.2 

Sec. 
2808.17 

Sec. 2808.5 

Sec. 2808.3 

2023 Fire 
District 
Section 

2023 

Sec. 2808.5 

Sec. 2808.4 

Sec. 2808.3 

~Sec. 2808.6 

Sec. 2808.7 

Sec. 2808.7.1 

s~. 2808.7.2 

Sec. 2~&,.8 

Sec. 2108.9 

Sec. 2808.10.8 

Sec. 2808.10.9 

Sec. 2808.10.10 

Difference 

3 

3 

3 

3 

3 

3 

3 

3 

3 

3 

3 

3 

1, 4, 6 

1, 4, 6 

1, 4, 6 

1, 4, 6 

1, 4, 6 

1, 4, 6 

1, 4, 6 

1, 4, 6 

1 4 6 

1 4 6 

1, 4, 6 

1, 4 6 

1, 4, 6 

Page 75 of96 

https://2808.10.10


County Added, 
2020 Fire 2023 Fire 

County Section District 
Old (2020) 

Section New Subject Amend, 
Section Difference 

(2023) Revised 
(20l0 

Financial 
R Sec. 2808.4 

Assurance 1, 4, 6 
Notification of Fire 

R Sec. 2808.6 
De artment 1, 4, 6 
Equipment 

Operator R Sec. 2808.7 
Erner enc Call 1, 4, 6 
Incoming Waste 

R Sec. 2808.8 
Diversion Plan 1, 4, 6 

Unprocessed or 
R Sec. 2808.9 

Non-Green Waste 1, 4, 6 
Fire Access 

R 
Sec. 

Roadwa 2808.10 I, 4, 6 
General Fire Safety 

R 
Sec. 

Rules 2808.18 1, 4, 6 

Site Security R 
Sec. 
2808.19 1, 4, 6 

Smoking 
Sec.

Prohibited & Open R 
2808.20

Bu.min 1, 4, 6 

Definitions R Sec. 2808.2 1, 4, 6 

Sec. 3206.2 Sec. 96.1.3286".2- D Sec. 3206.2 3 

Sec. 96.1.3318 s,,)6:l.3319 A Sec. 3318 4 

Sec. 96.1~9tl1 R Sec. 4901 4 

R Sec. 4901.1 4 

R Sec. 4901.2 4 

Sec. 96.1\4962 R Sec.4902 4 

Sec. 96. l .49'Q2 R Sec. 4902.1 Sec. 4902.1 4 
' 

Declaration R Sec. 4902.2 4 

Sec. 96.1.4903 
Fire Protection 

R Sec.4903 Sec.4903 4
Plan 

Sec. '96-}·.4903 Plans 4903 R Sec.4903 1, 4 

Plans: General N Sec. 4903.1 6 

Plans: When 
R 1, 4 

Re uired 

Plans: Contents N Sec. 4903.2 1, 4 

Plans: Project Info N Sec. 4903.2.1 1, 4 

Plans: Preliminary 
Fire Protection N Sec. 4903.2.1.1 1, 4 
Plan 

Page76of96 



County Added, 
2020 Fire 2023 Fire 

County Section District District 
Old (2020) 

Section New Subject Amend, 
Section Section 

Difference 
(2023) Revised 2020) (2023) 

Plans: Final Fire 
N Sec. 4903.2.1.2 1, 4

Protection Plan 
Fire Hazard 

Sec. 96.1.4904 Severity Zones R 1, 4 
4904 

Fire Hazard 
Severity Zones: 1, 4 
General 
Fire Hazard 
Severity Zones: 1, 4 
Classifications 
Fire Hazard 
Severity Zones: 

1, 4
Amendment to 
Classifications 
Fire Hazard 
Severity Zones: 

1, 4
Local Agency 
Re ufrements 
FireHa:,:ard 
Severity ~n~; 1, 4
Local Age cy 
Ordinances 
Fire Hazard 
Severity Zones! 

1, 4
Cocal Agency 
Djscretion 

Wildfire 

Sec. 96.1.4,()5 
-Pl-otection 

NC Sec 4905 5
BuiJd!ng 

'(;onstructioii 4905 
,Wildfire Protection 

Sec.9~J.4_90S· 
BuJtd~ NC Sec. 4905.l Sec. 4905.l 5
Co~ction: 
Gerieral 
Wildfire Protection 
Building 

Sec. 96.1.4905 Construction: NC Sec. 4905.l 5 
Construction 
methods 
Wildfire Protection 
Building 
Construction: NC Sec. 4905.3 5 
Establishment of 
Limits 

Sec.96.1.4906 
Vegetation 

AMEND 1, 4
Mana ement 4906 
Vegetation 
Management: AMEND 1, 4 
General 

Page 77 of96 



County Added, 
2020 Fire 2023 Fire 

County Section District District 
Old (2020) 

Section New Subject Amend, 
Section Section Difference 

(2023) Revised 
2020) (2023) 

Vegetation 
Management: AMEND 1, 4 
A lication 
Vegetation 
Management: 

AMEND 1, 4Landscape Plans 
When Re uired 
Vegetation 
Management: 1, 4 
Landsca e Plans 
Vegetation 
Management: 1, 4 
Contents 
Vegetation 
Management: 1, 4 
Ve etation 
Vegetation 
Management: 1, 4 
Shrnti - _ 
Vegeta · 
Manage•t! l, 4 
Trees 
Vegetation 
Management:~oli/ 1, 4 

'Fire Resistant 

Sec. 96.1.4907 Sec,~00 .4907 
Defensible Spa~ 

Sec.4907 1, 4, 6 4907 

R 1, 4, 6 
/ 

N 1, 4, 6 

N 1, 4, 6 

Defunsible Space: 
Btiilding and 
Structure R Sec. 4907.1 1, 4, 6 

ro ertv line 
Defensible Space: 

Sec.General Fire R 
4907.1.1 

1, 4 
Setbacks 
Defensible Space: 
Fire Setbacks 

R 
Sec. 

1, 4adjacent 4907.1.2 
rotected areas 

Defensible Space: 
Building and 

R 
Sec. 

5Structure Setback 4907.1.3 
from Slo e 

Page 78 of96 



County Added, 
2020 Fire 2023 Fire 

County Section 
Section New Subject Amend, 

District District 
Difference

Old (2020) 
(2023) Revised 

Section Section 
2020 (2023) 

Defensible Space: 
Amendment to 
Building and AMEND 1, 4, 6 
Structure Setback 
from Slo e 
Defensible Space: 

R 1, 4, 6 
Fuel Modification 
Defensible Space: 
Amendment to 

AMEND 1, 4, 6
Fuel Modification 
San Marcos 
Defensible Space: 
Fuel Modification 
of Combustible 

R 
Sec. 

1, 4, 6
Vegetation from 

0,.
~907.2.1 

Sides of </" 
Roadwavs 
Defensible Space: · sec.
Comrti'unjty Fuel R 4~7.2.2 

4 
Modificatio ·,. 
Defensibk~~e: s~ 

/f 

Land owd shi 
R 

4907..2~2.1 
4 

Defensible ace: 
Maintenance-_.of R Sec. 4907.3 4 
Defensible S ac, 
Defensible Spac · 

R 
Sec. 

4
Trees 4907.3.1 
Defensible Space: 
~&.llment_to ,,. 

AMEND 
Sec. 

4
Orcba.Pd$, ~ro~s 4907.3.2 
and Vine ards 
.,Pefensible Space: 

. . 
~en..entto Sec.
Eu~ptus forest AMEND 

4907.3.3 4 
anil'oak 
woodlands 
Defensible Space: 
Home Ignition R Sec. 4907.4 4 
Zones 
Defensible Space: 
Zone 0-

AMEND 4
Immediate Zone 
0'-5' 
Defensible Space: 
Zone 1-

AMEND 4Intermediate 
Zone 5'-50' 
Defensible Space: 
Zone 2 - Extended AMEND 4 
Zone 50'-100' 

Page 79 of96 



4 

County Added, 
2020 Fire 2023 Fire 

County Section District 
Old (2020) 

Section New Subject Amend, 
Section 

Difference 
(2023) Revised 

(2020) 

Defensible Space: 
Amendment to 
Landscaping 
Installation (RSF) 

Fire Safe 
Sec. 96.1.4908 Development 

Re ulations 49fs 
Fire Safe 
Development 
Regul~ns: 
Genera l 
Fire Safe 

•. 

Developm~t 
Regulations1 
Subdivision . ap 

,Findin s 
Subdivision 

s~ ?6:1.4909 Review Survey 
4909 

SuoMvWon 
· Revfew-Sµrvey: 
'Subdivision 
.ldeptification 
S~d · on 
Re.Survey: 
File Safety 
Recommendations 
Subdivision 

Subdivision 
Review Survey: 
Re-Surve 

General Plan 
Sec. 96.1.4910 Safety Element 

4910 

Defensible Space: 
Amendment to 
Landscaping D 
Requirements 

F) 

General Plan 
Safety Element: N Sec. 4910.1 
General 

Defensible Space: 
Amendment to 

AMEND Sec. 4907.5 
Landscape Plans 

F 

3 

4 

4 

4 

4 

4 

4 

4 

4 

4 

D 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

Sec. 4908.1 

Sec. 4908.2 

Sec.4909 

Sec. 4909.1 

Sec. 4909.2 

Sec. 4909.3 

Sec. 4909.4 

Sec.4910 

Page 80of96 

3 

4 



County Added, 
2020 Fire 2023 Fire 

County Section 
Section New Subject Amend, 

District District 
Difference

Old (2020) 
(2023) Revised 

Section Section 
2020) 2023 

General Plan 
Safety Element: N Sec. 4910.2 4 
Submission 
General Plan 
Safety Element: N Sec. 4910.3 4 
Review 
General Plan 
Safety Element: N 

~ 
Sec. 4910.4 4 

Ado tion 

Sec. 96.1.5601.2 
Sec. 

R 1, 4
96.1.5607.16 

Sec. 96.1.5601.2 
Sec. 

Applicability R Sec. 5601.2 1, 4
96.1.5607. 16.1 

Definitions R 
'!Sec. 1, 4
iob-1.2.1 

Application 
ec. 

1, 4
5601.2.2 

Permit 
R 

Sec. 
1, 4

Re uirewents 'S.6O1,2.3 
Amendm«;nfto 

Sec.
Blasting Permit R 560.}.2.3.l 

1, 4 
Re uired _... 

R 
S'ec. 

1, 4
5601.2.4 

R 
Sec. 

1, 4
5601.2.5 

R 
Sec. 

1, 4
5601.2.6 

R 
Sec. 

1, 4
5601.2.7 

R Sec. 1, 4
5601.2.8 

Violations for false 
Sec.

or misleading R 
5601.2.9 

1, 4 
information 

Fees R 
Sec. 

1, 4
5601.2.10 

Sec. 96.1.5608.1 Sec. 96.1.5608.1 
Fireworks Display 

R Sec. 5608.1 Sec. 5608.1 5
General 

Scope R 
Sec. 

Sec. 5608.1.1 5
5608.1.1 

Sec. 96.1.5705.2.4 
Sec. Transferring Class 

R 
Sec. 

Sec. 5705.2.4 5
96.1.5705.2.4 I, II or III Li uids 5705.2.4 

Sec. 5706.2.5.2.1 
Sec. Tanks for Gravity 

A 
Sec. Sec. 

5
96.1.5706.2.5.2.1 Dischar e 5706.2.5.2.1 5706.2.5.2.1 

Page 81 of96 



County Added, 
2020 Fire 2023 Fire 

County Section District District 
Old (2020) 

Section New Subject Amend, 
Section Section 

Difference 
(2023) Revised (2020) (2023) 

Sec. 5706.2.8.2 Sec. 5706.2.8.2 
Prohibition on Use 

A 
Sec. 

Sec. 5706.2.8.2 5
ofTank Vehicle 5706.2.8.2 
Safety Precautions 

Sec. 6107.5 Sec. 96.1.6107.5 and Devices A Sec. 6107.5 Sec. 6107.5 5 
Securing LPG 

Sec. 96.1.8001 Sec. 96.1.8001 
Referenced 

NC Sec. 8001 Sec.8001 1, 2, 3, 4 
Standards ~ 

NFPA 13D R S~e:3001 Sec.8001 1, 2, 3, 4 

Spare Sprinkler 
,, ... 

Heads 
R 5'.1.U 5.1.1.2 5 

Pressure Reducing 
~1.5 "" 

Valve /°--... ~ 1, 3, 4 

Amendment to / 
Inspector Test /.. AMEND 1 

~ .2.5 7.2.'j 5 
(RSF &VC) ' 

Pressure Gauge 
~ ,;7,3.~ 1, 4(GROUP) ,. 

Alarnft{GROUP) R '\.
1"'16''.!:' 7.6 1, 4 

Sprinklt!fedai'eas 
~ +to be omI?o ..... R 8.3.2 5 

(GROUP}, . ..... ) 

Amendmen~ 
, ... 

~ 
NFPA 13D 

AMEND 8.3.3 8.3.3 1, 4 ·: Sprinklers requ d 
~ di.SF) 

~ 

~"' 
,I~talling ,\ 
sprinklers in / 
~~2_rts, R 8.3.4 8.3.4 1, 4--~ patios ·o,igr 1O' .. "' (B.SF) 

/4__~ " 
~stalling
~?- R 8.3.4 8.3.4 5S Slll 

" gara2es (GROUP) 

" 
, 

Installing sprinkler 

J 
aboveFAU R 8.3.5.1.1 8.3.5.1.1 5 
(GROUP) 

V 
Sprinklers shall be 
installed in saunas 

A 8.3.10 8.3.10 5
and wine rooms 
{RSF) 
3-Head Calculation 

A 10.2.4.1 10.2.4.1 5(GROUP) 
Pressure cushion 

A 10.2.5 10.2.5 5
(GROUP) 
Hydrostatic Test 

R 11.2.1.1 11.2.1.1 5(GROUP) 
Inactive Systems 

R 12.3.3 4(GROUP) 

Page 82 of96 



County Section 
Old (2020) 

Sec. 
96.1.APP.B103. 

County 
Section New 

(2023) 

Sec. 
96.1.APP.B103.3 

Sec.96.1.APP.HIO0 Sec. 96.1.APP.H 

Sec. 96.1.007 Sec. 96.1.007 

Subject 

Areas Without 
Water Supply 
S stems 

Reporting Forms 

Effective Date 

Index by code 
section 

Findings 

Additional 
Findings for 
Cha ter 49 WUI 
Findings for the 
Fire Code 
Annex Residen~l 
Tum Around 
Annex Commercial 
Tum Around 
Annex,$R,pe_ 
Measur~ts 
AnnexFu~" 
Modificati 

Added, 
Amend, 
Revised 

NC 

NC 

R 

NC 

NC 

2020 Fire 2023 Fire 
District District 
Section Section 

Difference 

2020 (2023) 

Appendix Appendix 
B103.3 B103.3 

5 

Appendix H AppendixH 5 

4 

5 

5 

5 

5 

6 

6 

6 

6 

6 

6 

1. Showed~e-ianguage ·a(ld rext that i 
Italics 
2. Cl~1g~<fpqnctuation or a granumtical changj', 
3. Words wt!{e -~leted or sections, de:leted. c;',)unty amendments were not necessary as section was adopted in model 
code language. _ • 
4. Revised or am~ed texts. Chanae'f from the previous code that have been revised. 
5. NO CHANGE <Nq) means no ~ges made. Language is the same. 
6. NEW - Means new~age or ~tion provided for clarity. 

Page 83 of96 



FINDINGS 

FOR REVISION OF THE VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
AMENDMENTS TO THE 2022 CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE OF THE CALIFORNIA CODE OF 

REGULATIONS TITLE 24, PART 9 

As required by Health and Safety Code section 17958 the Vallet~~ter Fire Protection District 
does herewith make express findings that amendments tc;> ~e 20~2' California Fire Code are 
necessary for the protection of the public health, safety~ ~d welfa(e· due certain climatic, 
topographic, or geological features existing in the Coup,w-of~n Diego. 

The following matrix lists the Valley Center jif~ Protectio\,, District amen~e~ and the 
corresponding express findings. Minor editorial chan' s'or ty~41:Phical correc~ns to the Fire 
Code are not shown in these findings. The full texts of the~mposed Valley Center Fire Protection 
District amendments are shown in Vall -Center Fire ProtectJ_otLDistrict Fire Code. 

Additional Findings for Chapter 49 

REQUIREMENTS FOR WILDL:AND.-URBAN INTE , 

As required by Heapt> ahd Safety,Cc>de section 1V9~8 the Valley Center Fire Protection District 
Board of Directors does ,herewith make express tipdings that amendments to the California 
Building Standards Code ar "1e~fcir"the-pr~ction ofthe public health, safety and welfare 
due certain'd1mat:LGt tbpograp~cor geologicaJ..features existing in the County of San Diego. 

DEF,.tflONS: 

CLIMATE. lll,e average course or condition of the weather at a particular place over a period of 
many years, asvh-ibited in ab~olute extremes, means and frequencies of given departures from 
these means (i.e., "Qf!empeqature, wind velocity, precipitation and other weather elements). 

TOPOGRAPHY. The ~nfiguration of landmass surface, including its relief (elevation) and the 
position of its natural and man-made features that affect the ability to cross or transit a terrain. 

GEOGRAPHY. A science that deals with the earth and its life, especially the description of land, 
sea, air, and the distribution of plant and animal life including man and his industries with 
reference to the mutual relations of these diverse elements. Webster's Third New California 
Dictionary 

Page 84 of96 



CLIMATIC CONSIDERATIONS: 

There are two types of climates: macro and micro. A macro climate affects an entire region and 
gives the area a general environmental context. A micro climate is a specific variation that could 
be related to the other two factors, topography and geography. A micro climate may cover a 
relatively small area or be able to encompass an entire community, as opposed to another 
community in the same County of San Diego. 

Climatic consideration should be given to the extremes, means, and~ .Q_malies of the following 
weather elements: °' 

1. Temperatures. 
2. Relative humidifies. 
3. Precipitation and flooding conditions. 
4. Wind speed and duration of periods of hig~Nelodty. 
5. Wind direction. 
6. Fog and other atmospheric conditions. 

TOPOGRAPHIC CONSIDERATIONS: 

Topographic considerations should be ·v~n to the presence ,pf the~following topographical 
elements: 

1. Elevation and ranges of elevation. 
2. Location of ridgei1· drainages and e~arf>ments. 

/. , 

3. Percent of gr.a;cte {s1qpe}. 
4. Location of roads, bridges and railroa ' . 
5. Other tdpog~phical fea1;ures, such as a"$p~ct exposure. 

This information Becomes an important paq _pf creating an analysis of urban-wildland areas 
because tbpography-a.pd' s.lppe ar;~ key elements (along with fuel type) that create the need for 
specif.it ignition-resistan·c~ re.quire~rits jf'I this code , 

v· 

GEOGRAPA~C CONSIDERATIONS: 

Geography should .be e fluated to determine the relationship between man-made 
improvements (crealln& an exposure) and factors such as the following: 

1. Fuel type~r(Zoncentration in a mosaic and distribution of fuel types. 
2. EarthquaRe fault zones. 
3. Hazardous material routes. 
4. Artificial boundaries created by jurisdictional boundaries. 
5. Vulnerability of infrastructure to damage by climate and topographical 

concerns. 

Page 85 of96 

https://specif.it
https://tbpography-a.pd


Findings for the Fire Code 

Finding 1 

The Valley Center Fire Protection District herewith make findings that flood conditions 
carry the potential for overcoming the ability of the fire department to aid or assist in fire control, 
evacuations, rescues and the emergency task demands inherent in such situations. The potential 
for flooding conditions results in limiting fire department emergency vehicular traffic, with 
resulting overtaxing fire department personnel, may further cause a substantial or total lack of 
protection against fire for the buildings and structures located withu(the-N,risdiction. 

Finding 2 

~ 
The Valley Center Fire Protection District is sit,ated near three major~u"ks, each capable 

of generating earthquakes of significant magnjt{d~ These~re the Rose Ca{l~ault, the 
Elsinore Fault, and the Agua Caliente Fault. These f lb. ~re ~t to becomi~active at any 
time; the Valley Center Fire Protection District is parti~arfy-vulnerable to devastation should 
such an earthquake occur. 

The potential effects of earthquake,ac:ti~iaclude isolating ~in areas of Valley Center 
. ' 

Fire Protection District from the surrou jng 'area aad restr~fi,g or eliminating internal 
circulation due to the potential for collapsing ,hi~way~r~es and underpasses, along with 
other bridges in the area(Q.r Jin-earth slide, a :t e poten1'f for vertical movement rendering 
surface travel unduly burdensom;e or impossible.· 

Finding 3 

Th(\talley-eeQtet·fire PrQtection District is bisected by San Diego County Route S-6. This 
highwat is heavily trav·e-~d by tran9Rortati~n vehicles carrying known toxic, flammable, explosive 
and'1a2ilr®us materials. ~e potential,for release or threatened release of a hazardous material 
along this ,obte and other~ within'the district is likely given the volume transported daily. 
Incidents of ~iS'nature will nprmally require all available emergency response personnel to 
prevent injury a~· loss of n'4 and to prevent, as far as practicable, property loss. Emergency 
personnel respondl~ to s.$h aforementioned incidents may be unduly impeded and delayed in 
accomplishing an emer~ncy response as a result of this situation. With the potential result of 
undue and unneces~ry risk to the protection of life and public safety and, in particular, 
endangering residents and occupants in buildings or structures without the protection of 
automatic fire sprinklers. 

Finding 4 

Much of the rural area of the Valley Center Fire Protection District is a mountainous 
topography and lacks the infrastructure needed for water supply (fire flow) and experiences 

Page 86 of96 



water shortages from time to time. Those conditions have severely adverse effect on water 
availability for firefighting. Fires starting in sprinklered buildings are typically controlled by one 
or two sprinkler heads, flowing as little as 13 gallons per minute. 

Hose streams used by engine companies on well- established structure fires operate at 
about 250 gallons per minute each, and the estimated water need for a typical residential fire is 
1,250 to 1,500 gallons per minute, according to the Insurance Service Office and the 2022 
California Fire Code. 

Under circumstances such as, lack of water infrastructure, earthquakes, multiple fires and 
wildland fires within a community, the limited water demands needs,af~ential fire sprinklers 
would control and extinguish many fires before they spread from .tfulfding to wild land. In such a 
disaster, water demands needed for conflagration firefighting ptp~abJy would not be available. 

Finding 5 

The topography of the Valley Center Fire Pr ec,tion Dis\(ict presents prQ_blems.jn delivery 
of emergency services, including fire protectio~-:- l-t,ijly·terrain 1ha.s narrow, windig.g roads with 
very little circulation, preventing rapid access and ord~rfy. ~cua n. Much of these hills are 
covered with highly combustible natural vegetation. In addition to access and evacuation 
problems, the terrain makes delivery of~er extremely diffi-Gult •. Some hill areas are served by 
water pump systems subject to failure in _ft(~ high_winds, eart~uak~:tand other power failure 
situations. This would only allow domestictravltyjel!d water from tanks and not enough water 
for firefighting. 

Finding 6 

.. 
Due to the moun~hi'o.µs topography in mu~h-of the rural area of the Valley Center Fire 

Protection District I roadway cottdttio0.i g'ates,-a. gle of approach or departure, steeply sloping 
roadways arfd gra.q_es #ire com~o·n. it is ver-y-1mportant that roadways be named and identified 
in order·tp-facilitate e~rgency r~onse 

~ 

Finding? 

Due to fl\~ mountain.ops topography in much of the rural area of the Valley Center Fire 
Protection District , steep./11arrow and winding roads and areas of heavy brush are common. 
These features make ~fficult for emergency response personnel to easily and quickly find the 
location of the site th-at requires assistance. It is therefore essential that street numbers and 
signs be easily readable to ensure the quickest response times for a given location. 

Finding 8 

Due to access and mountainous topography in much of the Valley Center Fire Protection 
District , difficult roadway conditions, gates, angle of approach or departure, steeply sloping 
roadways and grades are common. In addition, combining potentially severe rainstorms and 

Page 87 of96 

https://prQ_blems.jn


ground water retention of many areas ofthe District where there is expansive soil. This produces 
a condition wherein the moisture content of the soil is sufficient that roadways become damaged 
due to soil expansion and shrinkage. All weather, paved surfaces capable of supporting the 
imposed loads of fire apparatus are necessary to ensure access of emergency response 
personnel. These roadways, gates, approach angles, steep slopes and grades can also make it 
difficult for fire apparatus and other emergency vehicles to access a site. It is therefore essential 
that these roadway accesses be provided with proper all weather, paved surfaces, angle of 
approach, grades and gate access. 

Finding 9 

Due to the mountainous topography served by most ~fYthe V~ev• Center Fire Protection 
District , conditions exist such as poor water supply, po . acce\S roads, "teep grades and steep 
canyon slopes. In addition, the distances emergency r◄spons~personnel m~t\ravel can be very 
large and the response times can be long. Numer9{fystudies c(._the growth of afil"&.in-,elation to 
time have proven that at ten 111inutes the fire is etpeqed to havei>urned beyond oo,rtrol and any 
occupants remaining in the burning building would nett be .ewected to survive+' A ten-minute 
response time more realistically represents the time be~n1if. which serious injury or death is 
expected to occur. It is therefore founcf.fhat the Valley Center Fir:e Protection District response 
time at which mitigation would be requir~.~ 16-minutes. Such'(l"litiga;ion would be in the form 
of fire sprinklers or increased fire flow. li,;'addttJ,Qn~ with fire sp'ri~lers and smoke detectors 
together have reduced the number offatalitl~ in hdpl~}i\t59%>" 

Finding 10 

Areas in the (alley,.dmter ire Protection Dls~r{& can have special fire prevention needs 
not fully covered.by the prm(_isf(ll)ls ef ttte-Fir,a.ec.,;~ itself. This is due to the unique topographic 
features derfl.ogr,aptlic:"s;Jnfras~ucture, andfoeaf economics of the Fire District. 

Findi'n1; ll 

The topography of the Valley Center Fire Protection District presents problems in delivery 
of emergency s~ces, includ:Jhg fire protection. Hilly terrain has narrow, winding roads with 
little circulation, p~v~ntin(rapid access and orderly evacuation. Much of these hills are covered 
with highly non-fire r isltve natural vegetation. In addition to access and evacuation problems, 
the terrain makes delwery of water extremely difficult. Some hill areas are served by water tank 
and pump systems are subject to failure in fire, high winds, earthquake and other power failure 
situations. 

The aforementioned problems are set forth in the 2022 California Building Code and 
amendments. 

Page 88 of96 

https://ttte-Fir,a.ec
https://covered.by


Finding 12 

The seasonal climatic conditions during the late summer and fall create numerous serious 
difficulties regarding the control of and protection against fires in the Valley Center Fire 
Protection District . The hot, dry weather typical of this area in summer and fall, coupled with 
Santa Anna winds and low humidity frequently results in wildfires that threaten or could threaten 
the Valley Center Fire Protection District. 

Although some code requirements, such as fire-resistive roof classific-At-io~have a direct bearing 
on building survival in a wild land fire situation, others, such as resi11ential fire sprinklers, may also 
have a positive effect. In dry climate on low humidity days, manym~terials are much more easily 
ignited. More fires are likely to occur and any fire, once sta~ed, can~xp~nd extremely rapidly. 
Residential fire sprinklers can arrest a fire starting with.itl a str1',lcture b~_fdiie the fire is able to 
spread to adjacent brush and structures. ~ 

~ 
A seasonal wind also have the potential for interferi g'with emergency vehicle ac~ss, delaying 
or making impossible fire responses, because of tOP-plirJg_of ~tensive plantings of dense 
chaparral, eucalyptus and confers trees. The trees are su1'4jeet_to uprooting in strong winds due 
to relatively small root bases compareci't:ptbe tree itself. The~fi),:ementioned problems support 
the imposition of fire-protection requirel'l\et'.\!S gfeater than tho~ set~rth in the Building Code 
or Fire Code. 

Page 89 of96 



ANNEX A RESIDENTIAL FIRE APPARATUS TURN AROUND 
REFERENCED SEC. 503.2.5 DEAD ENDS 

RelkJential IIEmepncy Vehicle Tumaround 

l"ffll• 11' Hammerhead Tumnund 
I lltl~ Residential fire 01a:ess road/drivnay
I •itth: llervtng na more than twa ~weUinq11...
!E"--1111 .II. 

l l /T 

•:1100r:a.i~ 
0 
ii.I 

()ption #t Option#] 

Cul-dHIC Turnaround 
R•idential fire occJ,lil md Hrving
llirea ur mare dwdlingu... 

,/ ~ 

l 111 ~ ,.._24• 1 
I -fij--:,y--~"" IDJ!MII I
\ 1111 nntiM, 

'\ ..".... --- ,,," \·\ 

'~""'..____--,I ' 
Apprcwad Rllldantial Tum-Out 

-------------

Page 90 of96 



I 

ANNEX B COMMERCIAL FIRE APPARATUS TURN AROUND 
REFERENCED SEC. 503.2.5 DEAD ENDS 

Commercial 
Vehi:le Tumaround 

Oplion#l Option#l 

Cul-de-lac Turnaround 
Com rclo flM apparatu1 accae n,adway... 

/"~f .. ~ 
• _'!:.J!!!l!!!IL. (>.l 1Dd11,~• 

' ' \ \ , 
"~, .,.,' ' Optim #3....~~-----~~ ----- ,, 

~ 

~-li' 

!Ji_~~ 
I 

Hammalhead Tumaround 
Comm«-eial lf111 appcil'Cltus accm roodway... 

--,;-
;..I
"I,
'ii __(_ 

miL24' 

Page 91 of 96 



ANNEX C SLOPE CROSS SECTION MEASUREMENTS REFERENCED 
SEC. 4907.4.3 

4907 .4.3 Building and Structure setback from slope. Single-story 
buildings or structures shall be setback a minimum 15 feet horizontally from top of 
slope to the farthest projection from the structure. A single-story building or 
structure shall be less than 12 feet above grade, measured from plate height. A 
two-story building or structure shall be setback a minimum of 30 feet horizontally 
from top of slope to the farthest projection from the structure. A two-story 
building or structure shall be greater than a 12-foot plate height but shall not 
exceed 35 feet in total height. Buildings and structures greater than two stories may 
require a greater setback as determined by the fire code official. 

• 

15 ft Setback from the 

Top of Slope: 
Manufactured Cut or Fill or natural. 

3S ft 
Max 

30 ft Setback from the furthest 
projection. 

Figure 1. Top of Slope Setback 

Page92 of96 



,

~ 
~ u Q)z ....... 
~ :-9 Q) 
~ - = ~ ~ 2 
~ ,D 00 

~ § ii 
u = 

00 ~ :E 
~ ~ .t:: i 
~ < ~ (.) ✓~ Q)OO ::SI-) 
~ >1= ,lj::c: ~ ~ sQ) : < 
~ Q)] oµ.. 
00 ~g oo.s 
...-I aJt;: J::lQ)
"""' d c-s v,....... 
~ Ooo :-;:::°g 
~ N8~.Eo. 
oo 2=o-Q)
r-1 ,D r~ N 00 (.)- ·- - = (.)Z -00 00 ~ -~00 · -c-1 c-1 

0 _g] '= ~~ 
N S ..d .= Q) ·i::0 00 ,...dQ)Z ~ 00 i:. -0 U ~ ~ c-1 c-1 
~ 6 a ·i:: ~ s 
~ 0 ,D .s u Q)< Z ..cf c-s Q) :0
U ouSJ::l·..::i 
~ ........ '"000 

~ ~=21-<= 
~ o S:-9~'s§ Ni:::~t;"cao

i:::o= ..... u 
~ •,-; •- ,D - I ~ Cll~odi::: 
. 1 1=-i:.aJo 
-"' ..... Q) oc5z~. c-s bOU~ 
~~ E:> II I 
~~] •• µ_lµ.l~ 

~""' c-s~>u..:i:: 
><: ~ .s -~ 0 ~ ~ 
~;;;;;;i ~.s::Eo~Z r ~ 1-< ~ µ.l µ.l µ.l 
~~ u i:.~~~ 

DEFENSIBLE SPACE 
Creolinc effect:ve defensible space ·nvolves developing a series cf Zones in whch Mferent prevemctive tecnniques are useo. 
Create 'and mcintoin defensible space around cocn buijd(ng on your prooerty, includ:ng cetoched garages, storage builcings, 
bo'ns and other structures... 

*If tree is over 18' 

-- ------], in height limb up 
; ·, low branches by 6'.·o· 

scouralc '1 ·:, It less than 18' in 

J! 
I ' 

~ -~-!!lfo,_ff.!l[ll..f,QfTl~ .;:,i ~ \ 
..r •. 

~ '.)
\ -. 
• ,J 

6'-1S"'"igh 6"-18"higr ;:. <, 
~'!:#'r4.. ...-' :~ .-
'" """ I I ,,. ''"" ., 

~ ~ 

./ 
~~ 

selective 
clecring... 

< 5'-50' 

ZONE 1 

,!e; 0-5'; , E D-5'>< 
: ZONE o: ZO~E Q, 
I I 1 

'-. .._C'-5' from home. '.fo combustibles._/
Grave, ccncreie, oave'.s swoundinci 
perimeter of s:ructure. • 

5'-:0' 'tram home. LOW ground covers,
shrubs, r,lont vecetcticfl ,hat will not ..____~--~~.,, 
exceea ,8 in hight.
Jrcughl lolemt. 

,A'.'".....~~~ 
selective 
clearing... 

1 \height limb low 
..,77 

.4,'?
/ 

~......!:.•-, 

I 

....~; 

.,,,.I 

\"-> branches by 
\ 1/3tree
\- ..\ height. 

ID 
O'I':'··--··.:... .....\ 0 ,,.,\ 
O'I

'-~.... 0 

✓>~ .=rr'>\"'-J-.....l.~ ~ 
i:i.. 

5'-50' 

ZONE 1 

>'< 5C' - 100' 

,-- ZONE 2 

i><: Natural Growl~ ;>> 

50' !.. 100' separation tree crowns 10' 
orrigole, limb Jo all trees off _gm.. rd 
6 . Rcmcvc dc~a limbs and lh1r:. 
Ceon gro~nd cover dead leaves p:-ie 
needles. Selective c1eoring, keep oaks, 
monzanita end na:ive soecies. 

Zone O- Is the Non-Combustible Zone - Remove, Reduce and Replace. Remove ALL combustible materials in this zone. 
Reduce the potential for direct flame impingement against structure and Replace with non-combustible materials. 



ANNEXE DEFENSIBLE SPACE ORDINANCES 

Refer to the map on the following page to determine the appropriate Unincorporated Fire 
District. Defensible Space Ordinances defer depending on which Fire District your 
property is located. The Defensible Space Ordinance for the San Diego County Fire 
Protection District is included in the following pages ofthis Appendix. Ifyour property is 
in a Fire District other than the San Diego Fire Protection District, refer to the individual 
web links below. 

Valley Center Fire Protection District 
https://www.alpinefire.org/files/a935a53b0/2016.01+Weed+Abatement+Ordinance.pdf 

Lakeside Fire Protection District 
htt s://lakesidefire.or /defensible-s ace/ 

North County Fire Protection District 
https://www.ncfire.org/files/9c1 0be67f/Ordinance+ 2001-1 +-+ Weed+ Abatement.pdf 

Rancho Santa Fe Fire Protection District 
ht ://www.rsf-fire.or w -content/u loads/2022/03/0.-Ord-2022-02-Weed-Abatement-Final. df 

Rincon Del Diablo Municipal Water District 
h ://rinconwater.or /w -content/u loads/2018/12/Water-Administrative-Code-rev-2017. df 

San Marcos Fire Protection District 
https://www.san-marcos.net/departments/public-safety/fire-department/fire-prevention/ab38-
defensible-s pace-inspections 

San Miguel Fire Protection District 
h s:/ /sanmiguelfire.s ecialdistrict.or /files/2f4b1b461/Ordinance+ 14-1 +-
+Weed+ Abatement+%28signed%29 .pdf 

Valley Center Fire Protection District 
https://www.valleycenterfire.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/0rdinance-55-weed-abatement.pd 

Page94 of96 

https://www.valleycenterfire.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/0rdinance-55-weed-abatement.pd
https://ecialdistrict.or
https://www.san-marcos.net/departments/public-safety/fire-department/fire-prevention/ab38
https://rinconwater.or
www.rsf-fire.or
https://www.ncfire.org/files/9c1
https://s://lakesidefire.or
https://www.alpinefire.org/files/a935a53b0/2016.01+Weed+Abatement+Ordinance.pdf


....

• • 

ANNEXE DEFENSIBLE SPACE ORDINANCES MAP 

~r:~ll ,ii , 
~~ ; ~ 
} i:_.. .~i--~-----------~l,_1__·i___...J-_ _ _______, 

Page 95 of96 



--< 
j 
b 
"ta z ~ 

0 4-< ..... 0 
E-< ~ 

< ....0 

~ "ta 
~ -~""-ooM.~ .... ~ r---00 

as QJ 0 

. 
..c::- ll') 

~ 0 i..~ -1-, =1)1)
0 ....~ ·i:: ~ 

E-< 0......; 
~ ::c:ts ><8~ 
0.. CL)~ g.,s

0 ~ 
E-< ~ 

I-< 

,D 
00 ...., 'i 
~ ::c: > 
~ < 8 

~ 0..E-< ] g.< 
~ - "O0 ~ 

- ,:;:S~ "O "O 
QJ QJ
:t::-IZl 

E-< 
•,...<oo s :.=:> E-< .g_g~~ oo_ 

~~ CL)~ 
,D ..c:: 

~~~- :::: IZl 
,:;:S IZl 

~~ ~ ;:-J IZl ·5a -;;~~ 'ii:: e 

PRIVATE WATER STORAGE TANK 
SCREENED VEN!' SIZED TO OVl'LET PiPBS I OVERFLOW PIFINO, WITH SCREENED OUl'LET 

UQUIDLBVEL TARGBTINDICA TORllEQUIRl!D 
STORAOETANK: MANUFACTURl!D wr111MATl!RIAI.8CONSl&TANTWITHORINSTALLLOWLBVl!LALAllM --- \ 

- AND INSTALLED PER TIIEMOST IIJlCE'lr EDmON OF NFPA 22. 

=:::CHORVALVE,COlll'R.OLl.lNG \ \ DISCHARGE VAL VE: LISTl!I) OS.t.Y GATE ORBUrI!lRFL YVALVE 

7 NOTE: SUCTION OF BOOSTER PUMP FEl!OINGA FlRB SPRINKLER SYSTEM, MUST BE 
INLEI'PIPING. I \MUST FILL ON OPPOSITE CONNllC11lOTOl'IRELINE,ANDMUSTPROVIDll WATER 

TO DOMESTIC PURPOSES INSIDE DWllLl.lNO. HALPOF_:::1'FROMOUTLET. \ \ 

~~~CP,
/ "" \\ \ ' USTPD - ONRUNORSIDEOF 

1 

I OS.t.YOATBORBUTTl!RFLYVALVE ~~ 'C l'ITilNO. 

( ~ \ ~ ~ 
TANKIIHBLL ~ - / ~ 

\ ~ ~UIRED. AS MEASUREO 

I TANK 2Y OBl'ENSlBLE SPACE I 
/ 

- - - ---....._~......_ / /Lo=1:'aATE 
" / '""iio.M T ANK SHELL - -.......__ ..a OR Y 

.__/ ~~, TOFIRE 

o::::i I 
TANK.DRAINVALW(OPTIONAL) b t ~g _.,,, ., ,. , ..~ ., ·•.1 , 1 ,r , ¥ •y ~ 

TO,L 

TANKFOUNDATION SHALL CONSIST OF A ~ 
MINIMUM OF 6' GRAVEL CONTAINED BY-' 
A METAL.OR CONCRETll R1NO. / 

STRUCl'IJRAL FILL MUST BE PROVIDED --ALL ABOVE GII.OUND PIPING SHALL FDC NOTl!S: 
UNDER TANK. COMPACTION MUST BB Bl!METALUC. -DISCHARGE SHALL TO BB 14" •24"ABOVE 
OBSERVED AND REPORTED IBR CBC -ALLPIPINO AND COIIIPONBNTS MUST BE FINISHl!D GRADE. 
REQUIREMJ!NTS INSTALLl!DTO NFPA 13, 13D, 22, 24 STANDARDS -INSTALLED A MINIMUM OF 4' AND NO 

-m!LOW GROUND PIPINOMAY BEMETALUC ORC-900PVC. ,!lf ORE THAN IO' OFF EDGE OF ORIVEWA Y ., .,. ,,, ; ~ 
NOTE; ll'TANKIS FEl!OINO IRRIGATION 011. ~W GROUND PIPINOSHALL HAVEA MINIMUM COVER " ~ , · y 9LI!ADING TO STRUCI'URE. 

Ol'Hl!RNON-FlRB FRCJI'ECTION Ulll!S, Ol' 24" IN NON 1R/ll'l'IC AREAS AND 36' WHERE TllllRE Ill A - ·• _. •- -" -HOSETHREADSSHALLBEFACINO 

DISCHAROEMUSTBECONNBClllDTO POTENIIAL OP Vl!HICULl\llTRAPl'IC. 

TANKABOVEREQUIRED FIRBl'LOW. OIi.A -FDC SHALL BE S!1-1SO' FROM Bun.DINO 
Oil S'TllUCTUllE.LOWLl!VELALAllM MUST Bll lNSTALLl!O 

ON TANK AT 1IC>% OF nm LE\IEL 

Rl!QUIKED FORMINIMUMFlRB FLOW PER STANDPIPECONNBCTIONSHALLBI!J;J ll1'fu, 
NFPA 13D•/1.6.2 AND APPROVED FOR.ABOVE GROlll'ID. 

4" MINIMUM STANDPIPE SIZE 
FOR. FLOWS BIITWEllN 101-~ OPM 

4' SQQARE X 4"THlCKCONCIIEm SPLASIIPAD -~ 
ATBASl!OFFDC 

RESIDENTIAL FIRE PROTECTION TANK AND EQUIPMENT 
PDS//600 , IU!VISllO 8,5-!l.022 

' 

'° °' "o 
'° °'11.l 

~ 
ii. 

https://METAL.OR


 

          
  
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

   
 

  
 

 
 

  
      

   
 

 
    

   
 

 
   

 
 

 
  

    
    

   
 

      
 
 
 

   
  

VVAALLLLEEYY CCEENNTTEERR FFIIRREE PPRROOTTEECCTTIIOONN DDIISSTTRRIICCTT 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-50 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT APPROVING 

THE CENTER FOR PUBLIC SAFETY EXCELLENCE 
2022 COMMUNITY DRIVEN STRATEGIC PLAN 

WHEREAS, there has been presented to the Valley Center Fire Protection 
District Board of Directors the facilitated 2022 Community Driven Strategic Plan 
from the Center for Public Safety Excellence in the form and content as attached 
hereto, and 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Valley Center Fire Protection 
District that said 2022 Community Driven Strategic Plan be adopted and 
approved; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of Valley Center Fire 
Protection District does hereby adopt and approve the 2022 Community Driven 
Strategic Plan; and 

It is FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Fire Chief is hereby 
authorized and directed to accept and adopt the 2022 Community Driven 
Strategic Plan on behalf of the Valley Center Fire Protection District. 

Adopted this 15th day of September 2022. 

_______________________ 
Secretary Regina Roberts 



 

 

 

by I Center , .. 
Public Safety 

~ Excellence 



 

 

     

 

    

  

        

    

   

 

  

     

 

   

     

      

     

  

  

  

  

 

   

  

 

Message from the Fire Chief 

“Your Department of the Quality of Life” 

Commented [RD1]: VCFPD: The document layout may not 

look correct on your end (due to our differing systems). However, 

your final document will be printed appropriately and you will be 

able to format the Word version to suit  your system. 

Joe Napier, Fire Chief 

The Valley Center Fire Protection District has been proudly serving our community for over 40 years. 

Since June 29,1982, the Valley Center Fire Protection District response area has covered 84.5 square 

miles of beautiful urban, rural and suburban wildland interface. We now provide service to over 23,000 

residents and respond to over 2200 all-risk incidents annually. We are dispatched by a state of the art, 

advanced 9-1-1 system provided by the North County Dispatch JPA (North Comm). We operate out of 

two strategically located Fire Stations with a third Fire Station scheduled to open in 2023. This station 

and a future fire station will improve service and reduce response times in a climate of increasing 

demand. 

The Valley Center Fire Protection District is an ISO Class 2-2X Fire Department which provides and 

receives exceptional service through our automatic and mutual aid partnerships. Our relationship with 

all of the North Zone Fire Agencies, Tribal Fire Agencies and Cal Fire / San Diego County Fire 

Stations that are in and around Valley Center, help us protect a growing community. 

Our ongoing commitment to you, is to reduce Community Risk by providing exceptional all risk 

emergency response to Structure Fires, Wildfires, and Provide Advanced Medical Life Support 

Paramedic Services on every responding unit. We are the “department of the quality of life” in Valley 

Center, making our community a better place to live through our Core Family Values, Community 

Safety Education Programs and actively participating in all community events with a servant’s heart. 

We are ready to respond at a moment’s notice to meet the needs of our growing community. 



 

 

 

             

          

              

           

               

            

             

           

             

             

             

               

 

 

 

Introduction 

The community serviced by the Valley Center Fire Protection District (VCFPD) receives high levels 

of professionalism and efficiencies through the district’s proactive approach to emergency 
mitigation and risk reduction. In consideration of this, the VCFPD contracted with the Center for 

Public Safety Excellence® (CPSE) to facilitate a community-driven strategic plan. The process 

utilized by CPSE aligns with the fire and emergency service accreditation model of the Commission 

on Fire Accreditation International® but also considers all parameters prescribed by the authority 

having jurisdiction. 

CPSE’s approach to community-driven strategic planning gathers feedback and input from 

community and agency stakeholders while focusing on future change beyond the status quo. 

Beliefs, concepts, current processes, and values were among the many pieces considered and 

questioned to bring this planning document to reality. The VCFPD exhibited a commitment to 

implementing and executing this plan to become more efficient and effective in alignment with its 

community. 



VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT STRATEGIC PLAN 

Table of Contents Commented [RD2]: VCFPD: TAP will update when all 
revisions are complete 

 

 

 

    

   

 
   

  

  

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

  

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

    

    

   

   

   

   

   

   

  

   

 

  

    
 

Organizational Background ................................................................................................................................... 1 

Organizational Structure......................................................................................................................................... 1 

Community-Driven Strategic Planning............................................................................................................... 2 

Process

Other Thoughts and Comments 

Strengths 

 and Acknowledgements ......................................................................................................................... 3 

Community Group Findings .................................................................................................................................. 4 

Agency Stakeholder Group Findings .................................................................................................................. 5 

Mission......................................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Values ........................................................................................................................................................................... 7 

Programs and Services ............................................................................................................................................ 7 

SWOT Analysis ........................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Critical Issues and Service Gaps............................................................................................................................ 8 

Strategic Initiatives ................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Goals and Objectives ............................................................................................................................................... 8 

Vision..........................................................................................................................................................................24 

Performance Measurement .................................................................................................................................25 

The Success of the Strategic Plan ......................................................................................................................25 

Glossary of Terms, Acronyms, and Initialisms ................................................................................................26 

Appendix 1................................................................................................................................................................28 

Should Change .................................................................................................................................................. 28 

Should NOT Change........................................................................................................................................ 28 

Community Expectations................................................................................................................................ 29 

Areas of Community Concern....................................................................................................................... 30 

Positive Community Feedback ..................................................................................................................... 30 

.................................................................................................................. 33 

Community Priorities ....................................................................................................................................... 33 

Appendix 2................................................................................................................................................................34 

............................................................................................................................................................. 34 

Weaknesses ........................................................................................................................................................ 35 

Opportunities..................................................................................................................................................... 36 

Threats.................................................................................................................................................................. 37 

Appendix 3................................................................................................................................................................38 



 

   
 

 

 

  

               

           

         

           

             

            

            

         

            

           

  

            

         

              

        

  

 

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

Jim Davidson 
Battalion Chief 

Fire Marshal Community 
Risk Reduction 

Prevention Volunteers 
Charlotte Seaborne 

Bill Palmer 
Cindy Wong 

A - ShiftSt1 

Captain Palmer I I 
Eng,n&efBaStio&n I I 
FF/PMPattl$00 I I 
FF/EMTGroui I I 

Valley Center Fire Protection District 
Organizational Chart 

Board of Directors 
Phil Bell - President Steve Hutchison - Vice President 
Mike O'Connor -At Large Regina Roberts - Secretary 

Charlotte Seaborne - Treasurer 

Josef Napier 
Fire Chief 

Amy Mayerchik - Ad min Assistant 

Sandy Mays - Account Manager 

B - ShiftSt 1 C-ShiftSt1 A - ShiftSt2 

C.piamSharpe I I Capi.-iMarq,.iez Captllin()pen 

EngineerRotxnaon I I Engineet"O'AQO$bno EngineerEwmg 

Ff/EMT Bertotti I I FFtEMTNewm..-i FF/PMSouki 

FF/EMT Ramirez I I FFl1:MT'Nrighl FF/PM Perona 

FFl1:MT Gonzalez 

FF~MT Doy\11 

Scott Duncan 
Division Chief 

Operations, EMS, 
Train ing 

Joe Basinski 

Training Captain 

B - Shift St 2 C - Shift St 2 

CaPlatn~meyer C.iptainParede• 

Engin&efCOvam.ibias E~rMancieh 

FF/EMTWlll..-ns FF/PM $~linger 

FFl1:MTFunderbur1r. FFIEMTEacalant11 

FFl1:MT GregDauphin FFl1:MTBoswell 

FF~MT H11mandez 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Organizational Background 

The Valley Center Fire Protection District (VCFPD) was first formed in 1982 by a citizen vote to form their 

own independent fire protection district. The district is governed by a five-member Board of Directors that 

provides guidance for operations, fiscal stewardship, and community focus in emergency and risk 

reduction services. The VCFPD is made up of career members and other volunteers that provide a wide 

variety of services to meet the demands of those who live, work, and play within its coverage area. 

Encompassing 84.5 square miles of jurisdiction within San Diego County, California, the Valley Center Fire 

Protection District operates out of two fire stations strategically located to provide its emergency and non-

emergency services as it endeavors to be Valley Center’s “department of the quality of life. Presently, the 
district services a population of approximately 25,000 residents who call Valley Center home and has a 

basis in agriculture and farming, but also has community growth and development augmenting the 

otherwise rural risk considerations. 

Today, the VCFPD strives to meet the current and future needs of the community by providing exceptional 

services while remaining transparent and accessible. The district members remain firm on accomplishing 

its mission while personifying the values that make the Valley Center Fire Protection District an agency 

borne to pursue excellence in all it does. 

Organizational Structure 

Page 1 



 

   
 

 

 

  

          

           

            

          

        

                 

            

             

             

          

         

            

          

  
  

  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Community-Driven Strategic Planning 

Understanding what the customer desires is vital to the success of any organization. In this case, the 

customer is the community the Valley Center Fire Protection District serves. Less important focus on the 

customer does not apply just because the service organization is a governmental entity. Community-driven 

strategic planning ensures the community remains a focus of the organization’s direction and community 
feedback is at the heart of all deliberations and development of this strategic plan. 

The process of strategic planning and the plan itself represent the embrace of transition away from how an 

organization has always done things, seeking to find efficacies and outcomes based on change. The strategic 

plan provides a management roadmap built on a common vision and set up for measurable results. With 

the involvement of a diverse group of agency stakeholders, the Valley Center Fire Protection District’s 
strategic plan encompasses various experiences, perceptions, and perspectives that can also work to build 

more internal organizational symbiosis. For the desired, measurable results to be realized, the process and 

the strategic plan must focus on substance, not form. Only then can the VCFPD genuinely benefit from the 

process and realize its ultimate vision. 

Community Stakeholders Work Session 

Page 2 



 

   
 

 

 

       

       

          

             

     

          

          

      

        

          

      

       

        

          

       

        

   

           

             

             

               

         

            

         

  

       

       

         

        

        

       

       
 

 
  

  
  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

+ + 

+ + 

+ + 

+ + 

+ + 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

The Community–Driven Strategic Planning Process Outline 

1. Define the programs provided to the community. 

2. Establish the community’s service program priorities and expectations of the organization. 

3. Identify any concerns the community may have about the organization and aspects of the 

organization that the community views positively. 

4. Revisit the mission statement, giving careful attention to the services and programs currently 

provided and which logically can be provided in the future. 

5. Revisit the values of the organization’s membership. 

6. Identify the internal strengths and weaknesses of the organization. 

7. Identify areas of opportunity or potential threats to the organization. 

8. Identify the organization’s critical issues and service gaps. 

9. Determine strategic initiatives for 

process was 

to ensure broad representation 

organizational improvement. 

10. Establish a realistic goal and objectives for each initiative. 

11. Identify implementation tasks for the accomplishment of each objective. 

12. Determine the vision of the future. 

13. Develop organizational and community commitment to accomplishing the plan. 

Process and Acknowledgements 

The community-driven strategic planning conducted in August 2022 after extensive 

preparation work by the VCFPD from its community and agency 

stakeholders. The Center for Public Safety Excellence would like to commend all the district’s members 
who assisted in the preparation and execution of the process, ensuring quality representation and a 

strategic plan that provides the future roadmap for improvement. 

The CPSE would also like to acknowledge those community stakeholders (as named below) and agency 

stakeholders (as named later) for their candor, involvement, and support of VCFPD’s future improvement 
and success. 

Valley Center Fire Protection District’s Community Stakeholders Commented [RD3]: VCFPD: Please check the spelling of the 
names for accuracy and make any changes needed. 

Barbara Andrews Steve Hutchison Faith Much Moses Shubin 

Chip Duncan Alan Kirkpatrick Donna Mae Roberts Jan Shuttleworth 

Jim Emig Judy Kooyers Gina Roberts Heather Smidt 

Jake Enriquez Darcy LaHaye David Ross Tom Stinson 

Laura Gordon Brian Lovelady Fatima Rubio 

Brendan Hammes Jeanne McFarland Justin Salter 

Page 3 



 

   
 

 

 

  

               

             

              

 

          

           

         

             

        

 
  

 

  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Community Group Findings 

The Valley Center Fire Protection District exhibits a high level of commitment to its community by virtue 

of placing an important focus on satisfaction and the desire to know what the community thinks. A 

community stakeholder session was held to gather feedback from the respondents on the district and its 

various services delivered. 

The information gathered and processed from the community stakeholder feedback provided 

understanding to the agency stakeholders of any misalignment with its organizational foundation and 

performance or values-based expectations or concerns from which 

processes may be created. The specific data and findings received by 

respondents are provided in Appendix 1 of this document. 

new improvement strategies and 

the community stakeholder 

Community Stakeholders Work Session 

Page 4 



Agency Stakeholder Group Findings 

A group of the district’s agency stakeholders representing the various segments of the VCFPD attended a 
three-day work session to review the community feedback, develop or revise the district’s mission and 
values, and establish a quality focus on the way forward in the development of this community-driven 

strategic plan. Additionally, the process included an environmental scan in the form of a strengths, 

weaknesses, opportunities, and threats (SWOT) analysis to provide a greater understanding of the current 

challenges the district faces. The participating agency stakeholders are named and pictured below. 

Valley Center Fire Protection District’s Agency Stakeholders 

Joseph Basinski 
Captain 

Christian D’Agostino 
Engineer 

Daniel Marquez 
Captain 

Adam Pattison 
Firefighter 

Richard Bastien 
Engineer 

James Davidson 
Fire Marshal 

Josef Napier 
Fire Chief 

Chris Robinson 
Engineer 

Jon Blumeyer 
Captain 

Scott Duncan 
Division Chief 

Austin Newman 
Firefighter 

Jesse Sharpe 
Captain 

Sean Boswell 
Firefighter 

Anthony Escalante 
Firefighter 

Chris Palmer 
Captain 

Martin Souki 
Firefighter 

Jim Courter 
Volunteer 

Leonardo Gonzalez Santos 
Firefighter 

Andre Paredes 
Captain 

 

   
 

 

 

    

            

            

           

              

          

         

       

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

  
  

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

   
 

  
 

 

 
  

  
  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

+- +-

t +-

t 

t ,-

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Commented [RD4]: VCFPD: Please check the spelling of the 

names for accuracy and make any changes needed. 

Agency Stakeholders 

Page 5 



 

   
 

 

 

 

              

             

    

     

    

      

   

           

            

        

   

 

 

 

 
  

 

  

-

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Mission 

The mission provides an internal aspect of the existence of an organization and, to a degree, an empowering 

consideration for all district members. The purpose of the mission is to answer the questions: 

• Who are we? 

• Why do we exist? 

• What do we do? 

• Why do we do it? 

• For whom? 

A workgroup met to revisit the existing mission and, after ensuring it answered the questions, the following 

mission statement was created, discussed, and accepted by the entire group: 

It is the mission of the Valley Center Fire Protection District to meet 

the current and future needs of our community by providing 

exceptional service, all risk emergency response, reducing 

community risk, and maintaining public accessibility. 

Agency Stakeholders Work Session 

Page 6 



 

   
 

 

 

 

       

   

        

      

     

       

        

      

      

          

       

   

           

           

          

             

    

             

            

 
  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

accomplishing the goals, objectives, and day-to-day tasks. 

Programs and Services 

It is imperative that agency stakeholders have the ability to distinguish between the core deliverables 

(programs and services) provided by the VCFPD and those supporting services that help the district 

provide the core programs and services. With this understanding, the agency stakeholders can further 

define where the issues and gaps exist within the organization and provide more basis for the 

environmental scan that is conducted. 

To bring this understanding to fruition, CPSE provided guidance and gained consensus among the entire 

group to understand the difference between the deliverables and the supporting functions. 

Family 

Integrity 

Professionalism 

Loyalty 

Pride 

Exceptional Service 

Fiscal Responsibility 

Agency Stakeholders Work Session 

Values 

Values embraced by all members of an organization are 

extremely important, as they recognize the features that 

make up the personality and culture of the organization. 

A workgroup met to revisit the existing values and 

proposed a revision that was discussed, enhanced 

further, and agreed upon by the entire group. 

The mission and values are the foundation of this 

organization. Thus, every effort will be made to keep 

these current and meaningful to guide the individuals 

who make up the Valley Center Fire Protection District in 

Page 7 



 

   
 

 

 

  

          

           

          

   

               

         

               

         

            

    

             

         

               

               

                 

     

  

              

              

      

   
 

  
 

   

           

   

 

 

 

 
 

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

l 
r 

~-------~/ 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

SWOT Analysis 

Conducting an environmental scan helps the VCFPD understand where things stand organizationally. The 

environmental scan answers the question of where the district is now. By scanning strengths, weaknesses, 

opportunities, and threats (SWOT), the district gains a broader understanding of what is working, what is 

not working, and the causes. 

The agency stakeholders participated in a SWOT analysis process by which they were all able to provide 

feedback on strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats; while also questioning or disagreeing with 

other entries. Further discussion revealed the true SWOT components that exist within the VCFPD, and this 

provided further basis from which to develop this strategic plan. 

Appendix 2 consists of the SWOT data and analysis collected by the agency stakeholders. 

Critical Issues and Service Gaps 

After sifting through data and feedback provided by the community stakeholders and the environmental 

scan that occurred, the agency stakeholders, by consensus and group effort, identified critical issues and 

service gaps within the Valley Center Fire Protection District (found in Appendix 3). Two groups were 

created to sift through all the causal issues and gaps they found within the data provided. The causal issues 

led to a broader, more strategic issue or gap, which may lead further to their determined strategic initiatives 

to be listed later. 

Strategic Initiatives 

Based upon all previously captured information and the determination of critical issues and service gaps, 

the following strategic initiatives were identified as the foundation for developing goals and objectives. 

Fire-Based EMS/Transport Staffing Recruitment, Retention, and Succession 

Facilities Management Community Outreach 

Agency Stakeholders Work Session 

Goals and Objectives 

For change to occur, the Valley Center Fire Protection District has developed goals, objectives, critical tasks, 

Page 8 

Commented [RD5]: VCFPD: Please review thoroughly and 

enhance/amend to best serve your agency. Include assigned parties 

(positions, committees, divisions, etc.). 

You may choose to leave the funding estimate blank for now, or 
remove it entirely. If the latter, please let us know. 



 

   
 

 

 

           

             

            

    

  

         

          

     

 

          

      

  

            

     

           

 

          

      

 

  

  

   

  

 

  
            

     

      

  

            

  

     

           

      

          

      

 

  

  

   

  

  

-

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

and timelines as a roadmap for continuous improvement. Each goal is based on a specific strategic initiative 

and, when accomplished, will overcome a critical issue or service gap, resulting in a positive outcome. 

Objectives contain a level of measurement and time to ensure success in accomplishment and 

accountability for implementation. 

Goal 1 

Determine the feasibility, cost, and deployment model for a fire department 

based ALS transport system for the VCFPD, enabling local control of total 

response times, training, and personnel. 

Objective 1A Evaluate the current ALS transport delivery system in the VCFPD. 

Timeframe 12 months Assigned to: 

Critical Tasks 

 Obtain and analyze all relevant response time data from the current provider. 

 Obtain all relevant contract compliance data. 

 Obtain all relevant revenue stream data to determine the program's cost to 

VCFPD. 

 Develop and deliver a report of findings and recommendations to the leadership 

team for further action and/or approval. 

Funding 

Estimate 

Capital Costs: 

Personnel Costs: 

Consumable Costs: 

Contract Services Costs: 

Objective 1B 
Provide a standards of cover evaluation of the service demands for a fire-based 

ALS transport system in the VCFPD. 

Timeframe 6 months Assigned to: 

Critical Tasks 

 Determine the standards of cover (SOC) based data on call volume and 

geographic area. 

 Set proposed performance standards for VCFPD. 

 Determine the number of ALS transport units and staffing required to provide 

proper service levels to meet the SOC. 

 Develop and deliver a report of findings and recommendations to the leadership 

team for further action and/or approval. 

Funding 

Estimate 

Capital Costs: 

Personnel Costs: 

Consumable Costs: 

Contract Services Costs: 

Page 9 



 

   
 

 

 

  
         

          

      

  

     

     

           

          

      

 

  

  

   

  

 

  
      

 

      

  

         

         

         

     

           

        

     

 

  

  

   

  

 

  
           

       

      

  

            

      

          

      

       

           

 

  

  

   

  

  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Estimate Personnel Costs: Contract Services Costs: 

Objective 1D 
Identify funding sources for staffing and equipment to support the ALS 

Transport System. 

Timeframe 24 months Assigned to: 

Critical Tasks 

 Pursue the SAFER grant application process to fill/fund positions. 

 Pursue the AFG grant application process for apparatus and equipment. 

 Seek an increase in tax revenue (CFDs, property tax, tax apportionment 

allocation) with support from county supervisors. 

 Determine the feasibility of using San Diego County ALS allocation funds. 

 Identify and apply for available federal and state grants. 

 Solicit local donations- Fire Foundation, public local businesses. 

Funding 

Estimate 

Capital Costs: 

Personnel Costs: 

Consumable Costs: 

Contract Services Costs: 

Objective 1E 
Become a viable ALS transport agency for the VCFPD within the unified service 

area (USA) contract area, to include all required documentation. 

Timeframe 24 months Assigned to: 

Critical Tasks 

 Determine the requirements of a receptive bidder for the USA contract. 

 Determine any legal and documentation requirements. 

 Develop and deliver a report of findings and recommendations to the leadership 

team for further action and/or approval. 

 As directed, seek legal counsel on the completion of required documents. 

 Take actions based on any other requirements to meet the county's expectations. 

Funding 

Estimate 

Capital Costs: 

Personnel Costs: 

Consumable Costs: 

Contract Services Costs: 

Objective 1C 
Determine the cost of providing a fire-based ALS transport system in the VCFPD 

based on the standards of cover and proposed performance standards. 

Timeframe 6 months Assigned to: 

 Determine all relevant annual personnel costs. 

 Determine all relevant initial equipment and apparatus cost. 

Critical Tasks  Develop an annual budget projection for the period of the contract. 

 Develop and deliver a report of findings and recommendations to the leadership 

team for further action and/or approval. 

Funding Capital Costs: Consumable Costs: 

Page 10 



 

   
 

 

 

  
        

 

      

  

       

     

        

             

 

  

  

   

  

 

  
       

   

      

  

        

       

       

 

      

          

      

         

 

  

  

   

  

 

          

      

  

        

          

          

      

      

         

 

  

  

   

  

  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Objective 1G 
Create specifications and purchase all appropriate equipment to support the 

standards of cover. 

Timeframe 24 months Assigned to: 

Critical Tasks 

 Create the specifications on the ambulances needed to meet this goal. 

 Implement the bid system for the ambulances. 

 Evaluate cooperative purchasing agreements for durable goods (monitors, 

radios, etc.). 

 Determine responsive bidders and make purchases. 

 Develop and deliver a report of findings and recommendations to the leadership 

team for further action and/or approval. 

 Implement the purchasing process and receive and equip transport units. 

Funding 

Estimate 

Capital Costs: 

Personnel Costs: 

Consumable Costs: 

Contract Services Costs: 

Objective 1H Determine the billing and revenue process and implement the program. 

Timeframe 6 months Assigned to: 

Critical Tasks 

 Determine requirements for billing and cost recovery. 

 Prepare contract for billing and cost recovery, and send out for RFP/RFQ. 

 Develop and deliver a report of findings and recommendations to the leadership 

team for further action and/or approval. 

 Contract with the determined billing agency. 

 Determine the financial structure for the revenue stream. 

Funding 

Estimate 

Capital Costs: 

Personnel Costs: 

Consumable Costs: 

Contract Services Costs: 

Recruit, train, and retain firefighter paramedics/EMTs to staff the deployment 
Objective 1F 

model. 

Timeframe 12 months Assigned to: 

 Recruit the required number of personnel. 

 Train all personnel to VCFPD standard. 
Critical Tasks 

 Work through the new retention program to retain employees. 

 Monitor the system established and give frequent reports to the leadership team. 

Funding Capital Costs: Consumable Costs: 

Estimate Personnel Costs: Contract Services Costs: 

Page 11 



 

   
 

 

 

          

      

  

         

      

           

            

          

 

 

  

  

   

  

 

  
          

  

     

  

        

      

        

 

  

  

   

  

 

  
         

        

     

  

        

    

       

             

   

 

  

  

   

  

 

 

  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Objective 1I Determine a start date based on the acquired contract. 

Timeframe 6 months Assigned to: 

Critical Tasks 

Timeframe 

 Determine the contract’s start date and have equipment and personnel trained 

and in place for the start date. 

 Provide public notice for the change of service in VCFPD. 

 Enter all new units into the North Comm dispatch rotation specific to VCFPD. 

 Notify cooperators in the Valley Battalion and auto aid agencies of new resources 

available. 

Funding 

Estimate 

Capital Costs: 

Personnel Costs: 

Consumable Costs: 

Contract Services Costs: 

Objective 1J 
Ensure continued maintenance of rolling stock, medications, durable goods, and 

disposable goods. 

Timeframe Ongoing Assigned to: 

Critical Tasks 

 Determine vehicle maintenance vendor and award contract. 

 Develop an annual budget for consumables. 

 Develop a capital improvement budget for rolling stock and durable goods. 

Funding 

Estimate 

Capital Costs: 

Personnel Costs: 

Consumable Costs: 

Contract Services Costs: 

Objective 1K 
Create an evaluation process that includes response times, customer service, 

program cost, revenue streams, QA/QI, and program effectiveness. 

Ongoing Assigned to: 

 Utilize Tableau for all response time reports. 

Critical Tasks 

 Develop a customer feedback system. 

 Reconcile costs associated with revenue streams from transports. 

 EMS officer to manage QA/QI processes in conjunction with base hospitals and 

provide feedback to personnel. 

Funding 

Estimate 

Capital Costs: 

Personnel Costs: 

Consumable Costs: 

Contract Services Costs: 

Page 12 



 

   
 

 

 

  
       

        

 

  
         

   

       

  

       

          

         

        

      

    

          

      

 

  

  

   

  

 

  
         

    

     

  

        

         

           

 

          

          

  

        

  

 

  

  

   

  

  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Goal 2 
Improve the current staffing model to maintain appropriate service levels to 

serve the community and prepare current members for advancement. 

Objective 2A 
Identify and analyze the current staffing model and its assigned roles, 

responsibilities, and functions. 

Timeframe 2 months Assigned to: 

 Identify how to analyze the current staffing model. 

Critical Tasks 

 Determine how to measure the effectiveness of the current staffing model. 

 Analyze to determine the effectiveness of the current staffing model. 

 Evaluate the current roles and responsibilities to determine sustainability 

relative to the current staffing model. 

 Conduct a gap analysis. 

 Develop and deliver a report of findings and recommendations to the leadership 

team for further action and/or approval. 

Funding 

Estimate 

Capital Costs: 

Personnel Costs: 

Consumable Costs: 

Contract Services Costs: 

Objective 2B 
Build a recommended draft staffing model based on the data collected to 

overcome the identified gaps. 

Timeframe 2 months Assigned to: 

Critical Tasks 

 Evaluate the current data and the gap analysis. 

 Determine the strengths and weaknesses in areas of data collected. 

 Determine the needed ways of staffing revision to improve the identified 

weaknesses. 

 Develop and deliver a proposed model staffing policy and plan that incorporates 

all information and recommendations to the leadership team for further action 

and/or approval. 

 As approved, build the recommended staffing model to include an 

implementation timeline. 

Funding 

Estimate 

Capital Costs: 

Personnel Costs: 

Consumable Costs: 

Contract Services Costs: 

Page 13 



 

   
 

 

 

            

      

  

      

        

         

           

    

     

    

          

      

 

  

  

   

  

 

  
          

  

      

  

         

      

         

     

 

  

  

   

  

 

  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

 Develop and deliver a report of findings and recommendations to the leadership 

team for further action and/or approval. 

Capital Costs: 

Personnel Costs: 

Consumable Costs: 

Contract Services Costs: 

Create a budget proposal for dissemination of the new staffing model to the 

finance committee. 

1 month Assigned to: 

 Identify line items necessary for the current staffing budget. 

 Use the previous budget as a template. 

 Incorporate the data collected into the line items. 

 Finalize the budget and present. 

Objective 2C Conduct a cost analysis of the draft staffing model based on the data collected. 

Timeframe 1 month Assigned to: 

Critical Tasks 

Funding 

Estimate 

Objective 2D 

Timeframe 

Critical Tasks 

Funding 

Estimate 

 Determine the current wages and forecasted wages. 

 Determine the current benefits package and forecasted benefit package. 

 Determine the current retirement package and the forecasted package. 

 Determine the sustainability of all forecasted finances based on the projected 

budget from an analysis of previous budget processes. 

 Review previous budget cycles to determine annual growth rates. 

 Analyze all factors. 

Capital Costs: Consumable Costs: 

Personnel Costs: Contract Services Costs: 

Page 14 



 

   
 

 

 

  
       

  

      

  

       

         

         

       

       

 

  

  

   

  

 

  
         

    

      

  

        

      

        

 

         

           

    

          

      

          

 

  

  

   

  

 

  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Using current integration processes, implement the approved elements of the 
Objective 2E 

budgeted staffing model. 

Timeframe 3 months Assigned to: 

 Create and advertise for necessary positions. 

 Conduct testing for qualified applicants using the district’s application process. 
Critical Tasks  Conduct hiring based on the new budget cycles and approved positions. 

 Hire additional personnel based on determined needs and budget. 

 Please new employees through the district’s onboarding process. 
Funding Capital Costs: Consumable Costs: 

Estimate Personnel Costs: Contract Services Costs: 

Objective 2F 

Timeframe 3 months, ongoing Assigned to: 

 Determine factors to consider for the evaluation system. 

 Establish standards for the evaluation system. 

 Evaluate the current records management system for appropriateness for the 

new model. 

 Determine what and how the district is measuring the delivery system. 
Critical Tasks 

 Review all data from previous years and compare it to the current data since the 

implementation of the new system. 

 Develop and deliver a report of findings and recommendations to the leadership 

 Make adjustments to the program based on approved recommendations. 

Funding Capital Costs: Consumable Costs: 

Estimate Personnel Costs: Contract Services Costs: 

Create an evaluation system that measures the implemented model’s impact on 
the district’s service delivery. 

team for further action and/or approval. 

Page 15 



 

   
 

 

 

  

           

         

 

 

  
        

   

       

  

       

       

       

       

          

      

         

 

  

  

   

  

 

           

      

  

         

     

   

       

          

          

      

 

  

  

   

  

  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Goal 3 

Recruit, retain, and provide an associated succession plan for the highly 

qualified personnel who provide fire, rescue, and emergency services to the 

community. 

Evaluate the current recruitment, retention, and succession practices employed 
Objective 3A 

by the VCFPD. 

Timeframe 12 months Assigned to: 

 Review the minimum qualifications to apply for all positions. 

 Review the hiring process for all positions. 

 Review the testing process for all positions. 

 Review the probationary requirements for all positions. 



team for further action and/or approval. 

Develop and deliver a report of findings and recommendations to the leadership 

 Implement any changes to the minimum qualifications for all positions. 

Capital Costs: 

Personnel Costs: 

Consumable Costs: 

Contract Services Costs: 

Establish a formalized recruitment system based on the completed evaluation. 

3 months Assigned to: 

 Create written job announcements with a description and job qualifications. 

 Disseminate the job announcement via media sources, professional publications, 

and active personnel recruitment. 

 Collect and review applications to determine qualified candidates for an 

eligibility list based on the timeline established in the job announcement. 

 Develop and deliver a report of findings and recommendations to the leadership 

team for further action and/or approval. 

Capital Costs: 

Personnel Costs: 

Consumable Costs: 

Contract Services Costs: 

Page 16 

Critical Tasks 

Funding 

Estimate 

Objective 3B 

Timeframe 

Critical Tasks 

Funding 

Estimate 



 

   
 

 

 

  
        

 

      

  

          

        

           

      

        

      

        

       

 

  

  

   

  

 

  
           

          

      

  

           

         

           

           

          

      

         

   

 

  

  

   

  

 

  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Establish a qualified cadre of recruitment personnel to manage the VCFPD 
Objective 3C 

recruitment program. 

Timeframe 12 months Assigned to: 

Critical Tasks 

 Identify and access interested candidates to establish the recruitment, retention, 

and succession plan cadre under the training division. 

 Select candidates representing each of the ranks of the district to fulfill the 

responsibilities of the recruitment, retention, and succession cadre. 

 Task the cadre with establishing program policies, procedures, and guidelines to 

manage the Recruitment, Retention, and Succession Program. 

 Implement the Recruitment, Retention, and Succession Program under the 

direction of the training division and cadre. 

Funding 

Estimate 

Objective 3D 

Timeframe 

Critical Tasks 

Funding 

Estimate 

Capital Costs: Consumable Costs: 

Personnel Costs: Contract Services Costs: 

Identify retention and succession plan gaps based on a department survey and 

design a Recruitment, Retention, and Succession Program from the results. 

9 months Assigned to: 

 Under the direction of the training division and the recruitment, retention, and 

succession cadre, create a gap analysis survey to determine the program's needs. 

 Disseminate the survey with an established timeline to all district personnel. 

 Collect and evaluate the data to determine any gaps in the program. 

 Develop and deliver a report of findings and recommendations to the leadership 

team for further action and/or approval. 

 Design corrective measures to eliminate the gaps in the Recruitment, Retention, 

and Succession Program. 

Capital Costs: 

Personnel Costs: 

Consumable Costs: 

Contract Services Costs: 

Page 17 



 

   
 

 

 

  
        

  

      

  

        

 

          

   

         

     

 

  

  

   

  

 

  
       

        

      

  

           

       

 

      

   

       

 

  

  

   

  

 

  
            

  

      

  

          

            

 

          

             

 

          

            

 

          

      

 

  

  

   

  

  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Provide continuing education to district personnel through Target Solutions, 

classroom, and hands-on training. 

Implement the newly designed Recruitment, Retention, and Succession Program. 

Develop a system to evaluate the success of the new Recruitment, Retention, and 

Succession Program. 

2 months, ongoing Assigned to: 

Critical Tasks 

 Establish a methodology for collecting data points for recruitment. 

 Determine the success or failure of a recruitment program through data 

collection. 

 Establish a methodology for collecting data points for retention. 

 Determine the success or failure of the retention program through the data 

collection. 

collection. 

Identify current and future rank and program management qualifications in the 
Objective 3E 

succession plan. 

Timeframe 6 months Assigned to: 

 Review the minimum qualifications for all program managers within the 

organization. 

 Establish an evaluation/selection process for program management for all ranks 
Critical Tasks 

within the organization. 

 Train and support new program managers to assure success. 

 Establish budget parameters to ensure fiscal responsibility. 

Funding Capital Costs: Consumable Costs: 

Estimate Personnel Costs: Contract Services Costs: 

Objective 3F 
Implement the updated approved Recruitment, Retention, and Succession 

Programs to meet the current and future needs of the VCFPD. 

Timeframe 6 months Assigned to: 

Funding Capital Costs: Consumable Costs: 

Estimate Personnel Costs: Contract Services Costs: 

Page 18 

Critical Tasks 

Funding 

Estimate 

Objective 3G 

Timeframe 

 Under the direction of the training division and the recruitment, retention, and 

succession cadre, introduce the new Recruitment, Retention, and Succession 

Program. 





Capital Costs: Consumable Costs: 

Personnel Costs: Contract Services Costs: 

 Establish a methodology for collecting data points for succession. 

 Determine the success or failure of the succession program through data 

 Develop and deliver a report of findings and recommendations to the leadership 

team for further action and/or approval. 



 

   
 

 

 

  
         

      

 

  
         

   

       

  

           

    

            

   

           

    

         

 

  

  

   

  

 

           

      

  

          

    

           

   

          

     

          

  

               

 

            

      

 

  

  

   

  

  

    

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Goal 4 
Determine the current and future station 3 facility needs and improvements 

necessary to support the organization and the community. 

Objective 4A 
Evaluate the current projects to determine additional needs for upgrades and 

improvements to Station 1. 

Timeframe 2 months Assigned to: 

 Determine when and where to improve all restroom facilities to support needed 

Critical Tasks 

suppression members and staff. 

 Determine when and where to improve the sleeping quarters to facilitate the 

needs of all members. 

 Complete a reconfiguration and update of the kitchen with modern appliances, 

including cabinets and countertops. 

 Expand and update the day room as appropriate. 

Funding 

Estimate 

Capital Costs: 

Personnel Costs: 

Consumable Costs: 

Contract Services Costs: 

Objective 4B Determine the needs for upgrades and improvements to Station 2. 

Timeframe 6 months Assigned to: 

Critical Tasks 

 Determine when and where required update all restroom facilities to support 

needed suppression members and staff. 

 Determine when and where improve the sleeping quarters to facilitate the needs 

of all members. 

 Complete reconfiguration and update of the kitchen with modern appliances, 

including cabinets and countertops. 

 Provide security fencing around the sleeping quarters without limiting access to 

the public. 

 Replace Conex and add storage with a freestanding building in the rear of the 

station. 

 Add electrical service (future) to the storage facility site anticipating a large 

garage storage facility in the future. 

Funding 

Estimate 

Capital Costs: 

Personnel Costs: 

Consumable Costs: 

Contract Services Costs: 

Commented [RD6]: Rephrase for clarification. 

Page 19 



 

   
 

 

 

  
         

   

       

  

            

    

            

           

          

  

          

 

 

  

  

   

  

 

  
            

    

      

  

              

  

               

     

          

   

 

 

  

  

   

  

 

  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

 Install covered space for a workout area and provide all necessary workout 

equipment. 

Capital Costs: 

Personnel Costs: 

Consumable Costs: 

Contract Services Costs: 

Determine a system for storage and apparatus bay space for frontline and 

reserve apparatus and equipment. 

24 months Assigned to: 

 At Station 3 site, provide a large storage garage to handle reserve apparatus and 

additional storage needs. 

 Expand the depth of the apparatus bay at Station 1 to facilitate storage of reserve 

apparatus and space for potential ALS ambulance 

 Additional station storage needs to be added to Station 2, including an 

appropriately-sized medical inventory room. 

Evaluate the current status of the construction of temporary Station 3 to 
Objective 4C 

complete Phase 1. 

Timeframe 6 – 12 months Assigned to: 

Critical Tasks 

Funding 

Estimate 

Objective 4D 

Timeframe 

Critical Tasks 

Funding 

Estimate 

 For temporary Station 3, install station security fencing and a sound barrier 

facing Cole Grade Road. 

 Locate and build a graded plot with pavement or concrete to perform training 

exercises and a location for the pump pod with an on-site hydrant. 

 Training Facility- install all necessary infrastructure to support the anticipated 

training tower. 

Capital Costs: Consumable Costs: 

Personnel Costs: Contract Services Costs: 

Page 20 



 

   
 

 

 

  
           

     

     

  

         

  

          

         

     

             

 

  

  

   

  

 

  
         

        

      

  

             

     

         

           

       

 

  

  

   

  

 

  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Provide a training /community room for in-house training, public meetings, and 
Objective 4E 

the emergency operations center (EOC). 

Timeframe Ongoing Assigned to: 

Critical Tasks 

 Ensure that the Station 3 design includes a training/community room/EOC 

multipurpose facility. 

 Purchase and install all connections and antennae to support EOC operations. 

 Purchase and install smart board and all audio-visual components to support 

training classes and community meetings. 

 Design features should include plans to utilize as the Fire Board meeting room. 

Funding Capital Costs: Consumable Costs: 

Estimate Personnel Costs: Contract Services Costs: 

Objective 4F 
Review all current blueprints/plans for all station modifications to ensure they 

meet the objectives set forth by the critical tasks above. 

Timeframe 12 months Assigned to: 

 Meet and review all plans with Erickson Hall to ensure the needs are met for all 

Critical Tasks 

three station projects and upgrades. 

 Prioritize upgrades that are suggested based on needs assessments. 

 Participate in the design-build process and ensure the improvement plans are 

followed based on the priorities established by VCFPD. 

Funding 

Estimate 

Capital Costs: 

Personnel Costs: 

Consumable Costs: 

Contract Services Costs: 

Page 21 



 

   
 

 

 

  
         

    

 

         

       

  

            

   

          

  

      

             

 

 

  

  

   

  

 

  
       

  

      

  

         

     

          

    

            

           

 

  

  

   

  

 

           

      

  

     

           

          

    

   

 

  

  

   

  

  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Goal 5 
Enhance the relationship between the community and the district to promote 

education, health, and safety. 

Objective 5A Evaluate current community outreach programs within the district. 

Timeframe 6 months Assigned to: 

Critical Tasks 

the assessment 

Funding 

Estimate 

Capital Costs: 

Personnel Costs: 

Consumable Costs: 

Contract Services Costs: 

Objective 5B 
Establish and formalize a recruitment system to connect community members to 

the district. 

Timeframe 4 months Assigned to: 

Critical Tasks 

 Identify ways to create a recruitment and selection system for program managers 

from the district and the community. 

 Implement an advertising campaign to promote the programs utilizing media and 

social media and in-person contact. 

 Create a list of interested community members for each of the programs offered. 

 Create a selection process from interested and qualified community members. 

Funding 

Estimate 

Capital Costs: 

Personnel Costs: 

Consumable Costs: 

Contract Services Costs: 

Objective 5C Establish leadership positions to manage each of the outreach programs. 

Timeframe 6 months Assigned to: 

Critical Tasks 

 Interview interested personnel and community members. 

 Make selections of qualified subject matter experts to form a leadership cadre. 

 Identify the program objectives of the community outreach program. 

 Create policies, procedures, and guidelines. 

 Establish budget parameters. 

Funding 

Estimate 

Capital Costs: Consumable Costs: 

 Perform a needs assessment and gap analysis to determine the viability of the 

current community outreach programs. 

 Analyze the information gathered from of the community 

outreach programs. 

 Identify strengths and weaknesses within the current programs. 

 Collate the data gathered to determine the direction of the community outreach 

program. 

Personnel Costs: Contract Services Costs: 

Page 22 



 

   
 

 

 

  
       

       

      

  

           

       

   

          

           

 

  

  

   

  

 

  
          

 

      

  

          

            

  

         

         

    

        

 

  

  

   

  

 

  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Implement updated and approved community outreach programs to meet the 
Objective 5D 

needs of the community and the district. 

Timeframe 3 months, Ongoing Assigned to: 

 Establish meeting dates, times, and locations under the direction of the cadre. 

 Deliver each program's expectations, goals, objectives, and parameters to assure 

Critical Tasks cohesion at all levels. 

 Implement the programs to the expectations of the district and the community. 

 Assure all members have the capacity to operate within the program. 

Funding Capital Costs: Consumable Costs: 

Estimate Personnel Costs: Contract Services Costs: 

Objective 5E 

Timeframe 3 months, Ongoing Assigned to: 

 Establish a methodology for collecting information and data points. 



community participation. 

Critical Tasks  Consider program outputs to the standard objectives and expectations. 

 Re-evaluate the program's effectiveness based on community and cadre 

 Adjust the program appropriately based on collected data. 

Funding Capital Costs: Consumable Costs: 

Estimate Personnel Costs: Contract Services Costs: 

Develop a system to evaluate each outreach program to ensure success and 

participation. 

Determine the success or failure of the program through attendance and 

feedback, data collection, and program outputs. 

Page 23 



 

   
 

 

 

 

        

         

       

        

          

         

      

           

 

      

         

        

      

  

       

 

        

       

      

      

 

      

          

          

 

 

  

    
    

   
 

   
   

-

-

-

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Vision 

In support of the futurity created within the community-driven 

strategic planning process, CPSE provided the VCFPD with a strategic 

plan vision, demonstrating what the district may look like upon 

successful plan implementation and goal achievement. The intent of this 

vision is not to replace the more global organizational vision the district 

might have but rather to keep all district members focused on the future 

success this plan can bring. 

“Vision is knowing who you 
are, where you’re going, and 
what will guide your 
journey.” 

Ken Blanchard 

Valley Center Fire Protection District’s 2027 vision is to be known as an 
agency striving for continuous improvement of its approach to delivering 

exceptional service. As a forward thinking district, we will deliver an 

improved EMS system that is part of a fiscally sustainable approach to the 

risk driven deployment of resources and managed facilities. In addition, 

we will strengthen our relationships with the community, our service 

partners, and stakeholders through comprehensive outreach practices.  

In recognition of our greatest resource and human investment, we will 

make every effort to develop, support, mentor, and prepare our members 

to be the best they can be. We will achieve this through our envisioned 

concept of representative staffing models and contemporary succession 

planning, which are supported by recruitment and retention 

enhancements welcoming diverse, motivated, and creative professional 

members who embody our values. 

We will be an initiative focused district that builds a safe, collaborative, 

and family environment with members holding each other accountable in 

the delivery of our mission, living our values, and bringing this vision to 

life. 

Page 24 



 

   
 

 

 

  

     

      

    

   

       

       

        

      

     

     

    

 

      

           

             

               

             

                 

         

           

            

           

        

           

         

  

  

         

     

        

       

 

        

 

      

 

         

  

  
     

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Performance Measurement 

By incorporating performance measures into this 

strategic plan, the Valley Center Fire Protection 

District has ensured greater success through 

implementation and institutionalization. However, 

the district must continue to measure its successes 

and challenges during plan execution to stay on 

course for change and delivery to its community. 

Greater focus should remain on the intended 

outcomes, not just inputs and outputs. Outcomes 

are those results that truly deliver for all 

stakeholders of the district. 

The Success of the Strategic Plan 

The district approached its desire for organizational change and continuous improvement by developing a 

strategic plan that focuses on input and participation from the community and agency stakeholders. The 

success of the strategic plan will be rooted in a quality implementation and institutionalization plan, and 

support from all who hold a stake in the Valley Center Fire Protection District. 

A contributing factor to the success of the strategic plan is the institutionalization of the plan across all 

levels of the organization. Without this institutionalization, the plan will remain siloed, and implementation 

may be hindered. Just as the development of the strategic plan included district members representing a 

broad spectrum internally, the implementation phase must also ensure that the same representation model 

is utilized. This will further institutionalize the plan and add value toward implementation successes. 

Without a true focus on implementing and institutionalizing this community-driven strategic plan, the 

VCFPD may fall short in the change it desires. The CPSE recognizes the district’s commitment to its 

community and supports the continuous improvement identified in this community-driven strategic plan. 

• If you don’t measure the results of your plan, 
you can’t tell success from failure. 

• If you can’t see success, you can’t reward it. 

• If you can’t reward success, you’re probably 
rewarding failure. 

• If you can’t see success, you can’t learn from 
it. 

• If you can’t recognize failure, you can’t 

correct it. 

• If you can demonstrate results, you can win 

public support. 

Reinventing Government 
David Osborn and Ted Gaebler 

Page 25 



 

   
 

 

 

    

              

        

        

          

    

    

    

   

      

      

   

   

      

               

             

   

   

   

        

       

     

              

          

      

            

      

             

 

   

   

    

    

        

     

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Glossary of Terms, Acronyms, and Initialisms 

Accreditation A process by which an association or agency evaluates and recognizes a program of 

study or an institution as meeting certain predetermined standards or 

qualifications. It applies only to institutions or agencies and their programs of study 

or their services. Accreditation ensures a basic level of quality in the services 

received from an agency. 

AFG Assistance to Firefighters Grant 

QI Quality Improvement 

RFP Request for Proposal 

RFQ Request for Quotation 

SAFER Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response 

SDG&E San Diego Gas & Electric 

ALS Advanced Life Support 

AMA Against Medical Advice 

CERT Community Emergency Response Team 

CFAI Commission on Fire Accreditation International 

CFD Community Facilities District 

CPR Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation 

CPSE Center for Public Safety Excellence 

Customer(s) The person or group who establishes the requirement of a process and receives or 

uses the outputs of that process; or the person or entity directly served by the 

district or agency. 

EMS Emergency Medical Services 

EMT Emergency Medical Technician 

Environment Circumstances and conditions that interact with and affect an organization. These 

can include economic, political, cultural, and physical conditions inside or outside 

the boundaries of the organization. 

Input A performance indication where the value of resources is used to produce an output. 

Mission An enduring statement of purpose; the organization's reason for existence. 

Describes what the organization does, for whom it does it, and how it does it. 

Outcome A performance indication where qualitative consequences are associated with a 

program/service, i.e., the ultimate benefit to the customer. 

Output A performance indication where the quality or number of units produced is 

identified. 

QA Quality Assurance 

Page 26 



 

   
 

 

 

    

            

        

       

              

           

     

           

      

           

       

     

           

      

        

              

      

     

              

          

  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

SDSO San Diego Sheriff’s Office 

Stakeholder Any person, group, or organization that can place a claim on, or influence the 

organization's resources or outputs, is affected by those outputs or has an interest 

in or expectation of the organization. 

Strategic Goal A broad target that defines how the agency will carry out its mission over a specific 

period. An aim. The final result of an action. Something to accomplish in assisting 

the agency in moving forward. 

Strategic Objective A specific, measurable accomplishment required to realize the successful 

completion of a strategic goal. 

Strategic Plan A long-range planning document that defines the mission of the agency and broadly 

identifies how it will be accomplished, and that provides the framework for more 

detailed annual and operational plans. 

Strategic Planning The continuous and systematic process whereby guiding members of an 

organization make decisions about its future, develop procedures and operations to 

achieve that future, and determine how success is to be measured. 

Strategy A description of how a strategic objective will be achieved. A possibility. A plan or 

methodology for achieving a goal. 

SWOT Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, and Threats 

Vision An idealized view of a desirable and potentially achievable future state - where or 

what an organization would like to be in the future. 

Page 27 



 

   
 

 

 

  

           

            

              

  

  

              

            

                 

  

             

   

    

                

 

        

           

      

 

   

              

            

                

   

            

  

      

   

  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Appendix 1 

Understanding the community’s perspective allows the district to change or bolster processes and 

strategies to fulfill community needs. The following information is the responses from participating 

community stakeholders that were collected and processed by CPSE on behalf of the Valley Center Fire 

Protection District. 

Should Change 

Respondents were asked to provide one thing the district should change. The data were processed 

thematically and listed with the number of responses that matched the theme, as represented by the 

number in the parentheses. The following are the responses related to what the district should change (in 

weighted order): 

1. More comprehensive and timely emergency event information distribution to the community. Seek 

feedback more often. Not publicly reporting violations. (3) 

2. More personnel. Increase staffing. (2) 

3. Have another fire station. Have a vision to help the community by learning how to raise funds for 

firehouses. (2) 

4. Increase funding. Getting more dollars for our fire district. (2) 

5. Employee churn due to wages. Find ways to retain firefighters. Keep talent local. (3) 

6. Have a larger lobby/waiting room. (1) 

Should NOT Change 

Respondents were asked to provide one thing the district should not change. The data were processed 

thematically and listed with the number of responses that matched the theme, as represented by the 

number in the parentheses. The following are the responses related to what the district should NOT change 

(in weighted order): 

1. Community involvement. Assisting the community with tasks. They cannot complete on their own. 

Community-oriented. Community involvement. (10) 

2. Respond to community problems. Level of service. (2) 

3. Leadership. General staff attitude. (2) 

Page 28 



 

   
 

 

 

  

           

            

          

      

            

           

           

       

             

       

          

           

 

             

       

          

               

 

              

            

             

      

       

           

        

            

   

          

     

   

               

     

     

  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Community Expectations 

The desire by the district to align with, meet, and exceed the community's expectations is critical to 

ensuring the development of its internal strategies. In many cases, the VCFPD found that it was already 

meeting or exceeding the community’s expectations; but in other cases, it found new understanding and 

utilized this feedback in further development of this strategic plan. 

In processing the expectations feedback, responses were themed and weighted based on the number and 

placement the responses landed in a prioritized manner. The themes were then listed in priority, weighted 

order for use by VCFPD’s agency stakeholders in developing this strategic plan. Listed below are the 

prioritized expectation responses from the community stakeholders: 

1. That the fire district continue to respond to medical emergencies and fires rapidly. Promptness to calls. 

Respond to fires within 10 minutes. Fast accurate response. Timely response. (70) 

2. Respond to threat of life (car accident, heart attack). Paramedics on site/availability. Provide quality of 

life response not just fire. Emergency response. Respond to fires (house, property). Emergency services. 

Put out fires. (48) 

3. Trained to combat large wildfires. Training of fire staff and community involvement. Expertise in 

dealing with emergency health issues. Well-trained and professional employees. (17) 

4. Fire protection / fire defense. Fire protection. Prevention. To help prevent fires. (10) 

5. Grow in size along with the population of Valley Center. Grow faster to keep up with increasing 

population. (7) 

6. Availability to all access points during fire emergency. It will organize and execute evacuations. (6) 

7. Be there and staffed when needed. Constant staffing of stations and equipment. (6) 

8. Education and enforcement of fire safe policies. Clear information to the community. Inform and 

instruct community on fire safety and accident prevention. (5) 

9. Wildland fire emergency ability as well as prevention. (5) 

10. That salaries be commensurate with other fire districts so that we keep our trained firefighters. 

Continue to find ways to compensate the firefighters that is competitive county-wide. (4) 

11. That fire district/city fines people who continue to have overgrown weeds, dead trees on properties. 

Increased code enforcement. (4) 

12. Effective coordination with other public agencies. Communication amongst law enforcement on scenes. 

Assist SDSO in its mission. (3) 

13. Excellent customer service. (3) 

14. Remain in the public mind on a daily basis. It will serve as a focus for community concern. (2) 

15. Determine cause of fire. (1) 

16. Respond to property damage. (1) 

Page 29 



 

   
 

 

 

   

                

           

            

            

           

           

         

              

            

   

              

         

     

                

            

              

 

           

     

           

      

          

  

           

          

            

               

         

         

      

       

       

             

  

   

          

               

             

            

           

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Areas of Community Concern 

The desire by the district also existed to understand the concerns about and for the VCFPD held by the 

community stakeholders. This understanding provided a basis for further strategy development to either 

overcome a perceived issue or an external impact issue determined by the community. 

In processing the concerns feedback, responses were themed and weighted based on the number and 

placement the responses landed in a prioritized manner. The themes were then listed in priority, weighted 

order for use by VCFPD’s agency stakeholders in developing this strategic plan. Listed below are the 

16. Arson/weather. (1) 

Positive Community Feedback 

The CPSE promotes the belief that the community’s view on the organization’s strengths must be 
established for a strategic plan to be valid. Needless efforts are often put forth in over-developing areas that 

are already successful. However, proper utilization and promotion of the strengths may often help the 

organization overcome or offset some of the identified weaknesses. The following are the identified 

strengths recognized by the community stakeholders, verbatim and in no particular order: 

prioritized and verbatim expectation responses from the community stakeholders: 

1. Ability to grow with the community and be financially sound. Difficulty expanding service / financial 

issues. Large coverage area. Ability to handle increase population. How to fund the needs of our district. 

Adapting to new growth. (30) 

2. That we do not lose trained personnel to other fire departments. Retention of staff especially entry and 

starting levels. Staff turnover. Churn of newer employees due to fiscal constraints. Incentives to keep 

quality staff from moving on. (25) 

3. Slow response time. Response times. Current inability to respond to all areas of the community in a 

timely manner. Time to get to patients in need. Not reaching an emergency fire in time. (24) 

4. Number of available firefighters in a given fire crisis. They need more staff. Closing stations due to 

staffing. (22) 

5. Financial stability. They need more funding for fire stations. Insufficient funding. Uncertain funding for 

the services VCFPD provides and want to provide. (21) 

6. They need more equipment. Enough equipment from fire trucks to other needs. Not enough trucks for 

major fire. Not having necessary equipment for the job. (15) 

7. Recruiting qualified candidates and keeping staff. Uncertain ability to timely recruit new firefighters 

and paramedics. (12) 

8. That during a fire, ways out of Valley Center are limited with new housing development. Emergency 

evacuation routes. Evacuation routes as VC continues to grow. Need evacuation information. (12) 

9. ISO ratings in areas of Valley Center (insurance impact). Insurance cancelations and rates. (10) 

10. That the third station gets up and running soon. Number of fire stations to all of Valley Center. 

Completing fire station 3 before major fire event. (7) 

11. The growing community may not totally support VCFPD (station 3). (5) 

12. Mutual aid with reservations. Mutual aid responses. (4) 

13. Education of all new residents on driving safety. (3) 

14. CERT is dead, no priority to get it going. (3) 

15. Not using so many gifted people in Valley Center - ask for their help. (1) 

Page 30 



 

   
 

 

 

     

    

   

     

     

        

       

      

  

   

            

         

          

          

  

    

       

    

        

      

     

    

    

        

      

   

     

      

     

            

        

            

   

     

     

    

  

      

     

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

• Everyone seems very professional/positive. 

• Good community outreach. 

• Community involvement. 

• New station on Cole Grade. 

• Keeping up with technology/equipment. 

• The chief and his vision for our town. 

• The fire staff – awesome people. 

• Dedicated firefighting and medical response staff. 

• Competent leadership. 

• Community engagement. 

• Whenever a fire is reported, they are immediately on scene, full force, doing what is necessary. 

• Their willingness to help out and participation in community events. 

• They hold many fire education programs necessary to our community. 

• Fire district is always available and continues to answer concerns rapidly, e.g. snake sightings, potential 

fire causes. 

• Fire district always answers any concerns. 

• Classes on CPR be offered more frequently. 

• Kindness and patience. 

• Always prompt to an emergency in my vicinity. 

• Always available – advanced life support. 

• Immensely involved in the community. 

• Generous to a fault. 

• Extremely responsive – phone, text, email, meetings, etc. 

• Person answers the phone during business hours. 

• Responds to most any emergency call. 

• Diffuses tense situations. 

• Chief Napier – positive. 

• Multi-agency fire response – positive. 

• Collaboration of fire, law enforcement, SDG&E, public works, etc. 

• The professionalism and kindness goes over and above. It truly makes a difference to the community 

when they are in a time of need. 

• It is comforting to know they will be there and provide all needed resources. 

• Excellent customer service. 

• Active in the community. 

• Innovative with service delivery. 

• Fast and responsive. 

• Friendly. 

• Seem involved in the community. 

• Community education – Bates, etc. 

Page 31 



 

   
 

 

 

       

    

      

     

         

   

   

      

     

           

      

         

   

  

   

   

  

      

        

  

   

  

    

  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

• Emergency and concern for Valley Center. 

• Extremely good public relations. 

• The district is everywhere you go. 

• The district is very positive. 

• Proactive visionary for the future of the district. 

• Training program. 

• Community involvement. 

• Strong working relationships with community stakeholders. 

• Planning for the future. 

• They really care and work hard to do a good job. 

• Very involved in the community. 

• Focus on being the “Department of Quality of Life.” 

• Community based. 

• Great leadership. 

• Seeks input. 

• Community involvement. 

• Friendly staff. 

• Very involved in the community. 

• Cooperation between the association (union) and management. 

• New equipment acquisitions. 

• Community involvement. 

• Chief’s accessibility. 

• Public education services. 

Page 32 



 

   
 

 

 

   

               

         

       

            

           

    

            

                   

           

       

             

        

  

     

       

       

       

   

     

        

            

              

   

   

    

     

     

    

    
 

  

    

    

    

     

     

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Other Thoughts and Comments 

The community was asked to share any other comments about the district or its services. The following 

written comments were received, verbatim and in no particular order: 

• How will multiple roundabouts impact evacuations and response times? 

• Pulse Point and other apps aren’t nearly informative enough. Can VCFPD, along with other agencies, 
develop an app that provides comprehensive and immediate information so the community can know 

how and when to respond? 

• Perhaps more classes like CERT be offered a few times a year. 

• We are in a unique area where we like to know our 1st responders by name. I’d like to keep that concept 
going and expanding. The more we know them, the more we can support them. 

• Learn how to raise funds for fire house. 

• Thanks for coming out that one time I thought I was dying, but really it was just a panic attack. Ha! You 

guys are the real MVPs. 

• VCFPD is awesome! 

• Chief Napier is a great leader. 

• VCFPD leadership and personnel are approachable and listen. 

• I wish they would publish illegal fireworks violators! 

• Participation in community events are great. 

• Well-led district. 

Community Priorities 

Understanding how the community prioritizes the district’s programs and services allows the VCFPD to 
ensure its focus on resource allocation aligns. With that, prioritization feedback was garnered with the use 

of an instrument that compared the prioritization of all of the programs and services offered by the district. 

The results were as follows: 

Programs Ranking Score 

Emergency Medical Services Program 1 146 

Fire Suppression Program 2 145 

Wildland Fire Services Program 3 125 

Technical Rescue Program 4 106 

Emergency Planning and Preparedness 
Program 

5 78 

Fire Investigation 6 65 

Hazardous Materials Mitigation 7 64 

Community Risk Reduction 8 59 

Community Development Program 9 38 

Public Education Program 10 26 

Page 33 



 

   
 

 

 

  

  

         

             

    

        

   
     

       
  

      
 

      
 

         

    
   

     
 

        

  
   

 

      
     

   
   

      
 

  

        

     
  

       
   

        

    

 
  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Appendix 2 

Strengths 

Every organization has certain strong attributes and other strengths. By identifying these, the VCFPD aligns 

with the community for service delivery while also recognizing what it faces as a service provider within 

the bigger picture. 

Through a consensus process, the agency stakeholders identified the district’s strengths as follows: 

The eagerness, professionalism, and 
collaborative nature of our personnel 

The department growth through the addition of a 
fire station 

Well-equipped apparatus for the delivery of 
service 

Experienced leaders teaching the eager new 
personnel 

Small department allows for better adaptability Good communication up/down the ranks 

Customer service through department events 
and community involvement 

Knowing crewmembers’ capabilities – knowing 
everyone 

Strong relationship with the community Supportive fire board 

Well-trained, knowledgeable workforce 
Ability for program/project management at all 
levels 

Overall cost of operations is less than other 
departments of the same size 

Specialized apparatus/equipment reflects the 
needs of the community 

Diversity of workforce with diversity of 
experience 

Inclusive family atmosphere 

Proud/loyal workforce, even after they leave Leadership – knowledgeable, experience, adaptive 

Community involvement and dedication – 
Western Day, etc. 

Valley battalion and North Zone and integrating 
training and services 

Water supply and district relationships Reputation in the development of firefighters 

Local knowledge by personnel – geographical, maps, etc. 

Page 34 



 

   
 

 

 

 

               

           

            

   

          

      

       

 

          
     

   

   

       

  

      
   

       

      

 

       
  

     

  

   
     

  

         

         

        

      
 

     

          

 

  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Weaknesses 

Every organization has weaker attributes or other internal weaknesses that challenge its ability to deliver 

to its community. While identifying weaknesses takes on a negative connotation, the importance lies within 

the organization’s ability to accept, address, and overcome the weaknesses to positively affect its 
sustainability and growth. 

Through a consensus process, the agency stakeholders identified the district’s weaknesses as follows: 

Aging equipment Insufficient personnel for effective office support 

Only have a defined contribution plan – impacts 

recruitment 

Data have been developed for the need for one or 
two stations, but no action yet 

Recruitment/retention Compensation insufficient 

Financial stability Updates to facilities 

Lack of personnel dedicated to public outreach – 
CERT specific 

Recruitment and retention due to the lack of 
compensation and retirement 

Outdated facilities with a lack of training facilities Fire management understaffed 

Lack of financial stability due to failed tax 

apportionment 

Long response times due to large area with only 
two stations 

Projects, programs, and training performed by 

work crews spread thin 

Department commit times associated with 
elongated with response time standards set by 
outside entities 

On-scene commitment times are too high High percentage of concurrent incidents 

Lack of ‘bench depth’ for all positions No succession planning 

“Young” workforce prevents depth of training Website outdated, not current 

Too financially reliant on grants and fire 
foundation 

Lack of redundancy for specialized equipment 

Parity of wages between ranks – compression at the top and bottom 

Page 35 



 

   
 

 

 

  

           

       

         

           

  

   

    

  

      

    

        

   

        

            

     

 

      

  

     

   

     

 

      

  

     

 

      

        

     

    

 
  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Opportunities 

Outside any organization, opportunities exist from which growth, security, and support may occur. 

Opportunities may enhance organizational strengths or overcome organizational weaknesses. 

Through a consensus process, the agency stakeholders identified the district’s opportunities as follows: 

Specialized training – formal, specialized Improve community emergency response team 

Employment outreach – paramedic, explorers, 

high school career days 

Provide fire department information through 

multiple outlets 

Growth – expansion of the department to meet 

the needs of the community 

Improve our ISO rating through the addition of 

more stations and personnel 

Employment outreach – fire academies Improved public relations/public education 

Outreach into fire academy and medic school Improved relationships with county supervisors 

Fundraising in conjunction with local community 

organizations/groups 

More monies available from new development – 
higher budget 

Service card program – condolence or 

congratulations cards to the community 

Better/more information distribution to the 

community 

Possibility of increased funding through county 

tax reassignment 

Battalion drills – increased coordination with 

neighbors 

Succession planning – (outside) to maintain 

service now, (inside) to build from inside later 

Changes in demographics may change funding 

mindsets – tax measure 

Page 36 



 

   
 

 

 

 

          

       

          

       

      

 

    

  

      

 

   

    

           

    

     

    

  

        

    

    

       

   

       

   

 
  

     

 

     

 

          

  
     

 

   

      

        

  

 

  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Threats 

Outside any organization, threats also exist from which growth, security, and support may be hindered. 

Threats may negatively impact organizational strengths or enhance or grow organizational weaknesses. 

Through a consensus process, the agency stakeholders identified the district’s threats as follows: 

Risk relative to climate – drought, etc. CalFire takeover 

Funding sources – limited amount – property tax, 

CFDs 

Economy – recession, inflation, reduction of 

property taxes 

Unfunded mandates – all levels and cumbersome 

processes 

Dwindling workforce – boomers retire, job is not 

as desirable as it used to be 

Geographic isolation of the district Lack of cooperation between Mercy and VCFPD 

Inconsistent training attendance and engagement 

by automatic and mutual aid agencies 

Inaccurate community messaging from 

competing voices 

Less support from county supervisors County fire protection district takeover 

Lack of community understanding of services 

provided and by whom 

Certain percentage of the community would like 

to see FCFPD fail 

Staffing issues due to “pandemics” County/CalFire takeover 

Mercy/VCFPD relationship potentially 

deteriorating 
Climate change/drought 

Lack of union support from opposing agencies 

(CalFire) 

Community mental health issues impacting the 

workforce 

Community growing faster than the fire district CalFire ambulance vs. Mercy 

CalFire relationship 
Hospital offload delay due to hospital 

understaffed 

Roads/infrastructure – congestion/response times, 

increased call volume with same resources 

Dwindling interest in the fire service equaling to 

less applicants 

Page 37 



 

   
 

 

 

  

             

              

         

         

 
 

    

 
 

 
    
   
   
    
    
   

 
     

 
    
     
  
  
    
    

  
    

 

 

    
    
    
   
   

  
     
   
    
  
   

 
  
  
   
  
  
  

 
 

 

 
  
  
   
  

 
     
    

    
     

 
    
    

 

  
     

 
    
  
    
    
    

 
 

 

  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

Appendix 3 

The following information is the raw data comprised from the deliberation of the two workgroups. The 

information in each table is linked to a strategic initiative that the overall group, by consensus, determined 

was something the district should pursue for change and continuous improvement. 

Critical and Service Gap Issues Identified by the Agency Stakeholders 

Initiative 
Link 

Group 1 Group 2 

F
ir

e
-B

a
se

d
 E

M
S

 

Current Transport System 
o Long on-scene times 
o AMA overload 
o Non-fire personnel 
o Separate dispatch system 
o Long reflex times 
o Financially motivated contract 

mandates 
o Lack of closest resource utilization 

ALS Transport Services 
o Lack of quality control 
o Inability to meet response times 
o Cannot control contract 
o For-profit versus For-service 
o Ambulance dispatch restrictions 
o Could increase effective 

firefighting force 
o ability to train paramedics in-

house 

S
ta

ff
in

g
 

Duty Coverage/Chief Fire Investigator 
o Lack of qualified personnel 
o Lack of funding involvement 
o Succession planning 
o Lack of participation 

Workload Distribution 
o Equitable distribution of projects 

Staffing 
o Culture 
o Money/budget 
o Hiring pool 
o Outreach 
o Training 
o Benefits 

o Subject matter experts 
o Prioritization of projects/programs 
o Organization/communication 
o Realistic expectations 

R
e

cr
u

it
m

e
n

t,
 R

e
te

n
ti

o
n

, 
a

n
d

 S
u

cc
e

ss
io

n
 

Retention 
o Pay/parity/compression 
o Benefits 
o Working conditions 
o Staffing 

Recruitment 
o Lack of applicants fire service-wide 
o Single-role ambulance programs – 

non-safety – better pay 
o Lack of outreach – career days, social 

media 
o Lack of qualified recruitment officers 
o Lack of formalized recruitment 

systems 

Succession Planning 
o Training – cross-training of 

personnel 
o Retention of personnel 
o Qualifications 
o Growing ‘in house’ 
o Higher level education 
o Positive organizational culture – 

promotion, strong 
leadership/development 

Page 38 



 

   
 

 

 

 
 

    

 
 

 
   
   
  
   
      
      
    
    

 

 
 

 

  
    
   
  
  
   
  

   
   
  
   
  
   

             

            

           

       

     

 
 

  
   
    
   
     
     
   
       

 
      

 

 
  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

I 

I 

'ICcntc, ~ 
Public Safety 
Excellence 

I 

I 

Initiative 
Link 

Group 1 Group 2 

F
a

ci
li

ti
e

s 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

Facilities 
o Small apparatus bay 
o Sleeping quarters 
o Storage 
o Outdated stations 
o Rented office space – modulars 
o Lack of training space – tower 
o Lack of classroom space 
o Physical fitness - gym 

N/A 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 O
u

tr
e

a
ch

N/A 

Community Programs 
o Additional staff for workload 
o Volunteer programs/leaders 
o CERT 
o Grants 
o Community education 
o External Relationships 

Dissolution of District 
o Lack of funding 
o Political plan/acumen/power 
o CalFire/County Fire 
o Economy 
o Public perception 

The following information is the raw data comprised from the deliberation of the two workgroups. The 

information in each table is not linked directly to a strategic initiative but remains important. The district 

is best served to understand and embrace this other information as it moves forward for deliberative 

purposes and consideration of support of the strategic initiatives. 

Topic Group 1 Group 2 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 T
im

e
s 

Response Times 
o Large geographical area 
o Narrow, winding roads 
o Poor address/easements 
o Lack of east/west road network 
o Gates blocking road access 
o Unrated bridges 
o Lack of adequate number of fire stations to meet 

needs 
o Poor broadband network service for routing 

N/A 

Page 39 



 

   
 

 

 

 

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 

Page 40 



    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  TREASURER’S REPORT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PACKET 

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 



 
 

 

  
  
  
  

 

 

 
  
 

 

 

9:27 AM Valley Center Fire Protection District 
09/08/22 Balance Sheet 
Accrual Basis As of August 31, 2022 

Aug 31, 22 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Checking/Savings 
11011 · Petty Cash 67.06 
1101 · General Operating #4811 95,508.44 
1102 · Payroll Acct #2271 17,551.85 
11013 · Fire Foundation #8451 8,425.00 
11014 · Explorer #8469 21,613.09 
11015 · Training #7024 19,001.14 
11016 · Grant Acct #7073 782,081.61 
11021 · VCFPD Oracle Gen Fund - #47850 580,419.78 
11022 · VCFPD Mitigation Fund - #47855 1,162,136.94 
11023 · CFD 2008-01 - #47853 490,484.82 

Total Checking/Savings 3,177,289.73 

Other Current Assets 
11200H · Accounts Receivable CFD08 -31.86 

Total Other Current Assets -31.86 

Total Current Assets 3,177,257.87 

Fixed Assets 
1502100 · Engines and Vehicles 2,510,620.15 
1500014 · Bldg Improvements 1,362,213.78 
1501000 · Const in Progress 59,072.00 
1503100 · Furniture & Equipment 1,744,128.04 
15902 · General Fixed Asset - Depreciat -4,323,915.00 
16000 · Land 481,600.00 

Total Fixed Assets 1,833,718.97 

TOTAL ASSETS 5,010,976.84 

LIABILITIES & EQUITY 
Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 

20000 · Accounts Payable 134,802.18 

Total Accounts Payable 134,802.18 

Credit Cards 
8180 · 8180 CitiBank 1,813.75 
9349 · 9349-VCFPD 7,914.95 

Total Credit Cards 9,728.70 

Other Current Liabilities 

Page 1 

https://9,728.70
https://7,914.95
https://1,813.75
https://134,802.18
https://134,802.18
https://5,010,976.84
https://1,833,718.97
https://481,600.00
https://4,323,915.00
https://1,744,128.04
https://59,072.00
https://1,362,213.78
https://2,510,620.15
https://3,177,257.87
https://3,177,289.73
https://490,484.82
https://1,162,136.94
https://580,419.78
https://782,081.61
https://19,001.14
https://21,613.09
https://8,425.00
https://17,551.85
https://95,508.44


  

 

 

 

 

 

9:27 AM Valley Center Fire Protection District 
09/08/22 Balance Sheet 
Accrual Basis As of August 31, 2022 

Aug 31, 22 

20001 · Lease Liability 3,885.86 
24000 · Payroll Liabilities 

24700 · PTO & Sick Time Accrual Payable 46,660.61 
23200 · Wages Payable -586.50 
24100 · FF Assoc Dues& Cond Fee Payable 451.00 
24300 · Cafe Health Payable 59,056.62 
24400 · ACF Local Payable 30.00 
24500 · 457 Payable 25.00 
24600 · Payroll Taxes Payable -118.34 

Total 24000 · Payroll Liabilities 105,518.39 

Total Other Current Liabilities 109,404.25 

Total Current Liabilities 253,935.13 

Total Liabilities 253,935.13 

Equity 
39100 · Restricted Grants and Contribut 322,094.53 
39000 · Investment in Gen Fixed Asset 1,503,718.97 
30000 · Opening Balance Equity 2,289,279.59 
32000 · Retained Earnings 1,315,775.83 
Net Income -673,827.21 

Total Equity 4,757,041.71 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 5,010,976.84 

Page 2 

https://5,010,976.84
https://4,757,041.71
https://673,827.21
https://1,315,775.83
https://2,289,279.59
https://1,503,718.97
https://322,094.53
https://253,935.13
https://253,935.13
https://109,404.25
https://105,518.39
https://59,056.62
https://46,660.61
https://3,885.86


 
 

 

 
 

  
  
  
 
 
  
 
 

 

    
 

 

 
 
  

 

  

 

  
  

  

  
 

 

 

9:28 AM Valley Center Fire Protection District 
09/08/22 Profit & Loss 
Accrual Basis August 2022 

Aug 22 

Ordinary Income/Expense 
Income 

GRANT REVENUE 
48000 · Applied Grant Income-Other 19,406.46 

Total GRANT REVENUE 19,406.46 

NON-OPERATING REVENUE 
30120 · Mitigation Interest 963.41 

Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 963.41 

OPERATING REVENUE 
30130 · CFD2008-1 Interest 493.95 
40150 · Misc Revenue 3,409.47 
40100 · Taxes, Property (315000) 9,552.42 
40200 · CFD-2000-1 (315002) 725.72 
40400 · General Fund Interest 1,183.32 
40700 · Community Development Fees 19,460.12 
43000 · Training Reimb-Target & Palomar 2,290.00 
44000 · Fire Foundation Fund 6,275.00 

Total OPERATING REVENUE 43,390.00 

Total Income 63,759.87 

Expense 
OPERATIONS PROGRAMS 

51512 · Tools/Minor Equip/Small Engines 142.81 

Total OPERATIONS PROGRAMS 142.81 

TRAINING 
50100 · EMT & Paramedic License Renewal 165.50 
50500 · Training & Expenses 4,049.40 

Total TRAINING 4,214.90 

OVERHEAD / ADMINISTRATIVE SERV 
51000.1 · Administrative Support Expenses 7,745.95 

Total OVERHEAD / ADMINISTRATIVE SERV 7,745.95 

CONTRACT SERVICES 
51101 · Professional & Contract Svcs 11,885.50 
51110 · MDC Equip Replacement-HP Lease 500.89 

Total CONTRACT SERVICES 12,386.39 

COMMUNITY RISK REDUCTION 
51200 · CRRD Operational Expenses 15.00 

Total COMMUNITY RISK REDUCTION 15.00 

FIRE FACILITIES 
FIRE STATION #1 

51301 · #1 Facility Maint/Repairs 4,224.74 
51302 · #1 Utilities 1,793.59 

Total FIRE STATION #1 6,018.33 

FIRE STATION #2 
51312 · #2 Utilities 1,851.78 

Total FIRE STATION #2 1,851.78 

Total FIRE FACILITIES 7,870.11 

FIRE APPARATUS 
51400 · Operations Expense 1,387.00 
51402 · Fuel 1,079.54 

Page 1 

https://1,079.54
https://1,387.00
https://7,870.11
https://1,851.78
https://1,851.78
https://6,018.33
https://1,793.59
https://4,224.74
https://12,386.39
https://11,885.50
https://7,745.95
https://7,745.95
https://4,214.90
https://4,049.40
https://63,759.87
https://43,390.00
https://6,275.00
https://2,290.00
https://19,460.12
https://1,183.32
https://9,552.42
https://3,409.47
https://19,406.46
https://19,406.46


 

 

 
  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
  
 
 

  

 
 

 

 

9:28 AM Valley Center Fire Protection District 
09/08/22 Profit & Loss 
Accrual Basis August 2022 

Aug 22 

Total FIRE APPARATUS 2,466.54 

COMMUNICATIONS 
51601 · RCS Comunication Fees 1,885.00 

Total COMMUNICATIONS 1,885.00 

PARAMEDIC EMERGENCY SUPPLIES 
51700 · Medical Equipment & Supplies 843.54 

Total PARAMEDIC EMERGENCY SUPPLIES 843.54 

PAYROLL-ADMINISTRATIVE 
60000 · Division Chief-Operations/Train 8,556.80 
60200 · Battalion Chief-Fire Marshal 7,961.60 
60300 · Administrative Captain 8,084.04 
60400 · Administrative Asst-Office Mgr. 4,190.73 
60500 · Bookkeeper 3,180.00 
60600 · Fire Chief 9,156.80 

Total PAYROLL-ADMINISTRATIVE 41,129.97 

PAYROLL - OPERATIONAL PERSONNEL 
61000 · Fire Engineers 37,727.38 
63000 · Firefighter-Paramedics 55,169.44 
64000 · Fire Captains 52,670.43 

Total PAYROLL - OPERATIONAL PERSONNEL 145,567.25 

PAYROLL EXPENSES 
66008 · Employer Taxes-FICA,SUTA,FUTA 14,021.14 
66002 · FASIS Workers Comp Emp Asst 44,108.00 
66003 · Payroll Service 369.42 
66004 · Health Benefit Costs 3,177.50 
PAYROLL EXPENSES - Other 3,565.70 

Total PAYROLL EXPENSES 65,241.76 

CAPITAL PROJECTS 
70012 · Cardiac Monitor Replacement 84,817.02 
70010.1 · Fire Hose - Mitigation Funds 6,954.62 
70004.5 · Fire Station Dev-Fire Mitigatio 15,103.30 
70007 · Fire Station Electrical Resilia 44,304.00 

Total CAPITAL PROJECTS 151,178.94 

Total Expense 440,688.16 

Net Ordinary Income -376,928.29 

Net Income -376,928.29 

Page 2 

https://376,928.29
https://376,928.29
https://440,688.16
https://151,178.94
https://44,304.00
https://15,103.30
https://6,954.62
https://84,817.02
https://65,241.76
https://3,565.70
https://3,177.50
https://44,108.00
https://14,021.14
https://145,567.25
https://52,670.43
https://55,169.44
https://37,727.38
https://41,129.97
https://9,156.80
https://3,180.00
https://4,190.73
https://8,084.04
https://7,961.60
https://8,556.80
https://1,885.00
https://1,885.00
https://2,466.54


 

 
 

 

 

09/08/22 

9:30 AM Valley Center Fire Protection District 
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual 

Accrual Basis July through August 2022 

Jul - Aug 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget 

Ordinary Income/Expense 
Income 

GRANT REVENUE 
48000 · Applied Grant Income-Other 19,406.46 5,000.00 14,406.46 388.1% 
49008 · CPF - Wellness Grant 0.00 2,273.40 -2,273.40 0.0% 
49007 · SD County Fire Foundation Grant 
49006 · Neighborhood Reinvestment Grant 
49005 · VC Fire Foundation Grant 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

4,166.70 
16,666.70 
96,000.00 

-4,166.70 
-16,666.70 
-96,000.00 

0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 

49004 · Waldron Grant 0.00 176,666.70 -176,666.70 0.0% 
49003 · SD COVID-19 ARPA Grant (12/21) 
49002 · SD COVID-19 ARPA Grant (03/21) 
49001 · SAFER Grant 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

11,235.40 
29,833.40 
70,674.65 

-11,235.40 
-29,833.40 
-70,674.65 

0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 

45000 · Fire Explorer Post Donations 
47000 · Applied SHSGP Grant Income 
46000.4 · Applied UASI Grant - 2022 

7,050.00 
0.00 
0.00 

1,666.70 
2,358.40 
5,561.40 

5,383.30 
-2,358.40 
-5,561.40 

423.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 

Total GRANT REVENUE 26,456.46 422,103.45 -395,646.99 6.3% 

NON-OPERATING REVENUE 
30100 · Mitigation Fees Capital Expendi 
30120 · Mitigation Interest 

0.00 
2,080.26 

143,717.92 
858.30 

-143,717.92 
1,221.96 

0.0% 
242.4% 

Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 2,080.26 144,576.22 -142,495.96 1.4% 

OPERATING REVENUE 
30130 · CFD2008-1 Interest 1,066.58 356.68 709.90 299.0% 
40150 · Misc Revenue 6,409.47 
49000 · NCD JPA Capital Equipment Reimb 
40000 · Benefit Fees/Standby (315001) 
40100 · Taxes, Property (315000) 
40200 · CFD-2000-1 (315002) 
40300 · CFD-2008-01 (315003) 
40400 · General Fund Interest 

0.00 
0.00 

9,552.42 
725.72 
0.00 

2,555.11 

3,333.40 
286,073.05 
107,333.30 
53,046.28 
63,844.47 
780.87 

-3,333.40 
-286,073.05 
-97,780.88 
-52,320.56 
-63,844.47 
1,774.24 

0.0% 
0.0% 
8.9% 
1.4% 
0.0% 

327.2% 
40500 · Mercy Transport Fees 
40700 · Community Development Fees 
40800 · Fire Prevention Inspection Fees 
42000 · Incident Cost Recovery-Fire USA 
43000 · Training Reimb-Target & Palomar 

10,104.43 
39,368.83 

0.00 
0.00 

19,502.00 

7,363.28 
15,000.00 
1,333.40 
3,433.30 
3,814.90 

2,741.15 
24,368.83 
-1,333.40 
-3,433.30 
15,687.10 

137.2% 
262.5% 
0.0% 
0.0% 

511.2% 
44000 · Fire Foundation Fund 6,275.00 

Total OPERATING REVENUE 95,559.56 545,712.93 -450,153.37 17.5% 

Total Income 124,096.28 1,112,392.60 -988,296.32 11.2% 

Expense 
OPERATIONS PROGRAMS 

51515.2 · PPE Non-Grant 0.00 5,338.70 -5,338.70 0.0% 
51515.1 · PPE Grant 0.00 2,358.40 -2,358.40 0.0% 
51515 · PPE/Uniforms 
51514.1 · Rescue Equip Grant 
51513 · BA's/Fit & Flow Test/Compressor 

1,034.37 
0.00 

292.50 
1,802.50 
1,293.40 

-1,802.50 
-1,000.90 

0.0% 
22.6% 

51512 · Tools/Minor Equip/Small Engines 
51511 · Hose/Nozzles/Fittings/Ladders 

142.81 
0.00 

4,477.70 
1,501.70 

-4,334.89 
-1,501.70 

3.2% 
0.0% 

Total OPERATIONS PROGRAMS 1,469.68 16,772.40 -15,302.72 8.8% 

TRAINING 
50502.4 · Applied UASI Grant - 2022 
50501 · Training Exp - Oper Exp Funded 
50000 · Explorer Post 
50100 · EMT & Paramedic License Renewal 

0.00 
0.00 

300.00 
925.50 

5,561.40 
4,000.00 
817.11 
780.00 

-5,561.40 
-4,000.00 
-517.11 
145.50 

0.0% 
0.0% 
36.7% 
118.7% 

50200 · Tuition & Reference Materials 0.00 1,794.00 -1,794.00 0.0% 
50500 · Training & Expenses 5,265.90 0.00 5,265.90 100.0% 

Total TRAINING 6,491.40 12,952.51 -6,461.11 50.1% 

OVERHEAD / ADMINISTRATIVE SERV 
51000.1 · Administrative Support Expenses 
51000 · Service Awards & Commendations 

28,667.37 
0.00 

25,198.31 
0.00 

3,469.06 
0.00 

113.8% 
0.0% 

51001 · Contingencies & Misc. 
51002 · Recruitment and On Boarding Exp 
51006 · Election/Annexation Service 

332.00 
1,150.00 
0.00 

2,166.70 
1,333.40 
1,666.70 

-1,834.70 
-183.40 
-1,666.70 

15.3% 
86.2% 
0.0% 

Total OVERHEAD / ADMINISTRATIVE SERV 30,149.37 30,365.11 -215.74 99.3% 

CONTRACT SERVICES 
51101.1 · Prof. & Contract Svcs - Grant 0.00 833.40 -833.40 0.0% 
51101 · Professional & Contract Svcs 20,822.45 11,589.67 9,232.78 179.7% 
51105 · Insurance 34,236.00 36,488.98 -2,252.98 93.8% 
51107 · Trauma Intervention Program 
51109 · Burn Inst/Youth Fire Prevent 
51110 · MDC Equip Replacement-HP Lease 

0.00 
0.00 

1,001.78 

390.00 
642.00 
1,000.00 

-390.00 
-642.00 
1.78 

0.0% 
0.0% 

100.2% 

Total CONTRACT SERVICES 56,060.23 50,944.05 5,116.18 110.0% 

COMMUNITY RISK REDUCTION 
51200 · CRRD Operational Expenses 672.00 1,073.00 -401.00 62.6% 

Total COMMUNITY RISK REDUCTION 672.00 1,073.00 -401.00 62.6% 

FIRE FACILITIES 
FIRE STATION #1 

Page 1 



 

  
 

09/08/22 

9:30 AM Valley Center Fire Protection District 
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual 

Accrual Basis July through August 2022 

Jul - Aug 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget 

51303 · #1 Consumables 
51301 · #1 Facility Maint/Repairs 
51302 · #1 Utilities 

253.96 
8,443.06 
2,950.84 

600.00 
5,799.22 
2,919.65 

-346.04 
2,643.84 
31.19 

42.3% 
145.6% 
101.1% 

Total FIRE STATION #1 11,647.86 9,318.87 2,328.99 125.0% 

FIRE STATION #2 
51313 · #2 Consumables 
51310 · #2 Facility Maint/Repairs 
51312 · #2 Utilities 

137.53 
1,939.29 
3,625.89 

600.00 
3,141.70 
2,587.05 

-462.47 
-1,202.41 
1,038.84 

22.9% 
61.7% 
140.2% 

Total FIRE STATION #2 5,702.71 6,328.75 -626.04 90.1% 

FIRE STATION #3 
51323 · #3 Consumables 
51320 · #3 Facility Maint/Repairs 
51322 · #3 Utilities 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

300.00 
0.00 

1,333.40 

-300.00 
0.00 

-1,333.40 

0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 

Total FIRE STATION #3 0.00 1,633.40 -1,633.40 0.0% 

Total FIRE FACILITIES 17,350.57 17,281.02 69.55 100.4% 

FIRE APPARATUS 
51400 · Operations Expense 
51402 · Fuel 

11,491.93 
7,068.34 

27,795.44 
13,416.70 

-16,303.51 
-6,348.36 

41.3% 
52.7% 

Total FIRE APPARATUS 18,560.27 41,212.14 -22,651.87 45.0% 

COMMUNICATIONS 
51600 · North County Dispatch 
51601 · RCS Comunication Fees 

0.00 
3,770.00 

25,715.50 
1,995.00 

-25,715.50 
1,775.00 

0.0% 
189.0% 

Total COMMUNICATIONS 3,770.00 27,710.50 -23,940.50 13.6% 

PARAMEDIC EMERGENCY SUPPLIES 
51700 · Medical Equipment & Supplies 2,389.37 2,666.70 -277.33 89.6% 

Total PARAMEDIC EMERGENCY SUPPLIES 2,389.37 2,666.70 -277.33 89.6% 

PAYROLL-ADMINISTRATIVE 
60000 · Division Chief-Operations/Train 
60200 · Battalion Chief-Fire Marshal 
60300 · Administrative Captain 
60400 · Administrative Asst-Office Mgr. 
60500 · Bookkeeper 
60600 · Fire Chief 
PAYROLL-ADMINISTRATIVE - Other 

15,725.41 
14,539.87 
14,705.18 
8,619.29 
6,055.98 
16,856.78 

0.00 69,741.24 -69,741.24 0.0% 

Total PAYROLL-ADMINISTRATIVE 76,502.51 69,741.24 6,761.27 109.7% 

PAYROLL - OPERATIONAL PERSONNEL 
61000 · Fire Engineers 
63000 · Firefighter-Paramedics 
64000 · Fire Captains 
PAYROLL - OPERATIONAL PERSONNEL - Other 

75,415.90 
98,435.67 
95,437.57 

0.00 

0.00 

381,771.39 

75,415.90 

-381,771.39 

100.0% 

0.0% 

Total PAYROLL - OPERATIONAL PERSONNEL 269,289.14 381,771.39 -112,482.25 70.5% 

PAYROLL EXPENSES 
66008 · Employer Taxes-FICA,SUTA,FUTA 
66002 · FASIS Workers Comp Emp Asst 
66003 · Payroll Service 
66004 · Health Benefit Costs 
PAYROLL EXPENSES - Other 

25,662.71 
88,216.00 
723.73 
4,859.16 
5,803.23 

47,183.08 
15,791.65 
1,000.00 
1,020.84 

-21,520.37 
72,424.35 
-276.27 
3,838.32 

54.4% 
558.6% 
72.4% 
476.0% 

Total PAYROLL EXPENSES 125,264.83 64,995.57 60,269.26 192.7% 

CAPITAL PROJECTS 
70013 · Workout Gear-CPF Wellness Grant 
70012.3 · Cardiac Monitor - Mit Funds 
70012.2 · Cardiac Monitor - COVID-19 ARPA 
70012 · Cardiac Monitor Replacement 
70011 · VHF Radio Replacement 
70010.2 · Fire Hose - Op Expense 
70010.1 · Fire Hose - Mitigation Funds 
70004.5 · Fire Station Dev-Fire Mitigatio 
70004.4 · Fire Station Dev - Neighborhood 
70004.3 · Fire Station Dev - Fire Found. 
70004.2 · Fire Station Dev-COVID-19 ARPA 
70004.1 · Fire Station Dev-Waldron Grant 
70009.2 · Type 3 Engine - Mitigation Fund 
70009.1 · Type 3 Engine - Waldron Grant 
70001.2 · RCS Nextgen '21 Reimbursement 
70001.1 · RCS Nextgen '21 - Mitigation 
70000 · Engine 163 & Equipment 
70001 · RCS NextGen Network Infrastruct 
70004 · Fire Station Development Costs 
70005 · New Station Consulting 
70007 · Fire Station Electrical Resilia 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

90,981.57 
0.00 
0.00 

6,954.62 
15,103.30 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

27,370.63 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

5,240.00 
0.00 

44,304.00 

1,458.40 
8,518.52 
5,617.70 

13,566.70 
333.40 
1,666.70 
58,333.40 
9,664.40 
96,000.00 
29,833.40 
29,666.70 
6,935.20 
63,333.40 
1,715.00 
1,715.00 
0.00 

1,715.00 

15,000.00 

-1,458.40 
-8,518.52 
-5,617.70 

-13,566.70 
-333.40 
5,287.92 
-43,230.10 
-9,664.40 
-96,000.00 
-29,833.40 
-2,296.07 
-6,935.20 
-63,333.40 
-1,715.00 
-1,715.00 

0.00 
-1,715.00 

-15,000.00 

0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 

0.0% 
0.0% 

417.3% 
25.9% 
0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 
92.3% 
0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 

0.0% 

Total CAPITAL PROJECTS 189,954.12 345,072.92 -155,118.80 55.0% 

Page 2 



09/08/22 

9:30 AM Valley Center Fire Protection District 
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual 

Accrual Basis July through August 2022 

Jul - Aug 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget 

Total Expense 797,923.49 1,062,558.55 -264,635.06 75.1% 

Net Ordinary Income -673,827.21 49,834.05 -723,661.26 -1,352.1% 

Net Income -673,827.21 49,834.05 -723,661.26 -1,352.1% 

Page 3 


	VALLEY CENTER
	2@Res 2022-47-cfd annexation-cole grade.pdf
	RESOLUTION NO. 2022-47
	A RESOLUTION OF INTENTION
	OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
	TO ANNEX TERRITORY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2008 1
	AND TO AUTHORIZE THE LEVY OF SPECIAL TAXES THEREIN
	WHEREAS, under the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended (the "Act"), Chapter 2.5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, commencing at section 53311 of the California Government Code, the Board of Directors (the "Board") of the Valley C...
	WHEREAS, the Board is the legislative body for the CFD and is empowered with the authority to annex territory to the CFD and now desires to undertake proceedings to annex territory to the CFD, and
	WHEREAS, a petition requesting institution proceedings to annex territory to Community Facilities District No.2008-1 District has been received from landowners owning not less than 10% of the proposed land to be annexed to the CFD, and
	WHEREAS, the petition dated August 17, 2022 has been found to meet the requirements of Government Code section 53319, and
	WHEREAS, this Board, having received indications of interest from the owner of the areas of land
	proposed to be annexed to the CFD, now desires to proceed with the annexation to the CFD in order to finance the balance of the costs of certain public services and facilities necessary or incident to development in the CSD.
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Valley Center Fire Protection District as follows:
	1. This Board hereby finds and determines that public convenience and necessity require that territory be added to the CFD be formed and that the Board is authorized to conduct proceedings for the annexation of territory to the CFD pursuant to the Act.
	2. The name of the existing CFD is "Community Facilities District No. 2008-1."
	3. The territory included in the existing CFD is as shown on the map thereof filed in Book 42 of Maps of Assessment and Community Facilities Districts at Page 27 in the office of the County Recorder, County of San Diego, State of California to which m...
	4. The types of services financed by the CFD and pursuant to the Act consist of those services (the "Services") described in Exhibit A to Resolution 2008-09, adopted by the Board on May 29, 2008 (the "Resolution of Formation"). It is presently intende...
	5. Except to the extent that the funds are otherwise available to the CFD to pay for the Services, a special tax sufficient to pay the costs thereof is intended to be levied annually within the CFD and collected in the same manner and at the same time...
	6. The Board shall hold a public hearing (the "Hearing") on the annexation of territory to the CFD and the proposed Rate and Method of Apportionment at 6 p.m., or as soon thereafter as practicable, on October 20, 2022, at the Valley Center Municipal W...
	7. The District may accept advances of funds or work-in-kind from any source, including, but not limited to, private persons or private entities, for any authorized purpose, including, but not limited to, paying any cost incurred by the District in th...
	8. The District Secretary is hereby directed to cause notice of the public hearing to be given by publication one time in a newspaper published in the area of the CFD. The publication shall be completed at least seven days before the date of the publi...
	9. Except as may otherwise be provided by law or by the rate and method of apportionment of the special tax for the CFD, all lands owned by any public entity, including the United States, the State of California and/or the District, or any departments...
	10. The officers, employees and agents of the District are hereby authorized and directed to do any and all things and to execute and deliver any and all documents which they may deem necessary or advisable in order to carry out, give effect to and co...
	PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Valley Center Fire Protection District on the 15th day of September, 2022 by the following vote:
	Ayes:
	Noes:
	Absent:
	Abstain:
	ATTEST:
	____________________________
	President, Board of Directors
	____________________________
	Secretary, Board of Directors

	3@Res 2022-48-cfd annexation-park circle retail.pdf
	RESOLUTION NO. 2022-48
	A RESOLUTION OF INTENTION
	OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
	TO ANNEX TERRITORY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2008 1
	AND TO AUTHORIZE THE LEVY OF SPECIAL TAXES THEREIN
	WHEREAS, under the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended (the "Act"), Chapter 2.5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, commencing at section 53311 of the California Government Code, the Board of Directors (the "Board") of the Valley C...
	WHEREAS, the Board is the legislative body for the CFD and is empowered with the authority to annex territory to the CFD and now desires to undertake proceedings to annex territory to the CFD, and
	WHEREAS, a petition requesting institution proceedings to annex territory to Community Facilities District No.2008-1 District has been received from landowners owning not less than 10% of the proposed land to be annexed to the CFD, and
	WHEREAS, the petition dated August 23, 2022 has been found to meet the requirements of Government Code section 53319, and
	WHEREAS, this Board, having received indications of interest from the owner of the areas of land
	proposed to be annexed to the CFD, now desires to proceed with the annexation to the CFD in order to finance the balance of the costs of certain public services and facilities necessary or incident to development in the CSD.
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Valley Center Fire Protection District as follows:
	1. This Board hereby finds and determines that public convenience and necessity require that territory be added to the CFD be formed and that the Board is authorized to conduct proceedings for the annexation of territory to the CFD pursuant to the Act.
	2. The name of the existing CFD is "Community Facilities District No. 2008-1."
	3. The territory included in the existing CFD is as shown on the map thereof filed in Book 42 of Maps of Assessment and Community Facilities Districts at Page 27 in the office of the County Recorder, County of San Diego, State of California to which m...
	4. The types of services financed by the CFD and pursuant to the Act consist of those services (the "Services") described in Exhibit A to Resolution 2008-09, adopted by the Board on May 29, 2008 (the "Resolution of Formation"). It is presently intende...
	5. Except to the extent that the funds are otherwise available to the CFD to pay for the Services, a special tax sufficient to pay the costs thereof is intended to be levied annually within the CFD and collected in the same manner and at the same time...
	6. The Board shall hold a public hearing (the "Hearing") on the annexation of territory to the CFD and the proposed Rate and Method of Apportionment at 6 p.m., or as soon thereafter as practicable, on October 20, 2022, at the Valley Center Municipal W...
	7. The District may accept advances of funds or work-in-kind from any source, including, but not limited to, private persons or private entities, for any authorized purpose, including, but not limited to, paying any cost incurred by the District in th...
	8. The District Secretary is hereby directed to cause notice of the public hearing to be given by publication one time in a newspaper published in the area of the CFD. The publication shall be completed at least seven days before the date of the publi...
	9. Except as may otherwise be provided by law or by the rate and method of apportionment of the special tax for the CFD, all lands owned by any public entity, including the United States, the State of California and/or the District, or any departments...
	10. The officers, employees and agents of the District are hereby authorized and directed to do any and all things and to execute and deliver any and all documents which they may deem necessary or advisable in order to carry out, give effect to and co...
	PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Valley Center Fire Protection District on the 15th day of September, 2022 by the following vote:
	Ayes:
	Noes:
	Absent:
	Abstain:
	ATTEST:
	____________________________
	President, Board of Directors
	____________________________
	Secretary, Board of Directors

	7@Res 2022-49-cfd public hearing-oak glen.pdf
	RESOLUTION NO. 2022-49
	A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	OF THE VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
	WHEREAS, the annexation of described territory to the Community Facilities District 2008-01 (the"CFD") was submitted to a vote by the landowner of the real property located within the jurisdictional boundaries of the CFD on August 22, 2022; and
	WHEREAS, three (3) votes (1 vote per acre) was cast by a proper mail ballot in favor of the levy of special taxes within the described territory of the CFD; and
	WHEREAS, a sufficient-number of votes were cast in favor of levying special taxes within the CFD;
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that:
	The results of the election as sufficient to levy special taxes within the CFD are hereby certified.
	PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Valley Center Fire Protection District, at a scheduled Regular Board Meeting thereof, this 15th day of September, 2022 by a unanimous vote.
	______________________
	Secretary
	Board of Directors

	10@Valley Center FPD Strategic Plan 2022 - 2027 Draft B.pdf
	Organizational Background
	Organizational Structure
	Community-Driven Strategic Planning
	Process and Acknowledgements
	Community Group Findings
	Agency Stakeholder Group Findings
	Mission
	Values
	Programs and Services
	SWOT Analysis
	Critical Issues and Service Gaps
	Strategic Initiatives
	Goals and Objectives
	Vision
	Performance Measurement
	The Success of the Strategic Plan
	Glossary of Terms, Acronyms, and Initialisms
	Appendix 1
	Should Change
	Should NOT Change
	Community Expectations
	Areas of Community Concern
	Positive Community Feedback
	Other Thoughts and Comments
	Community Priorities

	Appendix 2
	Strengths
	Weaknesses
	Opportunities
	Threats
	Threats
	Threats
	Threats





